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HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue Adjusted EBITDA from Profit before tax

continuing operations*
£46.Im f4.5m £1.3m
20 451 20 as 20113
19— 1229 18 Jwog 18 —]s0*
8 [ 405 18 188 18 | 169
Total dividends per share Free cash flow**** Net assets
Nil*** £6.5m £46.3m
zo‘m 20 ]85 20 | 1453
/Mo 19 o 19 ] 25.3*
18 21 18 06 TN T

Adwsted E3ITDA from cantinuing operations 1s operating profit excluding the impact of exceptional ems, depreciation amaor: sation and equ ty-settlec share

based payment chargas

“*  Restated for IFRS 18

T Gaven e current ecchormic uncertaimty and the unquanufiable impact >f COVID-12 on the Sroup s trading environmens, the Groun 1s pronis ng maniamng
the strength of I7s balance sheet and 1ts cask resarves As aresull the Group will rot cay a dividens in sespect of the financial vear ended 31 March 2020

**** Free cash fow s operating cash flow less net capital expenditure

Financial performance

Revenue dowr 5 8% 1o £48 1 mullion (2019 £48 9 million)

Adused EBITDA from cantinu ng opearaticns® down
€6 4 millon to £4 5 million (2019 £10 9 million**)

Profit before tax of £1 3 mullion {2012 £6 rmelhon*™)
Net cast inflows from operatons of £1.7 million (2019 £11.8 million)
Free cash flow**** of £6.5 milion (20719 (£0 4) million)

Adjusted earnings per share of 2 3p {2018 3 4p**) and basic
earnings per share of 0.70 2019: 2 3p**)

Net cash of E6 million as at 31 March 2020 (2013 £3.8 million}

Net assets per share up 1.5% 10 20 8p

Operational highlights

Sustained growtr in the Group order book, up 9% since
March 2019 to £66 2 million [2019- £60 = million)

Grow:hin the housing crder ook, up 24% to £25 milion

S:rengthened smart metering operations, with 22% growth
N the order baok

Sustained improverment in H2 (cespite the impact of COVID-19)
with revenue up 36% (F2: £26.6 mithon vs H1 £18 5 million)

and adjusted EBITDA from continuing cperations® up 1°5%

{H2: £3 1 mullion vs Hi £14 million)

Expanded the Group's direct delivery model 1nto South East
England and London

Executes the sale of its domestic assat portfolio and order book
for a gross consideration of £48 million, supporting a strong
bzalance sheet and the generatnior of surplus cash in the future
The first tranche of assets was sold on 31 Marcr 2020 for a
gross consideration of £°7 9 million, enabling the Group to
become debt free

Established a strategic relat:anship with ESP, occening the
oppcrturity to compete on larger projects

Continued 1o manage the business through COVID-19 well
providing essential works whilst putung the safety and welbeing
of our peoole, our customers and the communities we work in
first and foremaost

Despite the impact of COVID-18, trading in the new financial
year has seen continual improvernant montna on month and
is expected 1o return to pre-COVID-18 levels in Q2 of FY21

Annual Report and Accgunts 2020 Fulcrum Utility Services Limited



Strategic report

FULCRUM AT A GLANCE

OUR BUSINESS AT A GLANCE

WE OPERATE ACRGSS FOUR KEY SECTORS

HOUSING

Offering
s Multi-utilizy installatio~ sérvices to connact new “omaes

Customers we work with

SMART METERING

Offering
= Meter exchznge and meter ownership services

Customers we work with

2

Fulcrum Utility Services Limited Annual Report and Accounts 2020

INDUSTRIAL AND (OMMERCIAL

Offering

« Multi-utlity conrections of all sizes for I&C projects,
renewable energy generating irfrastructare and Electric
Vehicle (EV) charging infrastructure

Customers we work with

MAINTENANCE AND OWNERSHIP

Offering
= Electrical maintenance and asset ownership services

Customers we work with
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OUR FOUR SPECIALIST BUSINESSES

Services
< Design and buld of muit-utility connectons
for housing and 1&C developments

= Dasign and build of EV charging infrastructure

+ Smart meter exchange programmes
and metar ownership

Utility infrastracture assat cwnership

Services
» High-Voltage (HV} and renewahle electrical
connections, up to and including 132kY

+ Specialist electrical design

Services
» Design and build of cemplex and specialis:
gas nfrastructu-e

Services

» Maintenance for slectrical systems and re~ewable

energy generating infrasiruciure

+ Design and bu Id of electneity distribbusion wfrastructure

Read more about our business medel on pages 10 and 11

WHAT DIFFERENTIATES US

1 In-nouse capability to design and buld utilizy
infrastructure of all complaxities

2 National coverage, with a direct delivery model

3 Anexceptional safety record and commitment
to healtr, safety and wellbeing

4 Comm tment to high-quality service to
customers, delivered in a responsible and
increasingly efficient and sustainable way

5 Strongtechnical experuse and expenence
across all market sectors

6 Inrovative and flexible unlity adoption solutions
that deliver long-term value for customers

15000 0.00 89%

new cannections RIDDOR rate of customers
rated our service
as “great”

WHERE WE WORK (9 or 10 out of 10)

New conrections, FY20

Read more about cur strategic pricrities on pages 4 and 5

Anmual Reportand Accounts 2020 Fulgrum Utility Services Limited 3



Strategic report

INVESTMENT PROPOSITION

REASONS TO INVEST

OUR VISION
To play an essental partin the UK's zers carbon
and smar: energy revolution

OUR MISSION

To sugpport our customers on their net-7ero Journays

and through the sma-: energy revolution We do

this through cur capatolity, experience and strategic
relationshizs to deliver Innovative, adced value utility
infrastructure solutions for our customers and therr orojects

A STRONG, VALUES-LED CULTURE

Six core values keep the Fulcrum Spint alive tiroughout
everything we do - the Spirit of heart, mind and
commtment to be the best, for all our stakehclders

Six values that express the spirit of Fulcrum and 1ts pecple

Safe | Partnership

Improvement Reliability | Integrity | Together

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

1

OPTIMISE THE BUSINESS FOR THE
UK’S NET-ZERO REVOLUTION

Offer a full product portfolio that meets all our
customers’ current needs and their needs as
they move to a net-zaro future

a
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1

OPERATES IN MARKETS THAT WILL GROW
SIGNIFICANTLY THROUGH INVESTMENT

IN ENERGY INFRASTRUCTURE, ELECTRIC
VEHICLE (EV) CHARGING AND HOUSING

+ To reach net zero by 2000, four times more elactricity
15 needed or tha grnid 1o support the shift to clean
POWET SOUrCes

+ Significant need for new utility infrastructure to power
the rapidly growing numaoer of electric vehicles

+ Commitment to delver an average of 300,000 new
homes each year by the mid-2020s

+ 30 million domestic metars 10 exchange by mid-2025

2

GROW MARKET SHARE, REVENUES
AND PROFITABILITY SIGNIFICANTLY

Growth across all sectors is underpinned by the Group's
capabilities and the UK's growing energy needs in the
attractive markets it serves
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2

STRONGLY POSITIONED TO
GROW MARKET SHARE

+ The Group's diverse and strategically important capasit es
are essential tc achizving net zero

+ Currenly, low market share across several attractive growth
markets and gecgraphies presents a substantial opportunity
for exoansicn

3
CASH GENERATIVE

+ Debi free at 1 Apnl 2020 Net casn of £6 mill.on
at 3 March 2520

+ Sale of dorestic gas assets to ESP will generate surplus cash

+ Strong financizl discipline
4
STRONG ORDER BOOK

+ Year-on-year order book growth of 9%

+ £66 2 millon order book at 31 March 2020

3

GENERATE SURPLUS CASH WITH
A STRONG BALANCE SHEET

The cash-generative nature of the Group's services
and payment profile of the asset sale to ESP, provide
significant visibility over medium-term cash flows

Read more about the Group's significant
net-zero opportunity on page 8

5
HIGH BARRIERS TO ENTRY

+ The specials:, techmical and regulated nature o the
Group's cperations means there are high barriers to
artry for new competitors

6

LED BY A NEW, HIGHLY EXPERIENCED
MANAGEMENT TEAM

+ Experienced executive management team, sucported oy 2
highly trained, competent and market-leaging work‘arce who
are ccmmitted to delivering sustamable shareholder value

+ A renewed Board witt substanual shareholder representation

4

BECOME A “TIMES TOP 100
EMPLOYER

Be an employer of choice in the UK te recruit
and retain the best talent

Annual Report and Accounts 2020 Fulerum Utility Services Limited 5
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

1

There is a substantial
long-term opportunity

for the Group to significantly
grow its revenues across
markets that have attractive
long-term drivers, given

the UK's net-zero and

smart energy revolution.

Qur Non-Executive Board
is also enhanced and now
includes substantial
shareholder representation.

Philip Holder
Non-Executive Chairman

A YEAR OF STRATEGIC
REPOSITIONING

Results

The 2020 financ al year was a period of
refacusing and repositioning the business
to create stronger foundations that will
enable the Group to capitalise on the utlity
infrastructure needs of a newzero future

This repositioning was undertaken agamist
a backdrop of uncertan and challenging
market conditions which is refiected In a
disappainting financial performance

Reported revenue was £46.1 milon, down
58% on FY19 Profit before tax was €13 million
and adjusted EBITDA ‘rom continuing
operations was £4 5 million

Business performance was impacted in the
first half of tre year due to uncertain market
conditions. the ongoing Capacity Market
suspension and certain inefficiencies
within the business

Trese inefficiencies and the action taken
to improve productivity are explained later in
the Cperational Review Despite a substantial
impravernent in the second half of the vear
in & more certain Mmarkeat, the iImpact of
CWVID-19 impeded business operations
towards the end of the financial vear

Although rmarkat conditiors affected
business performance, there is a substantia!
long-term ogportunity for the Group to
grow its revenuss across markets that have
attractive long-term drivers given the UK's
net-zero and smart energy revolution This
significant opportunity is clear and recently
reinforced by, for example, Ofgem’s proposal
for a five year investment programme of
£25 billion, with potential for an addizioral
£10 billion or more, to transform Britain’s
energy networks to deliver ermissions-free
green enegy

Read more about the opportunities for our

business in a net-zero future on pages 8 and %

6 Fulcrum Utility Services Limited Annual Report and Aczounts 2020

The Group is well positioned to support
the UK's infrastructure requiraments in an
evolving energy landscape, with strategically
critical capabilitias and the Group will
continue to focus its capabilites on enabling
the UK to t-ansition to a net-zerc economy
This includes delvaring services and
sohlutions that are contributing to a greener
future, such as design ng and budding
utility infrastructure salutions t power andd
maintain renewable energy genersting
infrastructure, ncluding battery storage
sites, wind farrms, solar farms and Electric
Vehicle (EV) cha-ging infrastructura

The growth in electric vehicles ir the UK s
particdlarly exciting and | believe the Group
has the specialist canakilities. skills and
expertise needed to secure a significant
share o thus market as the country rapidly
expands ts EV charging network

Delivering smart meter exchange
programmes 1s ancther vital elemeant of
the net-zero a~d smart erergy revolution
and progress was made on developing
our smart metering business in the year,
positicnirg the Grour well to take a share
of the 30 million meters to exchange in
the UK by m d-2025

Equally, there 1s a highly attractive
oppeortunity for growth in the UK housirg
market, as evidenced vty the UK government’s
commitment to build an average of
300,000 new homes each year by the
mid-2020s Although the Group =as
delivered sustained growth i its housing
order bock, up 24% in the year to £25 miillion,
we gre a relatively small player and a
substanual share of the market is still
avalable to us
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Asset sale

The sale of the Group's existng and
contracted domestic gas assets, announced 1
in the year, realises substantial value for the
Company With a total gross consideration
currently expecied to be approx mately
€48 million in casr, tre successful
completion of the first tranc-e of the sale
significantly strengthened qur balance
sneet The sale of the frst tranche of assets
15 now complete, with total proceeds of
£179 rrillion aganst anor ginal cost to

the Group of £10 7 milhon, which has
subseguently been reval_ed a: £12.8 milhion
Th s has resulted In a total gain, before
exaenses of disposal. of E51milion The
cash proceeds from the asset sale, coupled
with robust financial ciscipling, will suppart
a strong balance sheet and the generation
of surplus cash in the future

The Group's core growth stratagy is now

focused on its design and build activities

in suppart of a net-zero revalution, as well
as selectively adopting asset infrastrusture
where desratle

Cur relationship with ES- also enhances tne
Company's capshilities and competitiveness
In strategically imporant sectors.

Read more about our business model
on pages10and 11

Dividend

Given the currert economic uncertainty
and the orgoing u~qguantifiable impact of
COVID-19 on the short-to-medium-term
traching environnrent, the Groug 1s pnortising
rmaintaining a strong balance sheet and
cash reserves Ag aresult, the Group

will not pay a dividend in respect of the
financial year ended 31 March 2020

The Board will cortinue to keep its
dradena nolicy under review.

Board and corporate governance
In Octooer 2019, we announcec

the departure of the Chief Executive,
Martin Farrison, who steppec down
with immediate effect

Daren Harris joinec the Company and its
Board as Chief Financial Officer n June 20718
and was appoinied as Chief Executive :
Officer in january 2020 Daren was joined !
on the Board i January 2020 by Terry !
Dugdale, Group Chief Operating Officer,
wheo has been with the business since

March 2019 The combined and
complementary expertise that bhoth

Daren and Terry have across the

indeperdent mulu-ut’l ty contracting and
energy services sectors 1s significant and will
be invaluable ir the delivery of the Group’s
refocused strategy and long-term growth.

Qur Non-Executive 2oard was also erhanced
after the year end, and now includes
susstanual shareholder representation
Wayne Hayes, Non-Executive Directeor,
retired from he Board a7 post yea” end
and | would iike to thank him “ar

the zontributicn he made to the Grouo
Jennifer Babington was appointed as a
Non-cxecutive Director in May 2020

and her specialst knowledge in green
nves:ments will assist the Group t©

capital se on decarbonisation cpporturites
Jonathan Turner and Jeremy Brade were
apponted as Nor-Executive Diractors in
Juneg 2020 following the estabhshmant of
Relat-onship Agreements with Harwood Capial
LLP and The Bayfora Group Jonathan and
Jeremy are, or reprasent organisations which
are, the two largest smgle investors in the
business and the Group 1s delighted to
have access 1o tnelr insight, exper.ence
and skills on the Board

Fulerum remairs committed to the highest
standards of corporate governance as it
connects the UK on1ts journey to a net-zero
future The Board plays an active role in
guwiding the Group and leading its strateqy
and we are determined to ersura that we
have a diverse mix of skills capabilities
and experience to steer the Group forward
in an evolving energy landscane.

Read more about our governance
from page 34

Qur people

Qur people are crinical to the Group's
success They are talented individLals and
we have a responsibiliny to support and
nurture them In the year, we bolstered the
Group's capabilities with sorre strategically
Impartant appointments and expandeaed our
workforce to underpin our future growth
The Board 1s very proud of how our people
have respended to, and adapted, durng
the COVID-19 pandemic. They have
demonstrated true resilience ard tenacity
whilst delivering essential services o our
custome-s. We are committed to bringing
out the best in our people ang am to
operate as a "Times Top 00" emgloyer to
ensJre that we retain and recruit the very
best On behalf of the Board, | would like to
thank all cur employees for their continued
hard work, commitmen: and contribution

Stakeholder engagement

The Board recogrises the fundamen:al
importance of sta<gholder engagemeant to
the long-term success and sustainahiity of
our business, and that e*fectve engageent
and collaboration will e srucialin supcortirg
the uK's net-zero revolution Fulcrumiis
committed to developing effective dizlogue
and relationships with aill stakeholder groups
and the Bozrd is committad to continually
developing our business using leanings
from the nteractions we have w th them

Read more about stakeholder engagement
on pages 12 to 14

Current trading and outlook

Despite the impact of COVIDA1S, trading in
the new financial year has seen continual
improvement month on month and s
exoectad to raturn o cre-COVID-19 levels
N Q2 of FY21

Asat 31 March 2020, the Groap recorded its
hignest ever order book, up 9% year on year
to £66.2 million, and has sear continued
growth, reaching £68 m fion 2t 30 June 2020
The Board believes that, despite the curent
economic conditions anc uncertamnty
created by COVIO-18, the political and legal
commitment to decarbonise the UK to
achieve a net-zero future, the substantial
opportunity to design and build electricsl
networks to power tre narion's electric
vehicles, the commitment to build an
average of 300,000 new homes each year
by the m d-2020s and the akligator 1o
exchange 30 m lior domestic meters by
mid-2025, present sigaificant tailwinds
and o %er some very exaiting growth
opporun ties for the Group The Beard s
confident that the Group has o roboust
plan in place to capitalise on the UK's
energy in‘rastructure revalution and

that it is strongly positionad to grow as it
executes Its strategy to play an essential
partin the UK's net-zero and smart energy
revolution However, given the angoing
market uncertainties resulting from
COVID3, the Board will not be issuing
guidance for the Group’s 2027 f nancial year
at this time

Philip Holder
Non-Executive Chairman
6 August 2020

Annual Report and Accounts 2020 Fulcrum Utility Services Limited 7
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT CONTINUED

THE SIGNIFICANT LONG-TERM
OPPORTUNITY OF A NET-ZERO FUTURE

(&A

WITH PHILIP HOLDER

Q Why doesthe UK’s net-zero commitment present a
significant growth opportunity for the business?

In June 2019 the UK announced that it would pass a net-zero
emissions law and confirmed a target of net zero for UK
greenhouse gas emissions by 2050. Net zero means that the
UK’s total greenhouse gas emissions would be equal to or less
than the emissions the UK has removed from the environment.
Achieving this means a significant change for the country.
Our industry will play an important part in achieving net zero,
as how our gustomers heat and power their developments
impacts the level of emissions produced. The significance
of our role is reflected in Ofgem’s announcement in July 2020,
which proposes a five year investment programme of £25 billion,
with potential for an additicnal £10 billion or more, to transform
Britain’s energy networks to deliver emissions-free green energy.
As part of this anncuncement, Ofgem stated that to reach net
zero by 2050, the UK needs:

1. four times maore electricity on the grid to support the shift
to clean power sources; and

2. all cars and vans to be electric by 2050.

A need for more renewable energy

generating infrastructure:

There will be a shift to using more electricity to heat
developments, the need for more renewable energy generating
infrastructure, including battery storage sites, wind farms and
solar farms, and substantial growth in electric vehicles (EVs),
which will in turn create the need for mere infrastructure to
power them. The Group already has the strategically critical
capabilities, skilis and experience to design, build, own and
maintain the specialist electrical infrastructure needed to
power these types of energy generating developments and
we are very strongly positioned to benefit from the UK’s

need for more of these in order to achieve net zero.

8 Fulcrum Utility Services Limited 2nnual Report and Accounts 2020

The rapid expansion of the Electric Vehicle (EV)
charging network:

The growth of electric vehicles in the UK is particularly exciting
and the Group is poised to capitalise on this rapidly developing
market. New diesel, petrol and hybrid cars are proposed to be
banned by 2035, new electric models are coming to market
frequently, and many car manufacturers are committing to
only building electric cars much sooner than the 2035
deadline. Considering this, it is very clear that the future of
mobility in the UK is electric and there is a significant need for
new utility infrastructure to power the nation’s EVs. Fulcrum
has been building a strong brand and presence in the £V
charging infrastructure secter and | believe the Group has the
specialist capabilities, skills and expertise needed to play a
substantial part, and secure a significant share in, designing,
building and maintaining the UK's future EV charging network.

30 million meters to make smart:

The smart energy revolution is also a critical companent

of a net-zero future and there are 30 million domestic meters
to exchange in the UK by mid-2025. We are now suitably
positioned to substantially grow in this sector, having built a
growing order book of meter exchanges and a reputation of
quality and responsiveness with the UK's energy suppliers.

The Board is excited about the varicus growth opportunities
that a net-zero revolution presents to the Group and we have
a robust strategy in place to capitalise on this.

All cars and vans need to be electric by

2050

{source: Ofgem}

New diesel, petrol and hybrid cars are proposed
to be banned by

2035

(source: Department for Transport)
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X

mare glectricity needed on the

grid to support the shift to clean

power sources {source: Ofgem)

Q Whatistherole of gas and the gas networkina
net-zero future?

The UK’'s gas network plays a fundamentally important role in

its net-zero future and Ofgem predicts that tc achieve net zero,

by 2035, aimost all replacement heating systems will need to

be low carbon or ready for hydrogen.

“Gas Goes Green”, launched in March 2020, is an important
development in demonstrating this point, and it is the gas
networks’ plan to deliver net zero by ensuring that homes
and businesses across the UK are connected to the world's
first net-zere gas network.

Gas Goes Green state that there is no realistic scenario
whereby the UK can achieve net-zero carbon emissions by
2050 without utilising hydrogen or biomethane via the gas
network. Hydrogen also offers the prospect of hydrogen
powered vehicles as an alternative to electric powered vehictes
in the future.

The Future Homes Standard is expected to mandate the end
of fossil fuel heating systems in all new houses from 2025, but
does not prohibit the use of clean energy. such as hydrogen
or biomethane. Using electricity to heat hoemes instead has
an economic impact on developers and homeowners, with
the cost of energy from electricity being more than the cost
of gas for customers. We are closely monitoring how this
develops and are working collaboratively with developers

to ensure the mix of utilities we provide to heat and power
their developments is future-proofed.

Q Does netzero present any other opportunities?

Positioning the business for a low carbon future is a strategic
priority for the business and we have focused our efforts on
this in the year. Part of this commitment is to play a substantial
role in the expansion of the EV charging network and the growth
needed in renewable energy generating infrastructure and to
ensure the Group is able offer a full “green” product portfolio,
including renewable energy generating solutions such as heat
pumps, that will give our customers greener choices to power
and heat their projects. We are exploring renewable product
options to complement our multi-utility infrastructure solutions
and are engaging customers on potential trial schemes.

We also commit to reducing our own carbon impact by
reducing the emissions from our cwn operations and we
take cur responsibility to do this sericusly.

The Board believes that, despite the current economic
conditions and uncertainty created by COVID-19, the
commitment to achieve a net-zero future will see many
exciting growth opportunities for the Group.

Read more on how we are accelerating the UK's net-zero
revolution in our Sustainability Report on pages 29 to 33

Annual Report and Accounts 2020 Fulerum Utility Services Limited 9



Strategic report

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

HOW WE CREATE VALUE

We have developed a business model that creates value for all our stakeholders.

We now have a much more focused design and build strategy, complemented by
the selective adoption of multi-utility infrastructure assets where appropriate.

10

OUR STRENGTHS

SERVING ATTRACTIVE MARKETS

« Operating in attractive markets that
will grow and be driven by the
net-zero 2050 target

« Signifizant patential to grow market
share in existing markets and to
expand inte geograghies with
Iimited presence and market share

MOTIVATED AND

TALENTED PEOPLE

« Highly sk lled. engaged and
custorner focused people

+ Expanded and ncreasingly efficiant
direct delvery workforce

= Strong paople development and
succession planning focus

« Experienced and dedicated
leadership team

STRONG CUSTOMER

RELATIONSHIPS

= High proportion of repeat customers
w th growth and cross-selling potential

+ A sign ficant opportunity to target
new customers

STRONG STRATEGIC

RELATIONSHIPS

« The combingd strengths of Fuler.m
and ESP w Il support the winning of
contracts oreviously unobtainable
o the Groug

« Innovative adcotion soluticns
pravide added customer value

Delivered with

HOW WE MAKE MONEY

CUSTOMERS

New apportunities

+ Secured through new business
development sctivity and
maintaining existing
customer relatiorships

AN

N

Multi-utility infrastructure

proposal

+ Ophmum, customer-led and
competitive des gn, build and
adoption solution proposed

« Cross-selling where possible
tc maximise pro ect revenue

AN

Six core values keep SAFE
the Fulerum Spirit
alive throughout

everything we do

Fulerum Utility Services Limited Annual Report and Accounts 2020

We always put safety first
and never compromise

N

Added value from ESP relationship

« ESP's market leading Asset Values
{AVs). balance sheet strergth and
innovatve adoption solutions
strengthen Fulcrum's proposal

« ESP provides Fulerum wits new
design and build opportunites

PARTNERSHIP

We deliver the

best performance
through collakeration



Strategic report | Corporate governance | Fingroial statements

Competitive and cash positive payment profiles

« Fulcrum’s stronger balance sheet and an ESP
adoption, enablaes vore asttractive payment
profiles for larger contracts

+£
~7
Project won Delivery Completion
+ Order placed « Proactive project « Ontme andon
management and budget focus

« Asset value . ‘
efficient direct )
order confirmed - Ongoing manienance
delvery model
and selective
infrastructure adontion
and ownership
opportunities

AN AN

+£ +£

Asset values unlocked as ESP adopts
- Asset values received in cash as milestones
achieved or meters are installed

IMPROVEMENT RELIABILITY INTEGRITY

We contiruously We get things night first We operate with the
move ‘orward, iInnovate ume, every time highest standards.
and Improve

VALUE CREATED

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
« Strong order book at £86.2 milhon,
up 9% year on year

PEOPLE

» Ahigh-performance culture whare
everyone’'s contr bution 1s valued
and rewarded

= More career and perscnal
development cpporiunties

CUSTOMERS
= Strong custorrer relationships
generate repeat business

« Abroad multi-utlhity product
offering, delivered by a s.ngle
prov der, makes the delivery
process easier for the customer
and s.pports effective cross-seling

SHAREHOLDERS
= Sale of gas assets 1o ESP will
generate surplus cash

« Revenue growth and sustainable
MArgns suppoart share price g-owth

TOGETHER
We work as one team to
make a difference

Annual Report and Accounts 2020 Fulecrum Utility Services Limited

n



Strategic report

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

STRONG RELATIONSHIPS ACROSS
ALL STAKEHOLDER GROUPS

Stakeholder engagement is fundamental to the Key to strategic priorities:
long-term success and sustainability of our business 1 Optimise the business for the UK's
and we recognise that effective engagement and neszerm revsluton
collaboration with all stakeholders will be crucial e a5 ane
in us supporting the UK's net-zero revolution. 3 Generste surplus c2sh with a strong

balance sheet
Itis our aim to develop proactive, open and increas ngly effective dialogue and
relationshios with ail our stakeholder groups and we are corrmitted to contnually
learnirg, improving and developing our business using firdings and benefits
from tha engagement and interaction we have with them

4 Becomea T mes Top 100" employer

PEOPLE Link to strategic priorities: 1 2 3 4
Why we engage How we engage Key engagement topics
We aim to have a truly + Regular communications supported with a weekly « Group strategy and pricnties
kforce and we ess update
engaged worlt £ ousINESs Lp » Business, team ard individual
promote a culture ar open, - Datly activity using a social medha collaboration wol. Warkplace performance
clear and transparent
engagement = Emplayee forums arc a iarnual employee « Incentives, rewards
. angagement survey and recognition
« To develop a highly skilled team R I :
and a mgh-performing culturg egular one te ones + Physical, menzal and
. g rod emotional 2in
. To ensure our peaple are ﬁ\/e\i\bl’]e;ngt\r‘\::\{arlvesc,j such a‘sfmtro ~UCME (aur first mantal 0 al wellpeing
heal:hy, happy and work ealth first aider and mental fitness works-ops « Learning and developent
together in g diverse and Developments in FY21 » Business improvement ideas
rewarding werkplace = Intreducing 2 new performance and behavioural and mitiatives
» Torecrutandretana appraisal system Read more about how we engage
motivated and engaged » Introducing "Fulse Surveys” to raview employee sentimeant aur people in our Sustamability
warkferoe, who are crimcal mare regularly Report on pages 29 ta 33

to the Group's success « Increased focus on mental haalth 2nd emotional

wellbeing mnatives

12 Fulcrum Utility Services Limited Annual Repoit and Accounts 2070
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SHAREHOLDERS

Why we engage

We aim to provide clarity

and communicate with

transparency to all our

shareholders

» 7o provide clarity and secure
suppert for the strategic plans
for the business

+ To keep our shareholders
regularly updated on our
progress and performance

CUSTOMERS

Why we engage

We aim to have open and
collaborative relationships
with all our customers

+ To generate opportunities
far the Group

« To develop strong customer
relationships

+ Tosecure feedback to remarr
commercially compettive
and to enhance service

+ Toidentfy emerging
market and customer t-ends
ard opportunities

COMMUNITIES

Why we engage

We support our local
communities and the
communities we work in

+ Togive back to our communimies
+ Tobe aresponsible employer
and give our pecple the
apportunity to sucport
great causes

Link to strategic priorities: 1 2 3 4

How we engage Key engagement topics
+ Investor readshows follow ng results announcemeants = Groupstrategy. governance

« Ad-hoe meetings betweer instizuticnal sharcholders and business performance

and the management team * Business news and developments

+ Avadab ity oF the Board 10 discuss matiers + Environmensal Sooal and

Regulatory news announcements Governance (E3G) nitiatives

* The Arnual General Meeting (AGM Read more about our £3G
initiatives in our Sustainability
Developments in FY21 Report on pages 29 to 33
= Introducing a Capital Markets Day

(depending on COVID-19)

« Improved corporate website and new contrast business
news flow

Link to strategic priorities: 1 2 3 4

How we engage Key engagement topics
+ Drrect and regular ines of contact, with Relationstip = Support ard advice or the best
Managers for larger or tugh-potential customers utihty solubons for the r projects

= fFace-to-face perfarmance review meetings « ldentrfying the level of opportunty

+ Customer satisfaction calls and surveys and our compatitive position

+ Changes inregulaton and pol cy

Developments in FY21 that impact therr developments

- Customer effort ana performance surveys
+ Navigating changes m the

. mer f
Customer focus groups ensrgy lardscape

+ Reducing carocnimpact through
greener alternatives

Link to strategic priorities: 1 2 3 4

Key engagement topics
« Ways we can best give back
and supoort these causes

How we engage
= Planned volunteenng seraces and chanty events, with
127 hoars 1n the year supporting Bluebell Wood Children’s

Hospice and homeless chanty. Bury Drop In - Apprentcaships and graduate

+ Charitable donations from the cusiness and our people recruitrment opportunities

Developments in FY21
+ Linking with local autherities, scnools and universities to
develop stronger, mutually beneficial commrunity partnershios

+ Introducing chartable giving througn salary sacnfice

Anntal Report and Accounts 202C Fulerum Utility Services Limited 13
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT CONTINUED

SUPPLY CHAIN AND STRATEGIC RELATIONSHIPS

Why we engage How we engage

Link to strategic priorities: 1 2 3 4

Key engagement topics

We develop collaborative « Open, two-way commumcations to align our jont aims - Business strategy and abrect ves

relaticnships and

partnerships that provide « Regular, collabarative performance and contract

added value to all our

Teview meetings
stakeholders

» Through robust, two-way industry IT systems

= Toensure the successful
delivery of all our customers’
projects

+ Tounderpin our business Developments in FY21

expansion anc growth
+ Toexpand our caoabilities
and offering

of our ESG plans
+ Toensure we remain competitive

GOVERNMENT AND REGULATORY BODIES

o the Group's business strategy

+ Onboarded and relattonships managed via a procurement
process led by procurement specialists

« Utihse relationsnip with ES® 1o secure increasingiy larger
housing, 1&C and EV charging developrients

» Performance ana corrpetitiveness
« Market ana industry
develcpments
+ Collzborative opportanities
and f31ds
« Forecasting and planning to
ensure custamer obligations
are met

» Evaluating the green credentials of tne supply chain as part

Link to strategic priorities: 1 2 3 4

Why we engage How we engage Key engagement topics
We proactively engage with - Weare members of ana parboipaten, g vanety of ndusiry + Regulaton and pohicy
government and regulatory forums, bodies ana groups including the Independent + Industry obligations, targets and

beodies to keep informed,
and ahead, in an evolving
landscape

our strategies and remain
competitive

= Toinfluence the formulation
and delivery of policies that
affect our sectors, customers
and business

Developments in FY21

affec: our markets

Networks Association (INA), Energy and Unhties Allance
{EUA) the Renewable Energy Association (REA! and
House Bullders Federation [HBF)

= Toforward plan, to inform o Industry body representation and attendance at round
tables and work:ng groups provide a plaform to engage + Key delbverables that will support
and influence government bodies, ncluding the Department
for Business Energy and Irdustrial Strategy (BEIS) znd Ofger

Progress monitorng
» Industry and sector performance

+ Emerging or anticipated policies

the journey 1o net zero

- Reygular market assessment process in place to ensure that
we remain aware, and at the forefront of, developmaents that

« Increased involvement n industry forums

STATEMENT BY THE DIRECTORS IN RELATION TO THEIR STATUTORY
DUTY IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 172(1) COMPANIES ACT 2006

The Directors and the Board as a whole consider that they have
acted in a way that woulc te most likely to ensure the success of
the Company for the benef t of its members as a whole (having
regard to the stakeholders and matters set out in Section 172(1)
(@ to (f) of the Act) in decisions taken dur ng the year ended 31
March 2020 Thea Directors fulfil tneir duty by ensuring that thers
Is a robust governance structure and process running through ali
aspects of tre Group’s operatiors The Groua’s culture of strong
governance 1s described nmaore detail on cages 37 to 46

14 Fulcrum Utility Services Limited Annual Report and Accounts 2020

The Group's strategy is determined by the Board follow ng
careful consideration of materials and cresentatons from the
Group Executive Team This encompasses the impac: on each

of aur main stakeholders and ensures alignment to the Group's
culture defined in our "Spirit” values The Board ergages wit™ and
meets stakeholders regularly. continually moritors the markets

N which the business operates, and ensuras that 1t regularly
engages its feadership tearm to assess progress or strategy

and specific projects

The Group’s focus an ESG s also particuiacly refevant 1o our
stakeholders and this s explained i detaill in our Sustamability
Report on pages 298 to 33.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

A YEAR OF REFOCUS

A NET-ZERO FUTURE

11

There are many exciting
opportunitics for the
business to grow and
to provide long-term,
sustainable value for
shareholders, by

taking advantage

of the UK's energy
infrastructure growth.,

Daren Harris
Chief Exaecutive Cfficer

2020 review

SInce join ng the busiriess in the year,

| have been impressed by its growth
potential in an evohling and exciting
market The UK is now on a 'ourney to
net zere by 2050 and the Group will play
an mportant supporting role in the
achievement of this

FY20 was a year of strategic refocusing as
we developed our in-house capabilities,
including the expansicn of the Group's
direct delivery madel into South East
England and London and the sirengthening
of its smart metenng, electrnical and
mulu-utility operat ons. These have heen
delivered with a focus on operatonal
excellence and improved efficiency to
enhance our capacity and optimise

future profitability Additional focus on
processes, systems a~d management
information is still needed and this will be
implemented in an effective and balarced
way. whilst we expand and grow the
business sustairabiy

This strategic refocusing has been
undertaken against the backdrop of
difficult market conditions, a lower margin
project mix and underperformance in the
business Performance in the “rst half of
the year was impacted by a penca of
ONgoINg ECON0OM & LNGertainty. creates

by Brexit and t~e suspension of the UK
Capacity Market With bettar ecancmic
canditions, performance in the second half
of the year improved, with a substartial
increase in order Inflow resulung in the
Group's trading performance for the
financial year being broadly in line with
more recent expectations —owever, the
impact of COVID-19 rindered our ability to
complete work que £ site suspensions and
10 close out 2 number of potental
contracts because of disagreamenits

on who should bear the (at the time,
emerging) COVID-19 nsk Thig s alsc
reflected In the Group's results.

Positively, &t the year end, the Group
recorded its highest value srder book,

up 9% to £66 2 million, demonstrating the
Group's work-wirning ability in difficult market
conditions Significant orders i~ the year
included a £3 Z million contract ¢ install
new high-valtage electrical infrastructure
for two 5OMW gas peaking plants in Nortr
East England: a £2 4 mdlion ccntract to
prov de over 8km of new gas. water and
electrical infrastructure to a new sustanable
mixed-use residenual, retail and corrmercizl
developrment nthe East Midlangs; and a
£1 8 million contract to install new electrical
mfrastructure as part of a major regeneration
scheme ir South East London

Annual Report and Accounts 2020 Fulerum Utility Services Limited 15
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT CONTINUED

Strategy

The market for the gesign. installaticn
and ownershig of utility infrastructure has
evolved significantly in the lest few yesrs
and continues to develon

Impartantly, there are several crucial
government obligations and commitmets
that will support our growth and we rave
develcped a strategy to ensure we are
positicned to capitalise on these Akay
driver of the Group's strategy 15 the UK
government’s target to achieve net zero
by 2030, and the associated need for
ricreased elactnfication and rerewable
energy generation in a decarbonised
energy system Furthermore, the need

for a significantly expanded EV charging
netwark to power the UK's electric
vehicles and tre government’s
cornmitment to build an average of
300,000 new hemes each year by the
mid-2020s presen:s a significan: growth
opportunity and the Group is focusing 1ts
strategy on capturing further market share
I~ these sectors In accaition. the Group
seeks o expand its foothold withir the
smart metering mar<et, capitalising on

the obligations on energy supplers to
exchange approximately 30 million metars
by mid-2025. The strategy for FY21 has
been approved and supported by the
renewed Board and we continue to monimor
developmerts in a market evolving at
pace to inform our strategiC priornties

We continug to be in regular engegement
with industry bodies and are an active
member of the I~dependent Networks
Association (INA] to praactvely lobby
government and regulato’s and todentfy
changeas in policy or lequislation that may
influence our future activity

Financial performance and results
Total revenus decreased by £2 8 million
te £46 1 million {2019: £48 9 million)
predominantly due to the iImpact of
COVID-"9, as described above Infrastructure
revenues ware particuiarly impacted,
falling £4.1 million to £41 8 milfion

{2019: £45 9 millign} This, however, was
offset by utiity asset ownarship revenues
which delivered 2 £1 3 million ncrease

to £4 3 rullion (2019 €2 mullion).

Adjustad eBITDA from contnuwng
operations® for the period decreased
2 £4 5 million, breadly in line with
management excectations (2079
£10 9 rmullion**

This recuct on wes due to a combination
of lower revenLes, a dilution of the gross
margin as a result of the mix o° work and
investmertin the averheaas to deliver
improvements and lay tne foundariors
for future growth

Basic earnirgs per share reduced to 0 7p
compared to 2 3p** n 2019, Adjusted
basic earnings pe- share, before charging
exceptional tems, have decreased to
23p from 3 4p™*in 2019

Sale of assets to ESP

The asset sale yields substantial value for
cur existing and cortracied domestic gas
assets and has significantly strengthened
our balance sheat The Group used the
proceeds from the first tranche of the sale
to repay Its existing zebt of £10 million in
full, leaving the business debt free as at
1Apnl 2020, other than lease obligations,
and with net cash oalances of £8 millien
at close of business on 21 March 2020

Ligquidity and net cash

The Group has always olaced s high
prianty on cash generation and the active
managemeant of working capital, resulung
ir a positive operating cash flow from
trading act vities of £17 millon As at

31 March 2020, the Group had nat cash
of £6 millon (Z019: £3 8 miliion),

a £2 2 millicn ncrease against the prior
period Net cash inflow from invesing
activizies was £4 8 million, benefiting
fram the £18 8 multion of receipts from
the disposal of utlity assets, offset by
mvestment in utilty assets o £11 5 million

Net cash inflow from financing actvities
of £2.7 million was predominantly dee

to Increased borrowings of £7 million,
offset by £3.2 millon in dwiderd payments
and £0 9 million in lease and interest
payrents relating to IFRS 16. The £10 midlion
revolving credit faciity w.th Lloyds Banking
Group was fully paid off an 1 Apnil 2020
from the proceeds of the asset sale The
cash procesas from the asset sale,
coupled with robust finarcial disciphing,
will enable Fulcrum to maintain a strorg
balance snest and will support the
ge~eraton of surplus zas in the future

We are also 17 advanced discussions
arcund a further facility that will improve
the Group's liquidity nasition ana a further
annourcement will be rrade in due course

16 Fulcrum Utility Services Limited Annual Report and Accounts 2020

Reserves and net assets

Net assets increased by £1 millicn
during the vear, reflecting the Uity asset
net revaluation increase of £2.9 illion,
and retained crofit for the pericd of

£16 million, offset by the f nal 2519
dividend totalling £2 3 million Ne* assets
per share 2t 31 March 2020 were 20 8p
per share 2019: 20 5p:

As at 31 March 2020, the issued share capital
of the Company was 221117945 ordinary
shares (2019 221.3031086) with a nominal
value of £221.118 At the erd of the year, the
Group operated a Growth Share Scheme
{358) plarn and three SAYE schemes

The principal terms of the rermaiming skhare
option scheme are summarnised In note 19
of the financial statements

Summary

Despite a challenging year, the Group
continued to make progress in positioning
itself for future growth and success and,
whilst there is still more to do to develop
anc improve the business and its cperations,
I am canfident that Fulcrum will benefit
from the UK's net-zero and smart

arergy revolution

Desp te the impact of COVID-13, trading in
the new financial year has seen continual
IMmprovement month on montr and s
expected to return to pre-COVID 9 levels
in Q2 of FY21 and. as at 31 March 2020
the Group recorded its hughest ever order
book, up 9% year on ysar to £686 2 million,
and has seen continuad growth reaching
£88 mulion at 30 June 2020

The successful executicn of our stratsyy
1S Now supported with our strongest ever
order book, greater balance sheet strength,
new strategic relationships, improved
capabilities and an enharced
management team We ara strongly
positicned to grow and to provide
long-term, sustainable value

for shareholders

Daren Harris
Chief Executive Officer
5 August 2020

* Agdjusted EBITOA from continuirg operations
15 operalirg proiit excluding the imoact of
axceptional tems, depreciation. amortisaion
and aqu-ty-settled share based payment charges

** Restated for IFRS 16
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0&A

WITH DAREN HARRIS

Q Alot hashappened at Fulcrum inthe past year, including
your appointment as Chief Executive; what was it like
and what was it that excited you about the Company?

The year has not gone as 1 expected. The first half of the year
from a trading perspective was difficult. We saw improvements
in the second half and some strategically important developments,
including the lifting of the Capacity Market and the domestic
asset sale, and then, just when everything seemed to have
settled down, the worldwide COVID-19 pandemic came along
ta test our resolve.

Despite all this, what keeps me focused and excited is the
opportunity to significantly grow the business. Fundamentally,
this means being active in attractive markets with skills, products
or capabilities that customers want to buy. And this is where
Fuicrurn finds itself. The government has set a clear target for
the UK to be net zero by 2050 and, with its capabilities and
experience, Fulgrum is strongly positioned to benefit from this.

Since joining the business, the Fulcrum team has been
enhanced, with the expansion of our workforce, capabilities
and several new strategically important appeintments, including
several talented and experienced people that Terry or | have
worked with in our earlier careers, 1 am confident that we have
a strong, skilled and experienced team committed to the
successful execution of our strategy and delivering value for
cur stakeholders.

Q Can you explain the benefits of the asset sale to ESP?

There are several immediate and longer-term benefits from
the sale of our a55ets to ESP:

1. The transaction realises substantial vaiue. The first tranche of
domestic assets, which is projects that were complete at the
end of September 2019, realised total proceeds of £17.9 million
(against an original cost to the Group of £10.7 million, which has
subsequently been revalued to £12.8 million).

2. Our new relationship with ESP enhances the Company’s
work-winning capzbilities and competitiveness in some
segments of the market. Our combined strengths will
support the winning of contracts that would previcusly
teen uncbtainable to the Group.

Q Whatis Fulcrum’s strategy and why do you believe it
will deliver shareholder value?
To capitalise on the opportunities available to the Group as the UK
decarbonises in readiness for a net-zero future, we have defined
a strategy to ensure that we are strongly positioned to do this:

We will deliver significant revenue growth through the
expansion of our operations across the markets we serve.
Fulcrum’s limited market share, its diverse capabilities and

the growing infrastructure needs of the UK means itis well
placed tc achieve this.

We will maintain a strong balance sheet and generate surplus
cash. The cash-generative nature of our services and the
profile of the sale of cur assets to ESP support this.

We will ensure we are positioned for success in a net-zero
future. We are already strongly positioned but will continue
tc develop and diversify, for example by including greener,
renewable energy generating products.

To underpin the successful execution of qur plans, we will
continue to improve our management infermation, systems
and processes and will recruit and retain the best talent,
We will nurture a high-perfermance culture and have set
out our ambition to be a “Times Top 100~ employer.

Q Clearly COVID-19 had an impact on the end of the
financial year and into 2020; how have you mitigated
the risks associated with the pandemic?

| am incredibly proud of how the business and its people
respended during the COVED-19 pandemic and we have played
an essential role in connecting and maintaining vital energy
generating infrastructure. We took prompt action to conserve
cash and sought to ensure that our decisions struck a fair balance
between the needs of our stakeholders. Fulcrum is able to operate
effectively and be “COVID-secure”, but we recognise the potential
impact of COVID-19, and an economic downturn, on our operations.

Risks associated with an economic downturn are mitigated

by our limited market share and the Group’s diversified position
across multiple sectors, which reduces our exposure to volatility
in individual markets. Maintaining strength in our kalance sheet,
our strong order book and the proceeds from the asset sale to
ESP support this.

As we continue to operate in a COVID-19 world, we are monitoring
events closely with regular Board oversight, to evaluate risks
and impacts and design appropriate response strategies.

Q Looking ahead, what is the outlook for the Company?

There are many exciting opportunities for the business to grow
and to provide long-term, sustainable value for shareholders, by
taking advantage of the UK's energy infrastructure growth.

i am confident that the Group’s diverse capabilities strongly
position it to benefit from this revolution and that our balance
sheet strength, new strategic relationships and our strong
management team will underpin the successful execution
of our strategy.

Far the financial year te 31 Mareh 2021 it is difficult to be as
certain, as the fog of COVID-19 continues to blow across the
battlefield. We will run the business by trying to balance the
short-term uncertainty and threat of further COVID-18
disruption with the need to ensure we capture a substantial
share ¢f the opportunity that a net-zaro future presents.

Fulcrum is a fundamentally robust business with a strong order
book, supported by current and future cash receipts from the
sale of domestic assets to ESP. These factors give me, and the
rest of the Board, confidence that the Group is well positioned
to prosper in the long term.
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GROUP CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER’S STATEMENT

Operational review

BUILDING A STRONGER PLATFORM
FOR FUTURE GROWTH

11

The Group continues to
invest in the business and
Its operations to improve
operational capacity and
drive efficiencies.

Terry Dugdale
Group Chief Operating Officer

Qperational performance

In the year, we placed a significant
erphasis on mproving our operaticnal
capabilities. processes and management
information to drive efficiencies and deliver ‘
better performance This incladed the
expansion of the Group's cirect delivery
model intc South East Englana and
London, bolstering our smart mezering
operations and ncreasng our in-housea
multi-utilty capabilities This was all done
with a sustained “ocus on betrer operatioral
productivity 1o improve our capacity and
overall efficiency

Despite the UK econcm ¢ uncertamty

N the period, the Group saw 2 substantizl
increase n order inflow in the second
half of the year, securing a variety o
large conracts and demanstrat ng the
Group's competitiveness in difficult
market conditions

Delivering contracts safely, efficiently
and profitably

Maintaining the highest staroards of ‘
Fealth and sa‘ety remains our highest
prionty A safaty-first strategy 1s in place to
ansure zero harm and, although tnis is well
embeddad into our culture and operabons,
we are never complacent, and are
committed to continuous Improvement

in health and safety performance |

In the period, we received Tne Royal
Saciety for the Prevention of Acsidents i
(RzEPA; Order of Dustinctior, which |
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recognises 17 years of health and safety
excellence and demonstrates o
commitment to the health and safety
of our people, cur customers and the
communities we work in

We also remain committed to using
customer feedoack to improve, innovate
and differentiate the business as custocmer
needs and expectat ons avolve, and we
have seen sustained improvements in the
percentage of customers who rated our
service as “great” {2 or 10 out of 130}, reaching
89% tnis year (2019 80%). We continue to
push for ever higher levels of customer
satisfaction and we will be implementing
new ways of measuring customer
satisfaction during this yvear

The Group continues to lock for ways to
improve operational capacity and drive
efficiencias that will improve customer
experience and support the optimisation of
profits in the long tarm This1s underpinned
by a culture of continuous IMprovement
and our aim to simplfy, standardise and
ensure that we always deliver the best and
most competitive service. Durning the year
wge |mproved resource management
scheduling efficiency and stock managermean,
following investment in our plarring and
operaticnal delivery functions. We also
recruited some of the industry’s best
talent *o lead our operational improvemant
irihat ves anc we are already seeing the
positive outcomes of thair contribution
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Housing

Fulzrum both designs and builds the utility
networks on new housing sites and ‘
connects them to the local distribution
network and these networks are now
adopted by ESP as part of the adoption
relatonship we have with them The size ‘
of the housing oppoartu-ities varies fram

10 plots to over 1.020 plots and it 15 the i
higher end of ths market that our
relationsiip with ESP will help unlock

for the Group |

Despite challenging economic conditions,
our housing crder bock increasad by 24%,
to £25 milhen, in the year and thera is a
clear and significant coportunity for further
growth Ir addition to the UK government's
commitment to build an average of
300,000 new homres each year by the
mid-2020s, we have s low marke: share,
estimated at under 5%, with lirited
prese~ce i some parts of the UK and
therefore the cpportunity to increase our
preserce N th s market 1s clear

To ensure we maximise cur sharginths |
strategicaily mportant narket, we have been
belstering our sales teams and operations in
support of our future expansion This has
included more mult-skled direct delivery
resources, and improved planning and
delivery orocesses which are focused on
building m efficiency whilst ensunng we
deliver customer service exzellence

There ramains uncertainty for rany
homebuilders following the announcement

that the Future Homes Standard 1s expected
to mardare the end of fossil fuel heating
systems in all new houses from 2025 and
we continue to monitor developmerts
closely Using slectricity to heat homes
instead of gas has an economic impact
on developers ard homeowners, with the
cost of energy from electricity being h gher
than the cost of energy from gas Gas
Goes Green s the UK network operators’
new gas network plan to deliver met zero
and 1ts aim 1s ensuring that homes a~d
businesses across the UK are connactad
to the world's first net zero gas network,
uthising hydrogen and bicmethane rstead
of natural gas We are working closely witn
various ndustry stakeholders to ensure
wa stay irformed and involved in how

this imtiative develops Using this insight,
we are working collaboratively with
developers to help them ravigate the

utl ty needs of their projects now, and in
the future, by groviding support and advice
on their obligations and leng-term heating
aptions as we move towards net zero

Industrial and commercial

Fulcrum designs anc builds a comalets
range of 1&C gas and electricity networks
from small commercial cornections to
EY charging infrastructure and highly
specialist gas and high-volzage (132kV)
electricity supplies through the Group’s
established Dunamis and CD3 brands

In the year, the Group secured a vanety
of significant 1&C contracts and we
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continued to invest in our n-house
electrical capabil ties and expertise to
maximise cross-selling oppartunities
and enhance oLr competitiveress

Fulerum's 1&C electrical capabibity ncludes
des gn and tuild directly to and from the
national transrission netwaork This includes
sies that reinforce the network by generating
electrcity whera needead, such as sclar farms
and battery storage sites We alsc orovide gas
infrastructure to sites that generate electricny
As the UK decarbomises its energy, there will
be growth in renewable energy generation,
amove to cistributed generatior anc battery
powered sites and growth in electnc vehicle
derand Qur diverse electrical capatilines
ana experience place us N a very strong
pasition to grow our share In this sector

Interms of EV charging infrastructure,

we have pricritised the targeting of
specalist high-powered and complax

EV charging customers and have baen
selectively tendering on the mosrt attractive
opporturities n a -apidly developing
market The contnuea growth of EVsir
the J<is exciting and the Group 1s well
positiored 1o capitalise on this Fulcrum
has been build:ng a strong presence nthe
EV charging infrast-ucture sector anc | am
confident that wa have the specialist
capabilites and expertise needed to secure
a sign ficant share in the substantial
opporturities avalable to deliver the

UK's future EV charging network
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GROUP CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER’'S STATEMENT CONTINUED

Operational review continued

Smart metering

Smart meters are an integral part of a
decarbonised energy system and will play
animportant pact in ach eving net zeroin
the UK by enabling demznd-side energy
managemeant. The smart meter rollout
deadline for the UK 1s expectes o be

1 July 2025 and there are an estimated

30 millicn demestic meters that ~eed

to be exchanged by then

The Group's smart meterirg business mace

progress in the year, establishurg several
add tional Meter Asset Manager (MAM;]
and Meter Cperator (MOP) agreaments
with 2 variety of energy supphers. and the
husiness graw s ardar book of mefars
to be exchanged to 110,000 Fulcrum has
quickly established a reputation in the
market far responsiveness, flexibility ana
service excellence and this s supportirg
our ability to identify and successfully
secure incremental supplier agreemenrts

Operatonally, we focused on creating
a strorg platform for our smart meter ng
growth by establishing & rebust and
scalable smart metering :eam and

i~frastructure and by implementirg
I~dusay leading smart metering T
systems 12 support this Qur focus for
FY21is 1o giversify the business and its
service offerng, in particular exploring
the cpportunity to become a Metar Assat
Provider (MAP) ard to further execute our
smart metering growth plans

Maintenance and ownership

The expected grow:h in electrical
I~frastructure in a decarbcnised energy
system presants ancther attractive
growth opportunity for the Group The
electrizal systems and networks that wll
power the nation will -equire mantaning
and, via sul established Maintech Power
brand, we have the special st capaoilities
tz do this Maintech has focused on
delvening relability and customer
excellence and has suppled proactive
maintenance and emeargency respanse
services to essential sites taroughout
COVID-18 Mantech has lirrited market
share and currently operates in specific
regronal markets, presanting the opportunity
far future geographic expansion
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Summary

Whilst many improvements have been
iIrplemented n the year there remans
more to do o ensure that the business Is
well posiziored to take full advantage of
the future opportun:ties that are available
to us We wll continue to focus ¢n

i proving onerat onal efficiency and
expand ng our sales and operational
capablities, systems, processes and
capacity to support this These
improvements will be implemerted
s.stanably and with strong governance
to ensure that we maintain a cultare of
zaro harm, deliver customer excellence
and can guarantee we are able to offer
the complete range of utl ty nfrastructure
solutions essential to achlieving the UK's
net-zero future

Terry Dugdale
Group Chief Operating Officer
8 August 2020
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EV CHARGING Q&A

WITH TERRY DUGDALE

Q How has the Electric Vehicle (EV) charging
infrastructure market been developing in the year?
The EV charging market has been developing at pace. With
sustained electric vehicle uptake, attractive tax incentives for
company car users to choose electric options and government
proposals for all new vehicles to be electric by 2035, it is clear that
electric vehicles will play a huge part in the UK’s net-zero future.

The current focus for many EV stakeholders has been a salution
that provides immediate charging infrastructure in the most
cost-effective way, resulting in many installations providing
adequate EV charging facilities for the short term, but will
become obsolete in time.

Barriers to entry for this type of immediate short-term solution
are lower, and there are now many companies offering these
services, including local electricians, contractors and electrical
services businesses. This has seen this type of EV infrastructure
became commeoditised and margins tighten.

Q What progress has Fulerum made in the year on its
EV charging service?

This year we have been focusing on building a strong brand

in the sector and developing a robust platform for our future
growth as the EV charging market expands rapidly. We have
done this by recruiting EV industry specialists across sales
and operations, selectively tendering on, and securing, the most
attractive EV charging opportunities, developing relationships
with strategically important EV charging customers and ensuring
we have a clear and focused strategy that aligns with our
capabitities and profit expectations. We have also worked with
ESP on customer-led adoption solutions that help provide
greater customer value.

Q Howis the Group executing its EV charging strategy
in a developing market?

As part of our EV growth strategy, we have segmented the
infrastructure needs of EV ¢harging customers into four types
of solution and are prioritising the more attractive opportunities
that better fit with the Group's capabilities. Right now, these
are generally more significant, longer-term schemes, with lower
levels of competition due to their technical complexity. This
generally results in more attractive margins.

These segments are:

1. Infrastructure for high-powered charging facilities and
charging hubs

These are longer-term, complex and often significant
projects that currently have the best fit with our capabilities
and strategic priorities.

2. Connections to support large scale charging rollout
programmes, providing charging facilities for national
brands in retail and leisure

These opportunities will become increasingly attractive as EV
car uptake grows and more significant infrastructure is needed.

3. Providing charging facilities for the homes of new
housing developments

This mainly invelves us providing technical support and advice
to our homebuilder customers to ensure the electrical networks
we design and build for them are flexible and futureproofed for
the EV charging needs of future homeowners.

4. One-off destination charging and workplace charging

Currently, many immediate charging needs are being fulfilled
by a connection to existing electricity supplies, which can be
completed by electricians and electrical contractors. These
opportunities will also become increasingly attractive as EV car
uptake grows and more significant infrastructure is needed.

Q What are the priorities for the Group inthe EV
charging market in FY21?

In FY21, we will continue to build relationships with impartant
EV stakeholders, expand our in-house delivery capabilities and
focus on securing the most attractive EV charging infrastructure
contracts. The Board considers the EV market a really exciting
oppartunity for the Group and its attractiveness will continue
to grow as the UK’s need for more significant EV charging
infrastructure increases. We are very confident that, with our
specialist electrical capabilities, skills and experience, we are
strongly positioned to benefit from the EV charging
infrastructure needs of our net-zero future.

The Group has also continued to expand the use of electric
vehicles as part of its sustainable appreach.

Read more on page 31
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

MEASURING
OUR PERFORMANCE

The Board uses key performance indicators (KPIs) to monitor

and measure progress against the Group’s strategic objectives.

Key to strategic priorities:

1 Optmise the busness for tre UK's net-ze-o revolution

2 Grow market share, revenues and profitability significantly

3 Generate surplus cash with a strong halance sheet

4 Become a "Tirnes Top 1007 employer

Financial KPls

Revenue

£46.Im

20 Ja61
19 Jasg

18 406

Link to strategic priorities
1 2 3 4

Definition
The total amaount the Group earns from
s utility operanons

Performance

Revenues decreasad by £2.8 millan
(2019 £48 9 muillion), principally cus
to the impact of site closures in Marcn
causec by COVID-19.

Adjusted EBITDA from
continuing operations®

£4.5m

20 45

19 11097

18 1886

Link to strategic priorities
1 2 3 4

Definition

Operating profit excluding the impact
of exceptional werns, deoreciation
amaortisation and equity-settled snare
based payment charges

Performance

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing
operations is down by £6 4 million
(20719: £10.9 million**) due to a lower

olended gross margin relating to the mix

of work and investment in overheads
¢ accommodate future growth

Profit before tax

Link to strategic priorities
1 2 3 4

Definition
Prof.t before tax ansing from
ongoing operations

Performance

Profit before tax is down by £4 7 million
{2019: £8 millien), broadly in ine with the
lower EBITDA.

® Adjusted EBITCA from cont nuing speralions 1s operating proft excluding tne mpact of axceptional iterns depreciation, amartisation and equity-settieg share

hased payment cnairges

** Restated tar IFRS 16
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Financial KPIs

Group order book |
i

£66.2m

20

18E2

12 Jeos

() — L

Link to strategic priorities
1 2 3 4

Definition

The amount of secured utility work
representing the construction velue i
and the utihty asset value

Performance
The Group order book noreassd by 9%
vear on year, to i7s highest recarded level

Non-financial KPis

Number of new domestic utility
assets adopted by the Group

15,340

20 | 1i

19 [

(3] — Y7

Link to strategic priorities
1 2 3 4

Definition
The number of domestic utlity
connections adooted by the Group

Future reporting

For FY2", this KPI will show the number
of domestic utilty connecnons adopted
by ESP

Free cash flow

£6.5m

20

19 [
18 [Jce

Link to strategic priorities
1 2 3 4

)

Definition
Free cash flow s operating cash flow less
net capital expendiure

Performance

The free cash flow ncreased by £6.9 m lion,
prncipally due to the proceeds frorr the
sale of utility assets

Smart meters in the order book
to exchange

110,000

20 | ] 110000
19 ]90.00C
18 |0

Link to strategic priorities
2 3 4

Definition
The number of metars the Group s
contracted to exchange to smart meters

Performance

The smart merer order noo< was balstered
with a number of rew smart meter exchange
agreements with energy suppf ers

Annual Report and Accounts 2020 Fulerum Utility Services Limited

External asset commitment

£14.0m

20

Jac

9 1187

18 104

Link to strategic priorities
1 2 3 4

Definition
The Group’s total contracted commitment
to acauire external utibty assets

Performance

External asset commitments decreased
n hne with the salte of utl ty assets

o ESP and a more selective asset
adoption strategy

Customers who rated us

as “great”

%
89%
20 | 832
19 180G
18 178

Link to strategic priorities
12 3 4

Definition

The percentage of custocmers who scored
the Group @ out of 10 ar 10 out of 10 for
customer service

Performance

There was susta-ned improvements in the
percertage of customers who rated the
Group's service as “great” In the year
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RISK MANAGEMENT

THE BOARD

+ Ultimately responsicle for nisk

= On an annual basis. the Board reviews the principal risks and urcertainties facing the Group and assesses
the contrals In place to mitigate any potential adverse impacts This assessment Is also undertaker
whgngver t~ere is a perceived major change n e prncipal risks and uncertainties

AUDIT COMMITTEE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

+ Owersees the risk managemenrt process
and monitors mitigat Ng actions

+ Maonitors the effectiveness of risk management
and internal controls

RISK FRAMEWORK

« Ensures a consistent approach to nsk across the Sroup

WIDER BUSINESS

« Contributes 10 the assessment of actual and potental risks ana how they should be managad

Risk heatmap - mapping considers impact

r
and praobability post risk mitigation g
1 COVID-19 7 Healkhand safety 7o
2 Growrh and strataegy execution Ta Potential for minor
accidents that could lead
3 Retention and recrutment to potential injury 6
4 Macrogconcrme conditions 7b  Sgahicant injury or loss
totner than COVID-19) of hfe
- 9
5 Coarmpetitive environment 8 Worarg capital management Q 1
and rehance on key customers and funding E 4
6 Unlity nfrastrucrure market 9 1T systems and cyber secJrty
and regulamrv enviranmant
10 Brext 8
2
3
10 5 7a
=
[+
-
LOW PROBABILITY HIGH
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The Board corsiders -isk assessment, ident fication of mit.gat ng
actons and relatad internal controls w0 be fundamenital to achieving
the GroLp's strategic abjectives The Corporate Governance Report
on pages 39 10 43 describeas the systems and processes through
which the Directors manage and mitigate risk.

Our principal risks

The Beard recognises that the nature and scopse of the

Group's risks can change, so it regularly reviews the risks faced
as well as the systerms and progesses n place to mitgate them
The principal risks tc achiev ng the Group's olbjectives are set out
below The risk fzctors described are not an exhaustive list or an
exclanation of all nsks Additional r sks and uncertainties relatirg
to the Group. including thase that are not currantly known to the

Key to strategic priorities:
1 Optimise the busingss for the UK's net-zero revolution

2 Grow market share, revenues and profitability significantly

CoviID-19

Link to strategic priorities: 1 2 3 4

Description
There s a nsk that.

Group o that the Group currently deems immaterial, may ndwidually
or cumulatively also have a material adverse aeffect on the Group's
business operations, rasults and/or financial condition

Risks within the Company's control

Inizs Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended

31 March 2019, the Compzny reported on the principal risks
and uncertainties affecting the Group anc act ons taken to
mitigate these risks This report ~as been updatas, w th new
risks Incl.ded. together with ar update on mit.gat ng actons

cOovID-19
The COVID-19 pandemic has become g prircioal sk
for the busiress and 15 detaled below

3 Generate surplus cash wath 3 strong balance sheet

4 Becomea Times Top 1007 amployer

Risk status: New

Mitigating actions
The safety and welloeing of our pecple, customers and the commurres

we work in contirues to te our rumber one priority In ling with the

+ Therecent outbreak and global spread of COVIN-"9 has
a significart and prolonged impact on the UK economy
and may disrupt our supply chain and our customers’
projects and adversely impact our operations

- The temporary emergenay public safety measures
which the UK govermeantintroduced, continue for an
extended penod of ume, inzreasing pressure on our
operatiors due to an economic downturn

measures introduced by the UK gove-nment, we tack our responsibility
o safeguard the welloeing of cur field based pecople and the cormmunities
they work n seriously, by postponing the delivery of all non-essentiat
utility connection and infrastructure works. Works were fully remohilised
in ine with governmen: advice and utility works are now deliverad
uncer COVID-secure guicel nes

The croceeds from the sale of the Group's domestic customer 9as
connection assets and asscciated metars to =8P, s gnificantly

strengthen the Group's balance sheet and we continue t2 have stroeng
relationships with our bank and are in advanced discussions regarding
the provision of rew facilities We are also backed by our retained. regulated
asset base and its recurring income, to sLpport the Group's longer-term
needs The Board continues to monitor the situation closely and explore
further actions as necessary to suppcrt the Group's ligudity

Regarding the mpact of ar economic downturr, our Executive
Commities is monitoring avents closely with regular Board oversight.
to evaluate impact and design appropriate response strategies Risks
assoc ated with an economic downturn are mitigated by our hmitec!
market share 1 key sectors, Our wids breadth of offering and diversified
posItIon, aCcross multiple sectors, also reduce cur exposure o volathity
in ndividual markets
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RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

Key to stratégic priorities:
1 Optimise the business for the UK s net-zero revelution

2 Grow market share ravenues a~d profitab ity sigrfica~tly

Growth and strategy execution

Link to strategic priorities: 1 2 3 4

Description
There 15 g risk that:

« The strategy currently heing pursued 15 not the most
effective or efficient and that aiternative strategies may
he more appropnate

Retention and recruitment

Link to strategic priorities: 1 2 3 4

Description
There is a risk that

+ The Group loses its valued and talented employees

Macreoeconomic conditions {other than COVID-19)

Link to strategic priorities: 1 2 3 4

Description
There s 3 nisk that

« The macroeconomic conditions w the UK impact
the ability of the Sroup to exacute its strategy
and growth plans.

3 Generate surpius cash with a strong belarce sheet

4 Become a 'Trmes "og 100" employer

Risk status: = No change

Mitigating actions

The Group's strategy is agreed oy the Board at an annual strategy
meeting and thereafter regularly reviewed at Board meetings and by
the Executive Directors The Board engsges with management and
employees to ensure the strategy is communicated and understood
and tha: all employees have a clear urderstanding of the potent al
benefits ard risks of the strategy Tre Group maintains a close wateh
on. and assesses, the relevant marke: drivers that nfluence the Group's
strateg ¢ priorities to ensure that its growth strategy remains relevart
and appropriate

Risk status: = No change

Mitigating actions

The Group has put in place competitive reward and recognition packages
to all, compnising a blerd of short and long-term incentives far seniar
maragers and Execut ves Employee development programmes are in
place to assess. manage and develop the leadership skills of empioyees
throughout the organisation In addition, we invest in succession
planning ana improving learming and development, giving opportuniaes
for employees o upgrade skills The Group's culture and approach e
employee engagement cont nue tc be differentiztors n attracting a~d
retainirg talent

Risk status: = No change

Mitigating actions

We closely monitor market developrrents across our key sectors and
we proactively engage with government and regulatory bodies to keeo
informed of market developments

The Group expects that future ma-kat changes will, 11 the main,
contnue to be driver by the move 10 cleaner energy, in line with the
UK's 2050 net-zero target The Board beleves that this presents a
significant growth opoortunity for the Group sonsidering its specishst
skills, experience and capatil ties

The Group also continues to work towards a moere belanced revenue
base to reduce reliance on specific utility services in an evolving
energy landscape
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Competitive environment and reliance on key customers

Link to strategic priorities: 1 2 3 4

Description
There is a risk that.

+ The markess i~ whic the Groug operates become
increasingly competsive and the actions of the Group's
competitors, ncluding those from crganisations that
may oe larger and/or have greater caputal resources,
and/cr our own nacton, has a significant and adverse
impact on the Group.

Risk status: = Nochange

Mitigating actions

Cur wide breadth of offaring and diversified cosition across multiple
sectors recduce our exposure to velathity in indnidual competitive
markets The var ety and volume of custcmers serviced mean that the
Group 1s also not reliant or any customer These risks are managed
througn the corporate plannirg and review processes To ens.re that
we remain competitive, we moritor market developmen:s and pursue
feedback from customers on the competitiveness of all tenders and bids

Considering the special'st, technical and regulated nature of the Gioup's
operations and the market in which it operates, there are high barriers to
entry for new comazetitors

Utility infrastructure market and regulatory environment

Link to strategic priorities: 1 2 3 4

Description
Thereis 3 nsk tnat

= The inherent risks from operaling in the utility
infrastructure market. such as rellance on ageing
infrastructure as weli 8s the rnisk of downtime or low
productivity caused by INterruptiors or eguipment
fallures, are realised

« The Crowp loses cne or more of its icences, which
it reguires 10 order to carry cut the design, budd,
project management, ownership and mantenance
of utlity infrastracture

+ Theregulatary envirgrment could change, which
may have a direct and significant impact on the
Group's 1egulated activities

Health and safety

Link to strategic priorities: 1 2 3 4

Description
There s a risk that

« Acoidents on our sites could lead 2 potent al injury
ta. of loss of, human life, reputational damage and
financial penalt es

Risk status: = No change

Mitigating actions

The Group seeks to reduce the nisk of losses arising from these
circumstances twough careful planning, rabust aperational guidelines
and the sharing of ©isk with client and suppler organisations and by
putting in clace suitacke insurance arrangements The Grouo also maintains
proactive engagement with a variety of government ard regulatory
bedies to keep informed, and ahead. In an evclving market landscape

Risk status: = MNochange

Mitigating actions

We ersure that the Board's health and safety strategy is imiplemented
by our cermprehensive management systems and cantrols, overseen by
our Group health and safety tear to minimise the ikelhood and impact
of accidents We have also developed and sustained a strong "safety-first”
culture which Fas delivered impravements in behavioural safety

and safety performance
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ISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

Key to strategic priorities:

1

2

Optruse the bus ress for t~e UK s net-ze-o revoiution

Grow marke: share revenues and protitabdity significantly

Working capital management and funding

Link to strategic priorities: 1 2 3 4

Description
There 1s a risk that

The Group does not have the working capital
management and funding reguired to deliver
on 1ts strategy and future growth plans.

iT systems and cyber security

Link to strategic priorities: 1 2 3 4

Description
There 1s a risk that

Cormputer systemns outages and nterruptions could
affect the ability to conduct cay-to-day operations,
which could result in loss of sales and delays to cash flow.

Key systems could be breached causing financial loss,
data loss, disruption or damage and any theft or risuse
of data ~eld withir the Group's systems and this could
have both reputational and financ-al mplications for
the Group.

Brexit

Link to strategic priorities: 1 2 3 4

Description
Thers s arisk that

.

Fulc-um could be impacted by the UK's leaving the
European Unon by the end of 202C, particularly the
sLpply chain for goods sourced from within the EU

Additional timescales, tanffs o iImpaort cosrs related o
sourcing materials from tha EU would create addmonal
custormer cost and could mreduce delays in delivery

3 Generqate surplus zash with a strong balance sheet

4 Become a 'Times Top 100" employer

Risk status: = Nochange

Mitigating actions

The proceeds frow the saie of the Group’s dormestic cusiomer gas
connection assets and assoclatec meters 10 ESP significantly strengt-en
the Group’s halance sheet. Proceeads from the first tranche of the sale
were also used repay existing debt of £10 million in fUll, leaving the
business deb: free as at 1 Apr | 2020, other thar opersung lease
obligatons In granting commercial credit terms, careful sttention is
pad 0 the timing of cash receipts and paymeantes over the penod of
contract delivery. Where necessary, a deposit is requested from customers
prigr to commencing werk and Invoicing rmilestones with customers are
matched where possible to the invoicing patterns of our supply chain

We also continue to have strong relattonships witm our bank and are in
advanced discussions regard rng the provision of new facilities

Risk status: = No change

Mitigating actions

The Group's [T strategies are reviewed regularly t0 ensure they remain
appropriate, with business cortinuity and d saster recovery testing
perfarmed. We have a dedicated internal IT support team which works
closely with our external supoort advisers to ensare that regular updates
to technology. infrastructure, communications ana agphcaion sysiems
occur The Group has advanced central sed hardware and software
secunty in place to ensure protection of commercial and sensitive data
For new IT projects, our technology advisers are utilised in conjuncton
with internal project management, restricting access 1o data, systers
and code and ensurng al! systams are secure and up to date.

Risk status: — Reduced

Mitigating actions

The Group continues to manitor and assess the nnpac: of various
scenarios in refaton to Brexit We consicer the impact of EU-sourced
matenals o1 every applicabie project snd manage tris to 2nsure customer
expectations on patential cost and ame mpact are managed The Group
has updatad its customer tarms accordingly to provide protaction
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

OUR SUSTAINABLE APPROACH

1

Fulcrum takes its environmental, social and governance (ESG)
responsibilities seriously and is committed to being a sustainable
business that is prepared for, and supports, a netzero future.

To deliver its vision, the Group has developed a sustainability
strategy that details the actions we take, and will take, to ensure
we do the pest we can for our people, our environment and

our future.

Daren Harris
Chief Executive Officer

OUR FOUR STRATEGIC PILLARS:

DELIVERING VALUE TO
OUR CUSTOMERS

Understand our customers’ needs, build
relationships through trust and transparency
and utilise our expertise to offer long-term value.

Read more on page 30

OPERATING
RESPONSIBLY

Run our operations responsibly to drive
efficiencies, minimise our impact on the
environment, promote integrity and achieve
industry leading safety performance.

Read more on page 32

ACCELERATING THE UK’S
NET-ZERO REVOLUTION

Deliver critical infrastructure to meet the
nation’s and customers’ net-zero carbon
ambitions and manage climate related risks.

Read more on page 31

ENGAGING
OUR PEOPLE

Develop highly skilled teams, which are
healthy and happy and work together
in a diverse and rewarding workplace.

Read more on page 33
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DELIVERING VALUE TO OUR CUSTOMERS

What this means to us

« We want to be the best for service in our Industry and we
always aim to bulld long-tern and successful relationships
with our customers

= Customer service excellence s integrated into our values
and 1s core t¢ the way we approzch cur work

» We develop relationships taeough trust and transparency.
to ensure we deliver tie best possible service, continually
imprave and identify ways to achieve compettive advantage

+ We make signifizant nvestmants in specialist skils and
knowledge to ensure we have the capability to delver zritca
infrastructure to supoort our customrers low carkon ambitions.

Repeat business

58%

Be transparent and responsive to customer

and stakeholder feedback

Bulding trust, through engaging ard operating with
honesty and transparency, is cracial to developing the
customer relatiorships that will underpin ousiness growth
and this is a fundamental element of the Group's values
and service excellence culure

Customers who
rated service as “great”

89%

{rated us G or 1G out of 10
far service}

We engage customers on every project 1o understard how
well we delivered for them Its purpose is to caoture feedback
on how we parformed, and tha: feedback is used to infarm
imprevernents in how we deliver for our customers, Identify
ways we can provide addec value and understand cur
competitive pesition, For customers with higher volumes of
repeat business we afso have regular performance review
meetings o disCuss cur service in depth and identify
opparturities to enhance our offer to tnem

We have seen sustained improvements in the percentage of
customers wha rated o.r service as “great” {9 or 10 aut of 1C),
reaching 89% this year T incentivise great service and
customer relaticnships. we recognise employees who are
praised by, or go above and beyond for. our customers with
guarterly "Spirit” awards and “Instart Recogninon” awards
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Continually improve in-service delivery and respond
to evolving customer needs

We are committec to using customer feedback to improve,
irnovate snd differentiate the business as customer needs
and expectatons avolve

InFYZ", we wll also be reporting sentiment .sing the net
promaoter score (NPS) system The NPS scoring system provides
a better indication of whether customers would use us agai~
and recommend us To ensure that we always secure an accurate
recrasentation o customer senument, it will be validated through
new qualitative customer surveys and regular performance
meetings Wa are also buillding stronger, more collaborative
relazionships with key customers and the bodies that ~epresent
their Incustries, 1o ensura that we remain prepared to meet
their evolving needs i a changing energy landscace.

As we move towards a net-zer future, there 1s some uncartay
arcund how ou- customers will be obliged to heat and power
ther developments, and this s an emerging concern for them
We are making it clear tha: we are here ta help and support by
monitorirg industry developments ard providing advice on how
changas in energy regulation may impact ther developments
now and 1n the future

Develop our capabilities, experience

and strategic partnerships

Fulcrum's electricity and gas capabilities put us in a strong
position to supcort customers by cocordinating ther ut lity
infrastructure and energy requiremeants to achieve time and
cost efficiencies and we continue o develop oar molt-utib ty
service offering to enhance this

We are also exploring emerging green technologies that
will complement more tracitional usilizy infrastructare o
power and heat developments and see this as key to
supportirg a net-ze o revolution

O s strategic relationship with ESP provices added
customer value by enabling us to compete on larger

sites for customers who have trusted us with their smailer
developments The innavative adoptien solunons we can
offer collaboratively give develcpers greater choice and
provide options for long-tarm customer value, for example
by raducing ongoing network or enargy charges

Utilise our expertise to support our customers’
low-carbon transition

As the energy landscsepe in the UK changes, we will help
our customers by providing support and advice an ther
obligations as we move towards a nat-zero future We are
committed to enabling cur customers to reduce therr carbon
impact by using our expertise and kreadth of offering o
irtroduce “green aptions” for their develocrent These a-e
alternative utihty infrastructure sclutions that will achigve

a lower carbon impact
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ACCELERATING THE UK’S NET-ZERO REVOLUTION

What this means to us

+ By connecting the nanon in 2 sustainacle way, we are
helping the UK mest its ne-zero carbon targets and
ultimately reduce t~e impact of climate charge

« Through the diversifization of our services we are working
to icentufy innovative solutions that will drive the nation's
low carbor transinoen

Through the appropnate governance and rnisk-management
processes, we seek o actvely manage twe physical and
trarsitonal chmate related risks for our business and we

are proactively redicing the carbon emiss ons in our
business operations.

Reduction in fuel consumption
8%

0
Support the UK's net-zero carbon goals
Cur industry has 2n important role t¢ play in enakling the UK
to deliver 1ts net-zero revolution, and we take our resoonsibility
to support this sericusly We arg excited by the oppertunities
this transformation presents and are committed to using our

utidity iInfrastructure knowledge ard cacabilities to play a part
I~ supaorting the _K to achieve its net-zerc ambiticns.

We commit t¢ do this by reducing our own carbon impact, by
helping our customers delver vital energy infrastructare that
supparts & net-ze o future a~d by enakbling cur customers to
make more informed, “greerer’ choices In how tney heat

and power their developments

Through ou- broad capabilities and experience, we are
strengly positioned to support the UK to achieve its net-zero
ambtions. We are already delivering services and solutions
that are contributing o & greener future, such as designing
and builldirg electric vehicle charging irfrastructare,
delivering smart meter exchange grogrammes and providing
solutions to power and maintain renewable enargy generatirg
infrastructure, Including battery storage sites, wind farms and
solar farms

Reducmg the carbon impact of therr operations i1s becoming
increasingly Impertant to our cLstomsrs, especially as tneyr
awareness of impending or future obligat ons increases Jur
knowledge and capakilit es can help them select options “or
therr new developments that alsg consider carbon impact,
as well as engineering and cost

To support the smart energy revelution, we provice flexible
and customer-certric smart metaer exchange programmes
naticnally and this has seen us become the supplier of choice
for many emerging or spec.alist ene gy supplers We are
engaging pricrity UK energy suppliers with our services to
support therr to achieve their smart meter obligatiorsin an
efficient way and cur scalable delivery model positions os
srongly to doths

Reduce carbon emissions from our business operations
We commi to reducirg our own carbon impast by
reducing the emissions ‘rom our cperanions and we rake

our respansikzility to do this seriously

In the year, we tocused heavily or planning and operational
efficiency to ensure that the carbon impact from our activity
s mirimised and began trials an electric excavators as an
altermative to diesel powered cnes. We have also been
working collaboratively with our fleet provide: on plans o
increase the number of electric company cars and have
several Incentives, including free electric vehicle charging
facilities at cur head office, to support uptake

To ensure that we robusthy 1dentufy our carbon footprint,

and track and measure the success of cur carbon -educton
plans, we have commissioned the Carbon Trust to implement
its "Footpnrt Manager” data collection and reporting service
to enable us to irclude relevant data recurred by the Streamlired
Energy and Caroon Reporting reguiations This datais i~ the
process of being collates and once availlable will be iIncluded
in future years

We see this as the first step na

collaborative relationship wth the

Carbon Trust, whose capatilit es and

experience in reducing carbon impact

will enable us to develop the Group's
carbon reduction roadmap and will support us in enabihing
our customers to Make greenar choices to do the same

Invest in sustainable product innovation

Positioning the business for a net-zero future 1s a strategic
prionty for the Groug This means we commis to offer a full
product portfolio, including reriewable ene-gy generating
options, that will give our customers greater and unceasingly
greener choices 1o power and heat their crojects We are already
explering renewable product options that will complemenr a
rmare traditional multi-utihity infrastructure package and are
engaging customers on potential tral schemss
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OPERATING RESPONSIBLY

What this means to us

+ We don'tjust ‘do the right thng” - we are commitied o
reducing cur impact on the environrment, managing our
supply chain more effectively and ensuring we actively
manage our code of conduct policigs to minimise any risks
to the businass and our wider stakehclders

= Rurring our operations effectively and considerately 1s essential
for driving efficiencies, saving costs and protecting resources

« We are constantly striving to develop a zero-harm
wokplace, and we amm to achieve industry leading safety
performance which 1s frmly embedded within our culture

= We are proud to supocrt the local communities where we
operate We actively support volunteernng, ercourag ng our
employees to take part in fundraising activities and gve
time to lccal causes

RIDDOR
incident rate

0.00

Denated in

charitable giving
127 £5,200
Build a zero-harm culture

The wellbeng of aur people. cur cuastormers anda the communites
we work In1s our highest prionty We always put safety first
and never compremise

Consecutive Gold Awards
from the Royal Society
for the Prevention of
Accidents (RoSPA)

17

Volunteering
hours

A safety-first strategy 18 1n place

to ensure zero harm and aithcugh
this 1s well embedded into our
calture and operatons, we are Never
complacent Cgre to our values is
the Spirit of “SAFE”, which undergins
all activity and empowers our people
to challenge arything unsafe
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We have a dedicated compliance function, invest in regular
comphance and safety training and have rocust safery processes
and systems in place These, coupled with a strong focus on
behavioural safety ard sringant audit regimes. ensure we
maintain zero harm,

The execution oF our safety strategy resultec in a 0.00
RIDDOR incident rate and being awarded our 17th
consecutive RoSPA Gaold Award in the yea-.

Manage our resources in a responsible way

ltis our 2im to always manags our rescurces responsikly

In the year we improved resource management, schaduling
efficiency and stock managemean: We alsc introduced
measuras to mirimise waste anc -educe single-use plastics
across our operat ons Working with tne Carbon Trust, we will
maenitar and acourately measure the pos tive impact of managing
our resources 11 ever moreasingly respons ble ways

Engage our supply chain to become more sustainable

Our focus n FY21 will be to recuce the carbon imoact across or
supply chain, as well as our own operations, and sub-contractor
and supplier sustainab Lty credentals will play an ncreasingly
important part in our ore-gualification and selectior processes

Engage with external bodies to identify evolving
regulation and shape future policy

We angage with, are members of and have senior
representation on. several “elevant indust y bodies and
groups. ircluding the Indesendent Networks Asscciation
(INA), the Energy and Unlities Alliance (EUA), the Renewable
Energy Assaciation (REA! 2nd the House Buillders Federation
(HBF) Industry body rep-esentation and participation provige
a platfarm for iIndust-y coliaboration, to share insight and o
engage and influence govarnment bodies on future palicy.,
and we take a proactive and ccllaborative approach to th's,

Promote integrity and reduce compliance risk

Integrity is one of our core Spint values and we expact, and
nurture, integrity in everythirg we do We set clear expectations
on how our oeople behave anc cperate and th sis set outin
our code of condust We also provide additicnal raining ard
coachirg on areas including data security and anti-bribery, to
ersure that we remain complant on specific focus arcas

Give back to the community

We are comm tted to giving back to our cormmunities

and supportng charitable causes, and we encourage and
enalble our ceople to take part in valurteenng and fund-aising
activities. Through our "“Community Spirt” initiative, the
Group has established a partnership with Bluebell Wood
Children’s Fospice and Bury Drop In, a local nomeless charity.,
We support them, along with several national charties,
through a variety of volunteering and fundraising initiatives

In the vear, our pecple spent 127 hours volunteering and

we donated £5.200 in total from fundraisirg activities
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ENGAGING OUR PEOPLE

What this means tous

- We have a strong values-led culture and we encourage
everyone to live by our values and behaviours We ach eve
this by providirg an ergagirg. diverse and supportive
environment where people want to work, develop and
learn frorm eac~ other

+ Through cur emaloyee engagement srogramme, we
actively respond to employee colcerns 1o e1sure we
engage, reward, recognise and retan our paople

« Weare also deeply committed to sLppaorting a range of
intiatives to safeguard the physical ard mental wellbe ng
of our pecple We listen to every voice and ensure we
proactively respond o all employee feedback and needs

Employee engagement score
{out of a maximum of 5)

5.1

Male employees Female employees

1% 23%

Engage with our employees

It1s vital that we Fave a truly engaged workforce as our people
are critical to the Group's success A culture of positive
engagement supoorts us to recruit and retain the best and
most talented people, develop a high-performance culture
and, importantly, ensure our people are healthy, happy and
work together in a diverse ana -ewarding workplace.

To support employee ergagement, we promaorte a culture of
regular open, clear and transparent communicaticns across
muttiple channels This includes a weekly business undlate
trom the leadership team and daily updates using a socal
redia collabaratior toal, Workplace

Employee feedback 1s vital o idenufying how happy and
mctivated our pecple are and we capture this thraugh regular
one to ones with line managers, emoloyee forums and a
biann.al People Survey. The most recent survey recorded
overali engagement at 3.7 out of 5 We explore all feedback in
detall and use it to Inform our engagement plans and priontes.
The People Survey is being redevelopad in FY21 to match
"Timas Top 100" employer cnteria 2nd will be supparted with
new "Pulse Surveys” intended to take the temperature of the
business at more regular intervals

Rewards and benefits

We air to have 2 culture where everyone’s conir bution is
valued ana rewarded We offer competitve packages with
attractive and flexible benefizs, including ann.Jal sharasave
(SAYE) schemes, T recruit ana ‘etair the best pecple We
have bullt a strong external bus ness network and we are
constantly manitaring external standa-ds to ensure our
rewards and benefits remain attractive and compet tive

Develop skills and talent

We are committed to having a culture that focuses on
bringing out the cest in our people Itis crucial to us tc be
able t3 offer all cur veople a clear career path We put a
strong emphasis o1 identifying talent and succession planning
activit s, and every persan in the Group has a personal
development plan, suppored with training, coaching and
professional development opportunities In FY21 we are
ntreducirg 2 new online learning management system {LMS)
that will be available to all people to enhance therr skills for
both structured development and flexible learning

We have an apprenticashic programme i pface o foster and
develco new talent and plan t expand our scheme In FYZ21: we
also offer work experience and have provided opportunities to
local schools and communities and the families of our emplovees

Foster a diverse and inclusive culture

We are an equal oppcriunities ermnpleyer and orovide an irclusive
environment for all cur people We are committed to fosterirg
inclusion and diversity and ensure that all cur employees can
develop to therr full potenual, regardless of race, gerder, naticnality,
age. dissbility, sexual orientation. religion or background

In tha year, we erhanced our recrurimenrt processes o
ensure that we always demonstrate our consistent, diverse
and inclusive approach to recruitrment

Support physical and mental wellbeing

We are deeply commutted to sLpporting the phys cal and
mental wellbeing of our people We have developed a strong
zero-harm culture and enhanced our commitrment (o mentat
ana emotional wellbeing in the year We introduced our first
fully rrained mental health first aider and it-s our plar to expand
the numbar of mental health first aiders in the business in FY2°
We also nave access 10 more specialist mental wellbeing services
via an external partner, offer a 24/7/385 wellbeing soluticr, by
providing support through our employee agsistance programme,
delivered mental fitness warkshops, and ongoing martal
fitness support. In the year

Encourage everyone to live by our values

We nurture a strong, values-led cufture and we set clear
axpectations on how we operate in ina with our values ana
hehavicurs Values play an important part ir our recruitment
and selection processas and we measure our pecple’s
performance against our values, rewardirg positive examoles
with "Spirit” awards and “Instant Recognition” awards We are
also investing in a new behavioural macping nitative to ersure
expectations are always clear and we drive consistency i»
behaviour for all employees
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE Committee membership key:

NON-EXECUTIVE A Auot Commitiee

PHILIP HOLDER

NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

Appointed to the Board
73 January 2011

Board Committees

AV R

[

Experience

Prilip has cver 30 years” expenence in the utiities sector. From 1937
to March 2007, Phil'p was Managing Director of East Surrey Heldings,
the mid-cap water and gas utiities busingss. Until March 2010, Prii p
was full time Cperancnal Adwviser to The Infrastructure Partnership

Skills
* Strategic business ranagement in the gas, electncity and water sectors

Meetings attended

STEPHEN GUTTERIDGE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRZCTOR

Appointed to the Board
25 January 2011

Board Committees

A \\‘P):

Experience

Stepnen bas over 35 yvears exper ence in anergy and utihties,
beginring with Shellin marketing anc o trading In 1888, he joined
Amerada Hess, managing its ol trading ard its UK gas businesses
From 1992 10 1997 he was Managing Director of Supply at Seeboard ple.
Stephen held exec.utive and non-executive oositions in Ferguscn
International, the Internazional 2etroleurmn Exchange and CORGI,
Ha was Chairman of Star Znergy, a UK oil and gas storage ocerator,
from IPO throLgh te its acquisition by Petronas, Chairman of President
Petroleur; 2 Nan-Executive Director 2nd Charman of T2 Groug,
which was successfully sold to Pearson in 2011, znd Chairman of
Nightrawk Energy

Skills
= Strategy
v Remuneration polhicy

« Coroorate governance

Meetings attended
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R Remuneration Committee

—
_+ Char ot Committes

DAREN HARRIS

CHIZF EXEC_TIVZ OFFICER

Appointed to the Board
24 June 2079

Experience

Daren joined the Company and its Board as Chief Financial Offizer

on 24 Jure 2019, bringing significant experience gained In vanous
senior and board level roles in the construction. contracting, electr cal
eng neering and energy services sectars Frior to joining the Group,
he was Group Finance Director of the Byrne Group, a cerstraction
services provider which dunng his tenure achieved turrover in excess
of E30C milhor, and Group Finance Director of NG Ba ley, a £400 million
turnover eng neering and services business Jaren 1s a member of the
Insuture of Chartered Accountants n trglard and Wales

Skills
= Straregic leadershin

+ Commercial and financial leadership

Meetings attended

Craren joined the Board on 24 lune 2019

TERRY DUGDALE

GROUP CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

Appointed to the Board
29 January 2020

Experience

Ter-y has over 29 yea s’ experignce in the multi-utiity contracting
secter and has held several senior positions in the utility industry
Fiom 2314 to 2018, Terry was a Trachng Director of wolseley Infrastructure
cornpanies, where he specialised inidenufying and implementing
business alignment ard growth strategies and successfully doubled
revenues and ncreased mrarging 1 vanous divisions Previously, he saent
two vears as Operations Drector at Future Ene gy Group and was

UK Construction Manager at GTC for five years, establisking its direct
labour organisation during his tenure Terry a3 an established track
record of driving \nnovatio and performance in the operational
delivery of utility infrastructure in the independent mult-utility contracting
sector He s an Incorporated Engineer and member of the Instiute of
Gas Engineers and Managers and the Institute of Directors

Skills
= Leadimg and mplemeanting performance improvements
and efficiancies

= Strategic business growth

Meetings attended

Terry joined the Board or 29 January 2220
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JEREMY BRADE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appointed to the Board
12 June 2020

Experience

Jeremy s a partner at Harweod Capital LLP a substantal sharehclder
in Fulcrum, He 1s ar expenenced investor ir a range of situations
incluchrg utiities infrastructure He has been a member of the boards
of several UK and international public and private companies He s
currently a Nen-Exgcutive Director of FIH ple. Jeremy served as a
diplarmat in the Foreign and Commonweaith Office and as an

Army off cer, He holds a degree from the Uriversity of Oxford

Skills
« Srrategic develapment and investmentin utility and energy.

Meetings attended

leramy was appomied after all meenngs had raken place

JENNIFER BABINGTON

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTCR

Appointed to the Board
1 May 2020

Experience

lennifer has extensive expenence in law, finance and industry. Having
commenced her career as a corporate finance lawyer at Norton Rose
Fulbrighrt, she later moved into the renewable energy and infrastructure
sector as Legal Coursel of Elemert Power Limited, a UK based rerewables
company, overseeing 1ts wind and solar developments in Northern
Europe Following this, Jennifer served as the Cruef of Staff at the U<
Green Investimeart Bank, the UK governmert's green investrmeant fund,
estabhisher 10 commercizhise green invest~ents 11 the UX, and was
responsible, amongst other things, for advising its Chief Executive on
strategy ternifer has a Master's degree n Junsprudence from

Oxford Unversity

Skills

+ Legal and strategic counsel
» Renewable energy

« Sustainactity

= Green investmeants

Meetings attended

rennifer was acpol ted afler sl imaetings had taksn olace

JONATHAN TURNER

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appointed to the Board
12 June 2020

Experience

Jonathan Turner is the owrer and Chief Executive of The Bayford Growp,
comprismg a diverse number of entrepreneunial compan-es,
predominantly in the energy and property sectors, With over 20 years
experence INdownstream ene gy, Jonathan has lec = vanety of star-up
businesses, management buvouts, mergers, acquistions and cisposals
The giocal move away from fossil fuefs has led Jonarkan into the
supply of electricrty, gas and electr ¢ vehicle anarging points i the UK
ard Netherlands Jonathan 1s a substantial shareiolder m Falerum

Skills
+ Strategy and innovation in the enargy and property 5ectors

Meetings attended

loratran was appointad after all mesbirgs haa taken place

WAYNE HAYES

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Retired
30 Apnl 2020

Experience

Wayne has nearly 40 years expenence n the electrnoty industry
across a varaty of engineenng and management rales Wayne began
his career at Eastern Electricity Board, where he held vanous senior
management postions including Head of Enginearing. Following ths
Wayne joined Lamva, a privately owned utility se-vices provider which
subseqguently became par: of the Freedom Group of Companies,
owned by Sp.ce plc. ana Wayne became Group Managing Director for
Freedom Wayne co-founded Matr x Networks Renewaoles in 2012,
and led the business as CED and latterly as Chairman through a penoo
of ambitious growth, hawving acqguired Maintach, and formed the
Dunamis Group Wayne s a memizcer of the Institution of Eng-neering
and Technology.

Meetings attended

+ Martin Harnson attended six meetings

« RHazel Griffiths attended two meetings
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

RICHARD JUPP

DIVISIONAL MANAGING
DIRECTOR - DUNAMIS
AND MAINTECH

Experience

Richard has been in the elecirnaity
ndustry for almost 40 years,
starung withthe CEGB as a
Student Enginegr, Richard moved
inte high voltage contracting in
1996 and has held several se~ior
pasitions, ncluding Managing
Deractor of Maintech Power

Skills

* Extensive slectricdy industry
and operational knowledge.

¢ Proven record of comphant
delvery

(RAIG BAUGH

DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY
AND MARKETING

Experience

Crawg has been 10 the utlity indastry
for 19 years, pravicusly working

far Transcc and National Grid

He has spent the |ast 13 vears
specialsing i strategy. marksting,
communications and stakeholder
engagement

Skills

* Strategic planning

= Marketing strategies

* Siakeholder engagement
and communications

* Pubhc relations axpertise
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ANDY HIRST

GROUP BUSINESS
DEZVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

Experience

andy has worked in the
corstructior industry supply
chain for 26 years and nas held
various seniar sales and businass
development roles Prior to joiming
Fulcram as Group Business
Cevelepment Director, Andy

was a Trading Director of Walseley
Infrastructure companies

skills

» Business develocpment strategy
and growth

« Customer retenticn a~d growth
strategres

+ Developing high-performing
sales teams and cultures

TIM HOUTBY

DIRECTOR OF SMART
METERING

Experience

Tim has over 20 years’ expernence
in the UK utiities metaring sector
formerly as Managing Director or
Meter Provida Ltd, and latterly as
Managing Director of Stark Utility
Funding Ltd, 8 successful MAM/MAP
business. As Director of Smart
Metaring, Tim s respensible for

the development and operation of
Fulcrum's smart matanng businesses

Skills

* Sector knowleage and strategy

* Smart metering gaovar-ment
legislatian

* Leadership of iInnovative teams
with a track record of delivery

CARLY GILCHRIST

ASSET DIRECTOR

Experience

Carly has bee~ in the ut ity
industry for over 10 years,
beginning her career at National
Grid Sne was the * rstrecruit on
Fulerum's graduate programme
and oquickly progressed o lead the
Commercial, Celivery and tren
Asset divisions i semor roles

Carly sits on the Boad of the Gas
Inaustry Safety Group, charrs the
Independent Networks Association
ragulation sub-committee and was
the gas ndustry's Young Parson of
the Year in 2012 and Manager of
the Year in 2019

Skills

« Asset strategy and maragement

= Transformational change
leadership

= Incustry regulation and
governance.

JO THOMPSCN

HEAD OF PEQPLE
AND CULTURE

Experience

fo 15 an exper enced people and
culiure specialist She has developad
and implementad HR strategies
and has a strong track record of
leading cultural change inatives
Jo has been with the Group for
eight years and 's a trained mental
wellbaing first aider

Skills

« Emplayee engagement.

« Cuftural change strategy.

« Emplovment law.

» Mental health a~d
wellbeing adviser

IAN PATTISON

INTERIM CHIEF FINANCIAL
QFFICER

Experience

lar has held sermor fnancial

roles at Clugston Group

Cirtas Document Management,
Cape ple and Boaing fAustralia)

A gualified accountant with an MBA
from a leading ousiness scheol in
Australa lan has also completed
CFO assignments Ir the rmodular
CONETrUction sector

Skilis
¢ Finance accounting nisk and
corporate strategy
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CHAIRMAN'’S INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE

A CULTURE OF STRONG
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We are committeq to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance that ensure our continued Integrity and development

Fulzrum remains dedicatea to the highest standards of corporate
gavernance as it con~ects tre UK onts journey to a net-zero future

The Board and its Commitiees play an active role in guiding the
Group and lead ng its strategy and we are determined to ensure
that we have z diverse mix of skills, capabilites and experience

10 steer the Group “orward ir an evolving energy landscape. In a
puUsiNess conuruing 1 develop at pace, we mantain a culture of
strong governanze that underpins and encourages growth, whilst
ensJring effective ¢ontrols and safeguards are In place

The values and eshical standards of the Group rest unon the
principles of its "Spint” values, Safe, Partnership, Improvement
Rehability, Integrity and Together, and the Board see<s to promote
and exenplify these values i~ how it cischarges its resporsibilit es
These crincioles are both erhically based and commarcially
essential te delvering our strategy and growth and to the
long-term success of te Greup

Statement of compliance with the Quoted Companies
Alliance {QCA) Corporate Governance Code

The Company's shares are quoted on the Alternative Investment
Market of the London Stock Exchange (AIM) and the Company

1s subject 1o the cortinuing requirements of the AIM Rules. The
Company s required to apply a recognised corporats governzance
code and to report on how it comples with that code The Roard
has elected to adopt the QCA Corporate Govarnance Code The
Board s aware of its responsioility for overall corporate governance,
anc for supervising the general affairs and business of the Company
Exceptions to compliance with the QCA Code are provided n

the "Compliance” section that follows

Changes to our Board

As Chairman, { am respons ble for the leadership and effective
working of the Board and for ensuring that it fulfils its responsiblities
to all the Grouo's stakeholders | am also responsible for promotng
a culture of apenness and debate, in addition 1o ensuring productive
relations between Executive and Non-Executive Directors

On 1 October 2018, we announced the departare of Chief
Executive Mart.n Harnisor, who stepped down with immed.ate
effact His successor, Daren Harris. joined the Company and its
Board as Chief Financial Officer on 24 June 2019 and was appointed
as Chief Executive on 29 January 2020 Daren brings sigrificant
experence, gained in vanous semor and board level roles nthe
construction, contracting, electnical engineering and energy
sarvicas sectors, to the Group The Group's senmor team was alss
strengthenad with the appomniment of Terry Dugdale as Chief
Operating Officer in 2018 Terry has an established track reccrd
of driving irnovation and performance in cperational delivery

in the independent multi-utlity contracting sectar and he was
aspointed to the Board as an Executive Director on 29 fanuary 2020
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CHAIRMAN’'S INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE CCNTINUED

DELIVERING STRONG GOVERNANCE

Changes to our Board continued

The combined expertise that Caren and Terry have across the
independent multi-utility, contrazung and energy services sectors are
cemelermnentary and will be invaluable 1n delivening the Group's sirategy
and long-term growth at an exzitng time for our end user markets

Wayne ~ayes, No~-Exacutive Director. retired from the Board
and ail tusi~ess activity o~ 30 April 2020 for personal -easons

Jennifer Babington was aoponted as Non-Executive Director with
effect from 1 May 2020 Her specialist knowledge in the renewables |
sector and green investments space is particularly exciting and
will assist the Groug In capitalising on the significant long-term
elect-ical opportunities avalable 1o us as the UK decarborises

s energy.

Jonathan Turner ard Jeremy Brade were appointed as
Non-Executive Directors or 12 June 2020 following the establishment
of Relationsh p Agreerments with Harwood Capital LLP and

The Bayford Group

leremy has peen investing n UK smaller corpanies for 19 years
and has deep experience of serving on the beards of private and
listed companies and developing therr strategies to enhance value
for all sharehalde's

Janathan 1s the owner and Chief Exacutve of The Bayford Group,
Fulerum's largest shareholder, and which comprises 2 diverse number

of entrepreneurial companies predom nantly in the energy a~d
property seclors.

Jonatha~ and Jeremy are, and represent organisations which are,
substantial shareholders in the business and the Group s delighted
now have thair insight experience and skills on the Board

The breadth of knowledge and diverse experience of each new
appontment will further enhance the Board and its iIndependent
judgement and will complement the next phase of the Group's ‘
strategic devalopmeant and growth

Although the composition of the Board changed 1n the year, the
overall governance arrangements have remained in place t-roughout.

Board transition plan

The Company has agreed a transition plar o the Board, wheraby
two new independent Non-Executive Directors may be apponted to
the Board prior to the conclusion of the Company's Annual General
Meeting in 2021, one of whom will assume the -ole of Chairman

It has also been agreed that Stephen Guttendge (Non-Executive
Director) and |, 25 Charrman, will rernaim on the Board until the
conclugsion of the Company's Annual General Meeting in 2027
and three months “cllowing the sopointment of both rew
incdependsant Directors.

Stakeholder engagement

Engagemeant with our sizkehaolders is fundamental to the
long-term success and sustainability of our business Stakehclder
feedback enables us to max<e nformed cacisions and the Board
recognises its responsibility and takss this seriously

To understand and cons.cer stakeholder views as part of

izs decision-rraking process, the Board remaing committed to
developing proactive, open and increasingly effective dialogue
with all our staketalder groups to learn, improve and develop
our business

More informazion on how the Board engages with cur
stakeholders 1s 01 pages 12 to 14

Philip Holder
Non-Executive Chairman
8 August 2020

THE BOARD

Philp Holder (Chairman}

Mart n Harnson (stepped down * October 2013)
Hazel Griffiths (resigned 31 Mav 2019}
Stephen Guttendge
Wayne Haves {-etred 30 Apnl 2020)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Philip Holder (Chairman)
Stephen Guitendge
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Daren Harris (gpponted 24 June 2019)
Terry Dugdale tappointed 29 January 2020)
Jenmifer Babington (appointed 1 May 2020)
Jonathan Turner {2pconted 12 June 2020;

Jeremy Brade {appointed 12 June 2020)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Stephen Gutteridge (Chairman)
“hilip ~older
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RECOGNISING THE QCA CODE

Compliance

The Board recognisas the value ard importance of high standards
of corperate governance a~d observes the reguirements of the
Corporate Governance Code published by the Quoted Companies
Al:ance (QCA) The Beard believes that the application of the QCA
Code will support the Company’s mecium o long-term success
by ensuring that strong corporate governance procedures are in
place The intention of the Board is to use and communicate the
principles of the QCA Code in order to creats a positive corporate
culture and to mitigate business rigks

The Company complies with all the provisions of the QCA Code
with the exception of the following:

= Nomiration Committee: The Comoany does not have a
secarate Nomination Committes as the Board is small and
relatively stable Any appointments are for the matter of the
Board as 3 whole

» Audit Comrmrittee The reles and responsibilities of tne Audit
Committee can be found with n "Principle 9 and a separate
Audit Commitree Report is nat produced

+ Board evaluation Thewe has been no formal evaluation of the
Board It1s anticipated that this w il occur in the future

Principle 1: Establish a strategy and business model
which promote long-term value for shareholders
Fularams a multi-unility infrastructure and services prov der
operating across the whaele of mainland UK. The Group’s man
business 15 the design. bulld, ownership and mantenance of
energy connections and their related utilty infrastructure

The Group operates across the Fousing, industrial and
commercial, smart metering and maintenance and ownership
sectors and s services rarge from the design, installation,
modification, ownership and mainterance of ut Ity infrastructure
for projects of all sizes and complexity. Fulcrum s alse a Meter
Asset Manager (MAM) and Meter Ooerator (MGP). owning and
operating meter assels across mainland LK. The ousiness is also
licensed as an Independent Gas Trarsporter fiGT] and Independent
Distribution Network Cperator {iIDNC), owning and operating gas
and electrical assets that cornect properties to the main UK gas
and elect icity networks

Business model

O vision:

To play an essential part in the UK's zero cathon and smart
ane-gy revolution

Qur strategic objectives
» Optimise the business for the UK's ret-zero revalution

« Grow market share revenues and profitability sigmificantly
- Generate surplus casn w th a strong balance sl eet
« Beccme a "Times Top 10C” emplover

Fulerum utilises its strengths, capab Ites and rescurces to
provice long-term, sustainable value for all its stakeholders
Our full nvestment creposition can be found on pages 4 and 5

Principle 2: Seek to understand and meet shareholder
needs and expectations

The Board 1s commitzed to establishing and mantaning positive
relaticns with the Company's sharehclders as they provide good
perspectives on corporate governancs matters and strategy,
amongst other things. As Chief Executive, Daren Harris has
responsibility for maintaining appropriate communications witk
sharsholders and aralysts, advised by the Group's nominated
aclviser and broker, Cen<os Securities PLC, jont brokear, N+t Singer,
and financial PR consultants. Capital Marke: Comrmunicat ons
{Camarco) Ltd Tha Company mantans regular dialogue with
investors to discuss the Group's performance and strategy, through
regular results roadsnows, Annual General Meetings and other
corporate events. The Non-Executive Chairman and all other
members of the Board are alsc avalaale for discussicns with
shareholders as required or requested

The Company monitors the constituents of its share register to
ensure that its investor relations communications are appropnately
coordinated with its shareholder base The Board is provided with
reports preduced oy eguity analysts and the results of consultations
are chiscussed at Board meetings In addition, the feedback
received following inves:or presentations or meetings with
shareholders and anzlysts s shared with the Eoard

The Group resoands formally to all quenes and requests for
information from existing end prospective shareholders In
addition, the Group seeks to regularly wpoate sharsholders
throuch stock exchange announcemeants and wider nress
releases onits activities.

All Directors attend the Corrpany’'s Annual General Meeting

and are available to answer guestions at the meeting or privately.
The Charman is also available for aiscussions w th shareholdars
as required o- requested Published inforration. including
regulatory news, is available on the Group’s website,
https:/finvestors fulcrum.co uk

More information on how the Board engages with our
stakerolders is on pages 12 to 14

Principle 3: Take into account wider stakeholder and social
responsibilities and their implications for long-term success
The Board understands that the success of the Zroup relies on
crezting and mantaining strong relationships with a wide var ety of
stakeholders, including our employees, sucpliers and customers

Engaging with our stakehalders strengthens our relationships
and helps us make better business decisions 1o deliver on our
commitments The Board is regularly updated on wider sta<ehaolder
engagement and feedbac< to stay abreast of stakeholger insights
into the 1ssues tmat mattar mast to them and cur business, and

to enakle the Board to understand and consider these 1ssues

N decision making

The GroLp's sustainability strategy on pages 29 ta 33 in the
Strategic Report of the Group's Annual Report crovides further
detals on the Groun's commitment to sustainabihity and corporate
responsibility ard more information on how the Group engages
witn our stakeholders is on pages 12 te 14
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT CONTINUED

Principle 3: Take into account wider stakeholder and social
responsibilities and their implications for long-term success
contiued

The Group's emplovees are at the heart of all that we achieve

and we are commitied 10 ensuring that we have the right paople
working with us and we manage this process throLgh a rogus:
people strategy Treir skill, commitment, drive and enthusiasm
are vitally important to the long-term success of our business and
we belisve that sustained iInvestmant In our people’s development
and welfare builds a stronger business We maintain communication
with our emuolcyees through a nurber of formats, Including
irdividual one-to-ocne sessions tearm meetings, weekly business
updates and whole Group "Spint” updates We continue 1o evolve
our anpreac™ to employee engagemeant and undertake a biznnual
people survey Iis purpose is to achieve a greater understand'ng
of employee expenence and engagement and 1o drive workfarce
related decisiors

Safety is paramount in our organisation Qur “SAFE" intiative datals
the fundamental safety behaviours expested of all Fuicrum pecole
and this1s communicated to all employees through both formal
corporate commuonications and informal discussions and remincers
It1s our policy to organise and mairtain safe working arrangements
for all and to pretect the environment from unnecessary damage
The industry in whizh Fulcrum operates contains 'nherent safety
r:sks, so our continued focus on implament ng and encouraging
safe working practices 1s fundamentally impaortant to the Comoany
We remain committed 1o demanstrating excallence in all areas of
health, safety, environmental, enginearng and quality management
nall our working enviramments and displaying the spirt of "SAFE”
atall times

We continually challenge internal and external constrants with

the aim of simplifying the way we work, embedding systems ard |
automation to drive efficiencies and encouraging ou” peogle to
propose inrovative ways o° working We continue 12 streamling
internal processaes and deliver improved operational productivity to
help drive down the cost of delivery 1o enhance our competitiveness

We remain committed to being the most customer-focused
utility services partner To gauge how well we perform. we reguest
feedback on every project we deliver which we use ta develop
cur services We continue to achieve an encouraging result, with
89% of customers rating our service as “great” {2 or 10 out of 10)
(2019 80%)

We work 25 one team, in partrership with our supghers and
sub-contractors to share knowledge and expertise and improve
working practices We are inregular dialogue with our susphiers and
sub-contractor base and are comm tted to ensunng the integrity
of our supply char whch we confirmed n our anti-slavery and
arti-human trafficking statement This can be found on aur
website, https./finvestors fulcrum.co uk/modern-slavery-staterment

Principle 4: Embed effective risk management,
considering both opportunities and threats, throughout
the organisation

The Directors are respons:ble for the Group's internal

control systems and for reviewirg their effectiveness, wrilst
management takes on tre role of implementing these policies

It smould be recogrised that the Group's internal control systems
are designed tc marage, -ather than eliminate, the risk of failu-e
to achieve the Group's business cojectives and can cnly provide

reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material
misstaterment or loss
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The Group operalas a seras of controls to meet its needs
These controls include, but are not bm ted to, & clearly defined
organisaticnal structure, written policies, clear authosisation and
review procedures, a comprehensive znnuszl strategic plarring
and budgeting process and deta'led monthly renoerting

The annual budget s approved by the Board as part of its normal
responsibilities Inaddiion, the budget figares are regulany
reforecas: to facilitate the Board's urderstanding of the Group's
overall pesinon throughout the year and this reforecast s reported
1o the Board in adaiton to the reporting of actual results durirg
the year

Regarding risk management specifically, tne Audit Committes
recelves reports as and when required from managerent and
the external auditor concerning the systern of iInternal control ang
any material control weaknesses The exterral auditor provides
management with useful cortrol environment ingight through
formal dentinication of any specific control recommendations. as
well as being well placed to bring to managemert’s attention any
"mat topic” rratters that may be relevant. Any significant nsk issues
aie referred to the Board far consideration

The Board has considered the reed for an internal zudit function
but has concluded that, at this stage In the Group's develcpment,
the internal control systems in place are appropriate for the size
and complexity of the Group

The Group has a reasonably wice range of customers and
suppliers across its makets. This diverse approach reduces
the Company’s reliance on individual bus nesses, making the
Compary more rasilient to any potential issuas with its supply
chain, customers or specific markets

Principle 5: Maintain the Board as a well-functioning,
balanced team led by the Chair

The Board currently comprises of the Non-Execut ve Chairman,
twz Executive Directors and four other Non-Executive Directars
The Executive Cirectors are supported by independent
Non-Executive Directors with wide-ranging experignce Board
profiles are crovided on pages 34 and 35 along with details cn
the Board's composition 01 page 38

Of the Non-Executive Board mermbers, Philip Holder,

Stephen Guttendge and _ennifer Babington are all considerad

to be incependent Jonathan Turner and Jeremy Brade are

not cons:dered to be ndependent due to therr substantial
shareholdings The Board is satisfied that it hag a su table balance
between indecendence and knowledge of the Group. to enatle
it to digcnarge its duties and responsibilinies e“fectively

The Board ooerates both formally, threugh Board and
Committee meet'ngs. and informally, through regular conact
amongst Directors and senior executives Toe Board has a formal
schedule of ratiers reserved for its consideration and decsion,
which is reviewed arnually by the Board The schedule includes
the approval of the Group's strztegy. approval of capex over
£100k, annual and half year results and trading updates, review
of performarce, dividend pclicy, moritering risk and ensuring
adecuate financial controls are available The Boara s suppled
with information in a timely manner. in a form and quality
appropriate to enable it to discharge its duties
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The Board 1s supportad by both an ALdit Corrmittee and

a Remuneration Committee. The Aud t Committee has a key role
In overseeing the Group's risk managemeant and internal control
systems, as well as challerging the ntegrity of the Group's fnancal
results and announcements The Remuneratior Commitlee ensures
that the Group's remuneration policy 1S AapPropriate 1o encourage
and reward the conir butiors made by senizcr executives whilst
taking into account the views of sharehclders

The Board meets regularly (at least ning times a year), and there 1s
contact between meetings to crogress the Company's cusiness
Attendance by Directors at meetings of the Board and various
Committees is set cut in the "Board of Directors” section on
pages 34 ard 35. Following the acquisition of Cunamis, Board
meetings are also held at subsidiary offices These visits include
meeting wih employees and updates from senior leaders

The Executive Directors are expected 0 devote the whole
of therr tme, attenticn and ability to their duties, whereas the
Non-Executives have a lesser time commitment.

The Company nas effective procedures in place to monitar

and deal with conflicts of interest. The Boara 1s aware of the
other commitments and interests of its Directors, ang changes
to these commitments and intarests are reported to and, where
appropriate, agreed with the rest of the Board

Principle 6: Ensure that between them, the Directors have the

! necessary up-to-date experience, skills and capabilities

The Board corsists of the Nen-Executive Chairman, Philip Holdzar,
four Non-Executive Directors in Steshen Guitendge, lenmifer
Baomngton, Jonathan Turrer and Jeremy Srade and two Executive
Directors in Daren Harnis anc "erry Sugdale The Board is satisfied
that between :he Directors, It has an apcrop-iate balance of
industry. financial and public market experience tc operate
effectively. Company secretarial services are outsouiced o

TMF Global Serviges (UK) Limited

The Board makas decisions regardirg the appointment and
removal of Directors Direciors retire by rotation at reqular
intervals ir accordance with the Company's Articles of
Association, whicn stipulate that all Directors must stand for
re-election at least once every three years and that any naw
Directors appointed during the year must stand for electicn

at the AGM immediately following trei- appointment Therefore,
in the current yes~, Philip Holder, Stephen Gutteridge, Terry Dugdale,

+ Jennife: Babington, Jorathan “urner and Jeremy Brade will all

offer themselves for re-elaction

CASE STUDY

Post year end, the Group's Board was bolstered with the
appointment of three new Nan-Executive Directors, each
bringing new and diverse skills, experience and ideas that
complement the next phase of the Group's strategic
develogment and growth.

Jennifer contributes specialist knowledge in renewables
and in green investments which provides essential insight
in assisting the Group to capitalise on the opportunities
available to us as the UK decarbonises its energy. She has
strong ¢redentials in legal and strategic counsel, along with
experience in developing and implementing sustainability
strategies to deliver strong environmental, sccial and
governance (ESG).

AN ENHANCED BOARD WITH SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER REPRESENTATION

Jonathan owns and is the Chief Executive of The Bayford
Group, the Group's largest shareholder. Bayford comprises
several entrepreneurial companies across the energy and
property sectors and Jonathan has gver 30 years’ experience
in the energy markets. He is also a substantial shareholder
in Fulgrum.

Jeremy has been investing in smaller UK companies for

19 years and has served on the boards of a diverse range
of private and listed companies to develop their strategies
and enhance value for all stakeholders. Jeremy represents
Harwood Capital LLP, which is a substantial shareholder
in the business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT CONTINUED

Principle 6: Ensure that between them, the Directors have the
necessary up-to-date experience, skills and capabilities
continued

Trzining 15 availlable cn request, where appropr ate, anc the
Directors can obtain independent prafessional agvice at the
Group's expe~se n the performance of thieir dut es as Directors,
The Board s kept up w0 date with legal, regulatory and governance
matters by the Company Secretary. Tre Nor-Executive Directors
also have other exzernal appointments which helo keep their

sk llset up to date

The bizgraphies of the current Directors ave provided in

the “Board of Directors” section on pages 34 and 35 and

on our website, hitos://investars.fulerum co uk/who-we-are/
board-directors,

Principle 7: Evaluate Board performance based on clear
and relevant objectives, seeking continucus improvement
The compasition of the Board was refreshed duning FY20. with
Martin Harrisor and Hazel Gnffiths leaving their roles and Daren
Harris and Terry Dugdale jcining the Board as Executive Dirsctors
After the vear end. Wayne Hayes also retired as Non-Executive
Director and lennifer Babingtor, Jonathan Turner and Jeremy Brade
joined in the same capacity Tre Board has. to date, informally
reviewed the effectiveness of its performance as a urit, as well
as that of its Commuttees and the individual Drectors, A formal
irtarnal evaluation of the Boa-d's performance and that of its

two prngipal Committees will be performed in due course by
the Serior Non-Executive Director ard an evaluation of the
performance of ndividual Directors will be undertaken.

The review will include

- assessment and mon‘torng of the Company's strategy;

evaluation of monthly Board mesting agenda and
irformation flow;

« evaluaticn of risk and social responsibilities includ ng
ant-bnbery policies and environmental risks, and

« evaluation of the role and performance of tne Board Committees

We nurtare a culture that drives and supports the achigvement
of the Group's strategic olbjectives Divisional, team and individual
obiectives are setin ne with these wider Group objectives and
our "Spint” values

Performance against these criteria 1s monitored regularly and the
Group promaetes a h gh-performance culture that not only drives
and incentivises operaticns in line with its strategic objectives and
values, but also recognises and rewards people and teams who
go above and beyond to demaonstrate this
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Succession planring both at Beard level and within our senior
management team s vital to the stability and cortinued growth of
the Group a~d we place significant e~phasis cn this. All employess
have cantracts of employment wrich have notice perods
commensurate with their seniority to ensure sufficent time

o recrutand ersure a smooth handover where reguired

Principle 8: Promate a culture that is based on ethical
values and behaviours

The Board understands the impor:ance of setting the r.ght
culture within the Group One of the ways we ensure that the
Board's stratzegy and good governance are instilled intg t-e
culture of our business s through regular communications with
our senior employess The Executive Dirsctors regularly mest
with operztional management teams and employees across our
operating businesses

To moniter and promete a healthy corparste culture, the Eoard
clearly communicates the Group's strategic objectives, values
and expectations to its people inparticular, the Board promotes
a culture that has a clear focus on safety, custarner service and
people. Tha Board aims to lead oy example and do what 1s m the
bestinterest of the Company and regularly meets with employees

Our leaders and managers play a pivotal role in smployee
argagement and we have invested in lesdership development
thatis focused on ensuring our people managers hava the s<lls
and tools they need to create highly motivated, high-performirg
and engaged teams. Wa continue to avolve our approach 1o
employee engagement ana underta<e biannual people

surveys. Ther purpose 1S to achieve a greater understanding

of employee experence

The Group's core values are endorsed by our "Spint” values,
being Safe, Parinership, Improvernent, Reliability, Integnity and
Together These values are promoted by the Board and are visible
an internal cublications, as well as being incorporated In regular
busness-wide communications

The Board continually monitors the Group's corporate culture

and considers whethear it 15 stil aligned with the Group's business
model and strategy. as well as with wider etrical expectations of
stakeholders This happens througn egular communications with
alf stakeholders and observ ng best practice throughaout the
industry At present, the Board considers the Group's corporate
culture to emibocy sound ethical values and behawviours and
believesits strateges to be approprate for the needs of

the business.
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Principle 9: Maintain governance structures and processes |
that are fit for purpose and support good decision making
office by the Board

All corporate policies gre approved by the Chief Executive Offizer,
to higrlight to all employees the iImpertance to tne Board of high
levels of governance and business conduct.

The Board is responsible for tre long-term succeass of the i
Company There s a formal schedule of matters reserved to the ‘
Board. It 1s responsible for overall Group strategy. spproval of
capex cver £100k, approval of the annual and intarnim results,
annual and quarterly budgets. dividend policy, and Board
structure It monitors the exposurs to key busingss risks and
reviews the strateg ¢ directio” 0 the operat ng disio~s The
Chairman is responsible for running the business of the Board
and for ersuring apprepr ate strategic focus and d rection The
Chief Executive 1s respensible for proposirg the strategic focus
o the Beoard, implemanting it oncs it ~as been spproved and
overseeing the management of the Company througn the
Execut ve Team

The Board is supported by the Audit and Remuneraton
Committees As the Board s small, there is, and will be, no
seoarate Nomination Committes and the aopointment of new
Directors and succession planning are considered by the Board
as a whole. Each Commiitee has access to such reso.rces,
information and advice as 1t deemis necessary, at the cost of the
Company, to enable the Committee to d scharge its duties.

The Chairmean of the Audit Caommittee 1s Philip Holder, with
Stephen Gutieridge as he other Non-Executive member No one
other than the Audit Committee’s Chairman and Non-Executive
remizer is entitied to be present at a meating of the Audit Commitiee
but the Group's externat auditor, tagether with the Chief Exacut ve
and the Chief Firancial Oficer, are alsc invited to attend the meetings
OCther Directors and Non-Executives may be invited to attend

11

The Board recognises the valug and
importance of high standards of
corporate governance and cbserves
the requirements of the Corporate
Governance Code published by the
Quoted Companies Alliance (QCA).

The Audit Committee operates u~der tarms of referance agresd with
the 3oard and meets at leas: twice a year The Audit Committes

cansidears the adequacy ard effectiveness of the risk management
and contral systems of the Group 1t reviews the scope and results
of the external audit, its cost effectiveness and the objectivity of

the auditor It also reviews, prior to publication, the inzerim results.
the prelimirary announzerent znd the An~ual Report and Accounts

The Chairman of the Remu-e-ation Committee is Stepren
Guttendge, with Phip Holder as the ctner Non-Exscut ve member
The Chief Executive and other members of the 3oard may oe
nvized to attend The Committee meets pericdically as required
and is responsible for overseeing the policy regarding Executive
remuneration anc for acprovng the remuneraticn packages “or the
Graup’s Executive Directors and senior managemenit, incluaing all
personnel receving a salary exceeding £100k per an~um and/or 2
bonus potentzl of 50% of salary (2019 same) It 1s alse rasponsible
for reviewing incentive schemes for the Group as a whale

The Board believes that the Group's governance framework 1s
curantly ancroprate for its size and complexity but continues to
monitor the suitabaility of its procadures, which will evolve as the
Group grows.

Principle 10: Communicate how the Company is governed
and is performing by maintaining a dialogue with
shareholders and other relevant stakeholders

The Group communicatas wth sharerolders tarough the Annual
Report and Accounts, full year ard half year announcements, the
annual General Meeting, regulatory news and one-ro-one meetings
with existing or potential new shareholders throughout the year
Principles 2 and 3 describe our approach to stakeholder
engagement In mare dezall and more information on how the
Board engages with our stakehcldersison pages 12 w04

A range of corporate information is availlable o shareholders,
nvestors and the public on the Group's corporate website
httes//mvestars fulerum co uk
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REMUNERATION REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARGCH 2020

Remuneration Committee of 50% o safary (2013 same) Itis also responsible for reviewing
The Remuneratior Commitiee reviews the performance of ircentive schemes for the Group as a whole

each Sxecutive Director and sets the scale and structure of therr
rermuneration and the basis 2° their service agreement with due
regard to the nterests of shareholoers. To ensure that the Group's
remuneration practices are market competitive, the Committee
ta<es acvice from various ndependent sources  Basic annual salary

The main componen:s of Executive D rectors’ re~u~gration,
whizh can be mirrored with certain senior executives. are basic
salary, annual performance related bonus ard share opticns

Each Executive Director’s basic salary is reviewed regularly
by the Comm ttee In decidirg upon an appropriate leve! of
remuneration, the Committee believes that the Group should
offer levels of base pay that reflect indwidual responsibilities
compared to similar iobs in comparable companies

The Board determines the remunreration of each of the Non-
Executive Drectors with the support of external professional
advice frequired No Director particizaes In any discLssion
regarding his/her own remuneration

Policy on Executive Directors’ remuneration

The policy of the Board is to orovice an Execut ve remuneration
package designed 10 attract, rmotvate, reward and retain the
Fxecutive Directors The aim of the Group's remunaration policy
is to ensure that the kay Executives are appropriately rewarced
for ther individual contribution to the Group's performance, Share option incentives
commensurate with ther duties and respons bilizies.

Annual bonus payments

The Committee establishes the objectives that must be met for
an annual cash benus to ce paid. Currently these objectives relate
to yesr-cn-year growth .n EBITDA znd sales crder margir

During the year, three of the Group’s share schemes, an Snterprise

The Remunearation Commitiee believes that shareholders Management incentive (EMI), an Employee Shareholaer Sratus
i~terests are best served by providing Executives with {ESSY and a Growth Share Scheme (G33) plan, fully vested At
remuneration packagas which have a significant emohasis on the end of the year the Greup operated a Growth Share Scheme
performance -elated pay through long-term incentive schemes {G38) plan and four SAYE schemes (see note 19 of the financial
The Board considers that packages of this nature are consistent . staterments). The Committee has responsibility for supearvisirg
with prevailing oractice and zre necessary 1o retain and reward the schemes and the grant of share options Lnder tne schemes

Executives of the caliore the Group reguires The Cormittee
meets periodically as required znd 1s responsible for ovarseaing
the policy regerding Execuzive remuneratior and for approvirg
the remuneration packages for the Group’s Execut ve Directars
and senior management, Including all cersonnel receiving a
salary exceeding £10Ck per annum and/ar a bonus potential

Additional benefits

Each Executive Director receives private medical insurance and
life assurance cover, pension contributions and a company car
or car allowance Each Non-Executive Director receives life
assurance cover

Directors’ emoluments
The remunerat.on of each of the D rectors for the year ended 31 March 2820 is set out as follows

2020
Salary, fees Cther 2020 o 78
and bonus benefits Pension total -otai
) _ £000 £000 £000 €000 CT00
Executive
Daren Harris 186 B8 - 174 -
Terry Dugdale 33 2 1 36** -
Martin Harrisor 247 6 6 25g** 316
Hazel Griffiths 5 3 2 o] 179
Non-Executive
Philip Helder 142 4 _ 14w+ 50
Stephen Gutteridge 41 4 - 45 44
Wayne -aves 36 4 - 40 40
Total 849 38 14 901 653

Daran Harris was appomted to the Board on 24 June 2019 as such the remaneration included .s for a mine maonth penod in 2020
e Terry Dugdale was appointad to the Board on 79 lanuary 2020, as suchk the rermunarat onincluded s for a two month period in 2020

T

Martin Harnison resigned on 1 Qctober 2012 a8 suen the remuneration included s for 2 six rronth penod in 2020
[

Hazel Griffiths rasigned n lune 2012 as such the remuneration included s for a three month petiod in 2020

e Phil Halzer assumed dav-ra-day rescorsitilines between the Chief Execitive transition
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GROUP DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

The Directors present the r Arnual Report and the audited
conschdated fi~ancial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2020

Registered office
The registerad office of Fulcrum Utility Services Linrited 1s PO Box 309,
Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayrman Islands.

Dividends
The Board does nct propose to pay 2 final dividend in respect
of FY20

Directors

The Directors who served throughout the year, except as noted
below, were as follows

Daren Harrs (appointed 24 June 2019}

Terry Dugdale (zppointed 29 January 2620)

Martin Harrigson (resigned 1 Qctober 2019)

Hazel Griffiths (resigned from the Board on 31 May 2019)
Philp Holder

Stephen Gutteridge

Wayne Hayes {retirad from the Board on 30 Apnl 2020
lennifer Babington (aopointed 1 May 2020)

JereTy Brade {appointac 12 June 2020)

Jonatran Turner {appointed 12 June 2020)

Employees

The Group's executive management regutarly delivers

Company-wide briefings on tag Group's strategy and
performance These briefings contain details of the Group's

Directors’ interests

financial performance where aporopriate In additon, weekly
business updates contain infarmation o the Grour's operatioral
performance, as well as ucdates on customer activity

The Group remains committed 1= fair treatment of people with
disabilities in relation to jol applications, fraining, pramotion and
career development Every effort is made to find alterrative cbs
for those wha are unable 1o continue in their existing Job due

to disability

The Group ta<es a positive approach 10 eguality and diversity
The Group promctes equal ty in the application of reward
policies, employment and davelopment opportunities, and aims
to support employees in balancing work and personal lifestyles

Substantial shareholdings

The Company's issued stare cap tal comprises ordi~zry shares
of £0 001 each which are listed on AIM, a market operated by
the London Stock Exchange (AIM FCRM) As at 31 March 2020,
the ssued share capital of the Company was £222,118 camprising
22217945 ord.nary shares of £0.00" each Detads of the 1ssued
share capital of the Company, ogether with movements i the
1Issuad share capital dur ng the yvear can be found in note 18 1o
the financial statements. In accordance with AV Rule 26, the
Company discloses substantial shareholdings on its website
https. /investors fulcrum co uk/investars/aim-rule-26

Annual General Meeting
The Anrugal General Meeatung of the Group is to be held on
23 September 2020

The notice of meeting appears in the document sccompany ng
this A~nual Report and Accounts

The Directors and their connected part s hald irterests in the following number of ordinary shares at 31 March 2020, 31 March 2018
and 1 April 2018 Further informanion about the Directors’ interests is proviced in the Remuneration Report

Number of orcinary srares

Faprl

31 March 31 March
2020 2019 ma
Fhilip Holder 1,054,666 954 666 254 666
Stephen Gutteridge 149,168 19166 2141686
Wayne Hayes 4,883,935 4,883935 4883235
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GROUP DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDFD 31 MARCH 2020

Auditor

The audit was last tenderean 2012 and, r ling with good
governance, the Audit Committee conducted a full aLdt
tender process during 2018 The outcome of the tender was
tha: Caoper arry GroJp Limited was appainted as a.ditor in
rascec: of the year ending 31 March 2020

Directors’ indemnities and insurance

Fulcrum Utility Serv ces Limted indemnifies +ts officers and
officers of its subbsidiary comzanies against liabiities aris ng from
the conaust of the Grouo's ousiness, 1o the extent perrmitted by
law, by the placing of Directors’ and officers” insurance The
insurance policy indemnifies individual Directors” and officers’
personal legal | ability and cost for cla ms arising aut of actions
taken in conection with Group busiress

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors of Fuleru Unlity Services Limited {(“the Directors®)
have accepted responsibility for tne prepzration of the Annual Report,
the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the non-statutory
consaldated accounts for the year ended 31 Marck 2020, which
are intended by them to give a true and far view of the state of
affairs of the GroLp and of the profit for that penod. They have
decided to prepare :he non-statutory consolidated accounts in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adooted by the European Union (“IFRSs as adopted by tne EU”;

In preparing these non-statutory consolidated accounts,
the Directors have

» selected suitable accounting pohcies 2nd applied them
consistently;

» made udgements ana estimates that are reascnable
and prudent,

= statea wrether they have neen prepared in accordance
with IFRSs s adopted by the EL;

» assessed the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to gong
concemn and

» used the gaing corcerr nasis of acceunting unless they aither
ntend ro hguidate the Company or 1o cease operations, o
have no realistic alternative out to do so.
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The Directors are responsible for such internal control as they
determine s necessary 1o enable the preparaton of non-statutory
consol dated accounts that are free from material misstatemert,
whetrer due to fraud or error, and have general responsiblity “or
taking such steps as are reasanably open to them to safeguard
the assets of the Company and t2 prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularities

The Directors are respors’ble for the ~anterance and i~tegnty
of the corporate and financial info-mation included cn the
Company's weasite Legislation it the UK goverring the preparation
and dissemination of finarcial staternents may differ from
legislation in other jurisd-ctons The Company is incorporated

in the Cayman Islands and domiciled nthe UK The Company

iz not required to prepare audited financial statements urider
Cayman Islands cormpany law, however, the Company 1s required
under AIM Rule "9 to provide sharehclders with annual audhited
consoldated financial state ments for the year ended 31 March 2020
The Directors have requested Cooper Parry Group Limited o
undertake a non-statutory audit of the Campany’s conschdared
financial staternents in o-der to discharge their obligations under
AfM Rule 19,

Statement of disclosure of information to auditor

As at the date this report was signed, so far as sach of t~e
Directors is aware, there is no relevant information of which the
auditoris unaware a~d each Director has takan all steps thathe or
she cught to have taken as a Director in oraer to make himself or
herself aware of any relevant audit information and o establ’sn
that the auditor is aware of that information

Going concern

After making enguires. we, the Directors, have a reasonable
expec:aticn that the Group has adequate resources to continae
N operational existerce for the foreseeable future We therefore
continue to acoct the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements The basis on which this conclusion has
beenreached s set out on page 54 wh.ch is incornorated by
refarence hara

Cn behalf of the Boaid

Daren Harris
Chief Executive Officer
5 August 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF FULCRUM UTILITY SERVICES LIMITED

Opinion !
We have audited the ncn-statutory financ al staternents of “ulcrum
Utility Services Limited {"tha pare~t company”) &~¢ its subsidiaries
{"the Group") for the year endec 31 March 2020 which corprise the
consclidated statement of compierensive ncome, consolidated
stater~ent of changes in equity, consolidated balance sheer,
consolidated cash flow statermen:, and the notes to the non-statutory
financial statements, incluging a surmmary of accounting peficies
The financial reporting framework that has been applied In their
preparaticn is apphcable law and International Financial Repor:ing
Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union ("IFRSs as
adopted by the EU")

In our opirion, t1e Group non-statutory financial statements

« give e true and farr view of the state of the Group’s affairs as
ar 31 Maich 2220 and of the Group's proft for the yea< then
ended, and

» have been preperly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the EL.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Internatioral

Standards on Auditing (UK) (!SAs (UK)) and applicable law. Cur
responsitilities unde- those standards a-e further described In
the auditor's responaibilit as for the audit of the non-statutory
financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical
reguiremen:s that are relevant to our audit of the nen-statutory
financial statements in the UK, ircluding the FRC's Sthical Standard,

and we have fulfillad our ather ethical responsibilities In accordance
with these requirerrents We believe that the zudit evicence we have
abtained is sufficient and aperopriate to provide a bass for our opinion

Cenclusions relating to going concern
We have nathing to report in respect of the following matters in
relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us ta report ta you wheare

- the directors’ use of the going cencern basis of accounting in
the preparaticn of the financial statements 1s not appropriate. or

+ the cirectors have not disciosed ir the financral statements
any identifiect materal uncertainties that may cast significant
douk:t about the Group’s atnlity or the parent company’s atabity
to continue to adopt the gorg concern basis of accourting
for a pariod of at least twelve onths from the date when the
financial statements are authonsed for 1ssue

Emphasis of matter

We draw attenton 1o the sccounting policy In note 1, which refers
to the global Coronavirus pandem’'c Cur apinion is no” modified
N respect of tis matter,

Key audit matters

We icentified the key audit marters describec below as those
which were mos? sign ficantin tre audit of te non-statutory

finarcial starements of the current per od Key audit matters

include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement,
Including those risks that had the greatest effect on our overall i
audit strategy, t~e allocanon of resources in the audit and the
direction of the efforts of the aucit team

In addressing these matters, we have performed the orocedures
below which were designed to address the matter in the context
af the ron-statuory financial statements as a whole and in
ferming cur opinion thereon Conseguently, we do not provide

a separate opinion on these individual matters

Annual Repert and Accounts 2020 Fulerum Utility Services Limited

Going concern and impairment consideration relating

to Coronavirus

Matter

Daring March 2020, the potential impact of Caroravirus becams
significant. As a result, management {including the Beard and
Audit Committee) invested a significant amount of time to fully
consider the impl cations an the Group. Management considered
mplications for the Group's going concern assessment, impairmen:
considerations in relation to assets held and appropriate disclosure
in the A~nual Report and accounts. by adjusting -he forecasts
based on prudent assumptions to +adel potential impacts

Resconse

We reviewed management’s -evised forecast including levers
available to managemert to mitigate the impacts Based on the
mformation available at the time of the cirectors’ approval of
the “inancial staterrents and our signing of our audiz opinion,
we consider the forecasts (o be reasonable whilst noting that
the impact of Soronavirus on future sales and otter inputs s
currently chfficult to quantfy precisely

We challenged rmanagerment on the key assumptiors included
in the scenarios and confirmed that management’'s mitgating
actions are within their control We considerea the potential
impact on the balance sheet, specifically around trade and
other receivables, inventory. intangible assets and right of use
assets and do not consicer there to be any indicators of material
imgairment as at the balance sheet date or subsequen:ly (for
diszlosure only) We reviewed management's disclosuresin
relation to the Coronavirus potential impact and foung them

o be consistent with the forecast scenanics performed

Revenue Recognition on contracts ongoing at the year end
Matter

Revenue is recognised based on prograss towards sat.sfact on

of performance ohligations included in the contracts wndertaken,
by reference to costs incurred as a percentage of total expected
costs There s judgement involved in determining the percentags
completion as well as in estimating the expected outcome of the
contract, botn in terms of cosis to complete and considaration to
be recewed, resulting in a greater risk of errcr. The risk is specific
to contracts which are incomplete at the year end as changes

to these estimates and judgements couls give nse 1o material
variances In the amount of revenue recogrised ar the year end

Given the above, there1s a nsk that revenue is not accounted
for appropriately

Response

Using a vanety of guantitative and gualtatve criteria we selected
a sample of contracts to assess ard challerge the most sigrificant
contract assumptions These criteria included twotal project value
and % completior Our procedures included:

+ Assessing and testing histoncal accuracy of cost and revenue
budgeting to gain comfort arcund those contracts in progress
at the year end to assess the reasonablenass of revenus
recognised nthe current year

+ Testng allocation of costs to contracts and completeness
of costs with reference to third garty confirmatiors.

+ Vouching detalls to signed contracts 2nd meetng with
Quantity Surveyors rasponsible for assessing level of
completion of cortracted work to gain an understanding
and obtaining further evidence to supgort judgements

+ Testng reconciliations between data provided by project
teamns ard journals posted to the nominal ledger

a7
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT CONTINUED
TO THE MEMBERS OF FULCRUM UTILITY SERVICES LIMITED

Key audit matters continued

Goodwill impairment assessment

Matte-

The Group has a ratenal goodwill balarice which 1s required 1o
be tested for moairment gr an annual casis in accordance with
Internaticnal Accounting Stendard 36 Impairment of Assets’
{(!AS 38) Total gocdwill at year end was £14 3m Goodwill has
been tested by referance tc its value inuse Valuations of this
nature are inherently subjective and involve a high degree of
estimation, for example aver future cash flows of the group,
discount rates acpled to those cash flows ard terminal growth
rates This gives nise to an ingreased nisk of er-or 1in the
calculation of value in use ard therefcre in the overall
ITpalrment assessment

Response
We have performed audt procedures over managerment’s
impairment assessment. ncluding the following pracedures.

« Tesung of the iIntegrity of the cash flow madel and the
methcdology appliec.

+ Assessing key assumptions Including future cash flows,
discount rates and growth rates. ncluding sensitivity of
these essumptions

» Agreeing future cash flows to Board approved budgets ard
considering the appropriateness of these budgets by reference
0 hustorical per‘ormance of the Group. Including understand ng
sales orderbock and any grawth assumptions

= Corsidenng S year extendec forecasts aporoved by the Board.

+ Assessing the termirzl growth rate against long-tarm
GDP growth in the UK and testing the calculation of the
disco.unt rate

» Performing sensitivity analy$is over key assumptions, in
parficular 1esting whiat level of sensitivity in the assumptions
would cause an impa rment

Based o~ our audt procedures performed we found the madel
itself, the methodology. the forecasts and the assumptions used
ir the calculation we e ancropniate and we concluded that there
was no mparment of goodwill We also found that the related
sensitivity disclosures in the financal statements were appropriate

48 Fulcrum Utility Services Limited Annual Report and Aczownts 2020

Vatuation of utility assets and assets under construction

Matter

Uty assats ang assets urder construction are held at fair value
at the bzlance sheet date, which is established wit~ reference to
future Ircome No cuoted market price is available Dus tothe
guzntum of the balance and the nature of the valuat ons, which
are a level 3 valuation in relaticn to the fair value h erarchy. there s
a sigrificant risk with regard ta the applcation of estmates ard
judgements irherent in the valuat on.

Unilizy assets are subject to annual revaluation An independert,
third party valuation was previcusly completed as at 21 March 2019
and an internal valuation has been performed by management
to determine the fair value of completed utility assers reld at

31 March 2020

The fair value raquires significant judgement over the choize of
valuation methodology to apply. as well as signifizant estimation,
pa-ticularly over the key assumptons of the estumated once znd
the volume of gas transnortation

Response
Our procedures included

+ Holding discussions with management to determine the valuation
methoaclogy used ard challenging the appropnateness of
the valuation basis selected We engaged external valuatior
specialists to act as auditor's experts to assist us in criteally
assessing the methodology used in the valuation appraisal.

+ With the assistance of the auditor’s expert, challenging
managemsant on key judgements affecting utility asset
valuations, such as ircome multiples and useful econamic lives

= Comparng key underlying financial data inputs 10 the utility
asset valuaton by benchrrarking these to independent market
data, sucn as published gas transportation prices

- Assessing the methadology used by management in determining
fair value and cbtairing evidence of the Inputs a~d assumpticns Jsed
in the calculatior, agreeing inputs to external, third party evidence
where possible, such as publishec gas transportation prices

« For Ut bty assets under construction, assessing the pe-centage
of completion for a sample of contracts cngoing at the year
end througn obtaining suppart for the esumate of the total
costs to complete and agreeing a2 sample of costs to date 10
sJapporting documentation, such as pLrcnase INvoices or
payroll records

= Assessing the adequacy of the Group's disclosures 17 respect
of tme valuation techrmiques and signif cant unabservable Inputs
employed in the valuation set out In note 12
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Materiality

The materiality for the Group nor-statutory financial statements

as 3 whole was set at £252.0CT7 Thris has been cetermined with
reference to a benchrmark of the Groug's normalised profit before
tax. taken as an average over tne last 3 years. which we corsider

to be an appropriate measure for a group of comparies such as 1
these Matenality represents 5% of Group normalised profit cefore |
tex averzged over the last 3 yvears

We agreed to report to the Audit Commitias any corracted or }
uncaorrected identified misstatements excesding £13,000, in !
addition to other identified misstatements that warra-ted

reporting on qualitative grounds

An overview of the scope of our audit

We adopled anisk-based audit approacs We ga ned a detailed
understanding of the Group's busimess. the environment 1t
operates inand the nisks it faces The key elerments of our audit
approach were as foliows

The audit team evaluated each ccmponert of the Group by
assessing its rratenality to the Group as a whole This was dene
by considering the percentage of total Group assets liak | tes,
revenuss and profit oefore taxes which each component
reprasentad From thes, we deternined the significance of the
component to tne Group as a whole, and devised cur planned
audit response In order to address the audit nisks described in
the Key audit matzers section which were denti‘ied during our
planning pracess, we performead a full-scope audit of tre
non-statutory financial statements of the parent company,
Fulcrum Utility Services Lirmited, and of the Group’s marerial
trading subs diaries, providing 95% coverage of revenues and
89% of profit before tax for trese compaonents

Other information

The Dirsctors are respensible for the cther information The cther
infarmation comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the nen-statutory financial statements and
our Auditor’s Report Qur opition an the non-statutory financial
staterents does not cover the other information ard, except

as exphcitly stated in ou’ report, we da not express arry form

of assurance corclusior thereon

In connection with our aud t of the non-statutory financial
staterrents, our rasponsibility is to read the other informaticn
and. in doing so, consider whether the information s matarally
ncansistent with the non-statutory financial statements or our
knowledge obtained ir the audit or otherwise zppears to be
matenially misstated If we identity such material inconsistencies
or acparent material misstatements, we ara ragured to detarmine
whether there is a material misstatement in the non-statutory
financial statements or a materizl misstatement of the other
information i, based on the work we have perfarmed, we
conclude that there 1s a material misstatement of this other
information. we are required ta report that fact

We have nothing to report n this regard

Responsihilities of directors

As explained moere fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities
Statement set cut on page 486, the Directers are responsible for
the creparation of the nor-statutory fina~cial statements and for
being satisfied that they give 3 true and fair v ew, and for such
internal control as they determine 1s necessary ta enasle te
preparation of non-statutory financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the ron-statutory f'nancizl statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue 23 a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
cancern, and using the going concarn asis of accounting unless
they either intend 1o [ guidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have nc realistic alternative but to do s

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the non-statutory
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whother
the ron-statutory f nancizl staterments as a whols are free from
rmatarial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an Auditor's Report that includes aur oointon Reasonabls
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conductad in accordance with 1SAs {UK) will alwavs
detact a material misstatement when it exists Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material i#
indwvidually o7 1n aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of the non-statutory f nancial statements

A fuller description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
nan-statutory financial statements 1s located on the Financial
Reporting Council's welbsite at www frc org uk/aud torsresponsibilities
Th s description forms part of our Aucitor's Report

Use of our report

Th s renort is made solely to the parent company’s memkers, as a
body, and solely in conneaction with the requirement of Rule 19 of
the AIM Rules for Companies {"AlIM Rules”) that the Group publish
annual audited accounts wnich must be sent to s shareholders
and the requirements of Rutes 20 and 26 of the AIM Rules that any
docurment provided to sharehaolders be made availlat:le by the
Croup on a website.

Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the parent company's members thasa marters we are required

to staze to them nan auditcr's report ard for no sthear pupose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accep: or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the parant compsany’s
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
cpirions we have formed.

Cooper Parry Group Limited

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor

Sky View, Argosy Read, East Midlands Airport, Castle Zonington,
Deroy DE74 284

6 August 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Year endad
Year ended 31 March
31 March 2019
2020 Restated
L ) ~ o Notes £000 £000
Revenue 2.4 46,501 48,905
Cost of sales - uncerlying {31,855) {29633)
Coest of sales - exceptional tems 5 (1,766) {883)
Total cost of sales (33, 721y (30.538)
Gross profit 12,380 18,369
Admir‘strative exoenses - u~derkying (13,611) {11,331)
Administrative exoenses - exceptional items 5 (870) (211}
Total administrative expenses {14,481} (12,242)
Operating (loss)/profit 6 {2,101 8127
Profit on ssle of subsidiary - exceptional items 5 3.886 -
Net finance (expenss)/income 815 (472) (173}
Profir hefore taxaton 1,313 5,954
Taxation 9 243 1,042)
Profit for the period attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,556 2912
Other comprehensive income
Iterns that will never be reclassified to profit:
Revsluation of ut lity assets 22 3,026 1,38C
Surolus ar sirg on utility assets internally acopted in the year 12 951 1300
Reversal of prior increase of utility assets 22 (1,086) (2,644}
Deferred tax on items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss 9 (321) {1,848)
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,136 13,000
Profit per share attributable tc the owners of the business
Basic " O7p 23c
Diluted 1 07p 220

Adjustes EBITDA from continuing cperat ons is the bas s tnat the Board uses to measure and monitor the Group's financial performnance
asitis a more accurate reflection of the commercial rezlty of the Group's business Further details of Alternative Performance Measu-es

are incluced in note 3

Operatng {lossi/profit {2,10M 8127 w
Equity-setsled share based payment charges 19 (6) 15 ‘
Exceptionzl items within operating (loss)/prof t 5 2838 1294 1
Depraciation and amortisation 121415 4,019 3,388 ¢
Adjusted EBITDA frarm continuing eperatians 4,548 10,924
Surglus ar sirg on sale of corresuc utlity asssts 5 3,888 -
tAd;usted EBITDA ireluding sale of domestic utility assets 8,434 10,924 |

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income and profit per share for year erded 31 March 2019 have been restated to reflect

the mpact of IFRS 18 "Leases” Refer to notes 1 and 32
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CONSOQLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Reta ned Total

Srare Snare  Revzluaton Merger earnings quity

CE:D\[E' premiurm reRerve esenve Festated Restatec
L Motes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 000
Balance at 31 March 2018 32 21 21,042 4649 1,347 (812) 26,430
Total comprehensive income for the period
Prafit for the year 24 - - - - 4,912 4,912
Rewvaluaticr surplus on independent valuaticn 22 - - 11,380 - - 1,380
Surplus ansing on utility assets internsily adopted in
the year 22 - - 1190 - - 1100
Exceptional items - fixed asset Impairment 22 - - 12.544) - - 12,544}
Deferred tax |aiility 822 - - {1.848) - - ("848}
Tramsactions with equity shareholders
Equity-settled share based pavyment 19 - - - - 15 15
Div dends 10,21 - (4.738) - - - (4,738)
Capi-al transfer 21,24 - (16,805) - - 18,505 -
Issue of new snares 2021 10 5N - - - 521
Balance at 31 March 2019 32 221 210 12,737 1,347 20,813 45,328
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for the year 24 - - - - 1,556 1,556
Revaluaticn surplus on internal revatuation 22 - - 3,036 - - 3,036
Surplus arising on utility assets ntarnally adepted in
the year 22 - - 951 - - 951
Disposal of previously revalued asse’s 522,24 - - (3,071 - 3,071 -
Depreciation on previously revalued assats 22,24 - - (307) - 307 -
Exceptional itarrs - fixed asset impairmenit 22 - - (1,0886) - - {1.086)
Deferred tax Lability 922 - - (321) - - (321)
Transactions with equity shareholders
Fouity-settled share based payment 19 - - - - e (6)
Div dends 10,21 - - - - (3,331) {3.331)
Capital transfer 21,24 - ~ - - - -
Issue of new sharas 202 1 179 - - - 180
Balance at 31 March 2020 222 389 11,839 11,347 22,410 46,307
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

31 Marc~
31 March 2019
2020 Restated
_ Notes £000 £000
Non-current assets
Property, plart and eguipmen: 12 38,820 3934
|Intangible assets 14 25,522 27069
Right-of-use asset 15 2720 2591
Deferred tax assets 9 1,784 1729
68,846 70,703
Current assets
Contract assets 16 12,279 G132
Inventories 446 607
Trace and other receivables 7 6,826 8,392
Cash a~d cash ecuivalents 28 15,973 6824
35,824 22,955
Total assets 104,370 93658
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 25 (11,809)  (10.,848)
Contract liabilihes 26 (27909) (26.343)
Borrowings 27 (10,000} (3,000)
Current lease | atility 15 (772} {754}
Provisions 29 (58) (96)
(50,644) {41.042)
MNon-current liabilities
Non-current lease liability 15 (2,228) 2002)
Deferred tax habilities g {5,193) (5186)
(7.419) {7.288)
Total liabilities (58,063) (48330)
Net assets 46,307 43,328
Equity
Share capital 20 222 221
Share premium 2 389 210
Revalustion reserve 72 1,939 12,737
Mearger "aserve 23 1,347 11,347
Retained earnings 24 22,410 20,813
Total equity 46,307 45,328

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 6 August 2020 and were signed on 1ts behalf by

Daren Harris
Chief Executive Officer
Corpa~y number FCO30008

52 Fulcrum Utility Services Limited Annual Report and Aczounts 2020



Strategic report / Corporate governance / Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Year endec
Year ended 31 March
31 March 2079
2020 Restateu
MNotes E000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the period after tax 1,558 492
Tax [credit}/charge 9 (243) 1,042

Prcfit for the pericd before tax
Ad ustments for

1313 5,854

Depraciaticn 125 2,228 n 776
Amortisaticn of intangible assets 14 1791 1612
Except oral items - fixed asset impairment 5 1,766 833
Net fina~ce expense 8 472 173
Equity-settled share based payment chargas 19 (6) ns
Profit on disposal of utilizy assets 5 (3,886) -
Loss on disposal of assets - ot-er 3 -
{I<crease)/decrease in contract assets 16 (3147 1,245
Decrease in trade and other cecevables 916 385
Decrease/{increasea) in inventories 162 {399)
Decrease in trade and other payablas (1.072) (376}
Increase in contract hagilities 26 1,562 443
Decrease in provisions 29 (38) (2)
Cash inflow from operating activities 2,064 11.809
Tax pad (410} (42)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1654 1767

Cash flows from investing activities
Acqguisition of external utiity assets

Utility assets internally adopted [gross construction cost less impairment)

Acquisition of plant and equipment
Acguisition of intangibles

Proceeds on d sposal of utility assets
Proceeds on disposal of assets - other
Finarce income received

(5.C30} (3,6566)
(6,475} (7.374)

12 (98} (375)
14 (326) (884)
5 16,756 -
5 _

8 3 "3

Net cash inflow/{cutflow) from investing activities

4,835 (12187)

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividencs paid

10 (3.337) {(4,738)

Borrowings 27 7000 3000
Interest paid and ban«<ing charges (non-IFRS 16) (273) {73
IFRS 16 - principal payments 15 (797) {784)
IFRS 18 - interest nayments 15 {119) (13
Proceeds from 1ssue of share capital 180 221
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing activities 2,660 (Z187)

Increase/(decrease) in net cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

8149 {2.607)
6,824 243

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

28 15,873 65,824
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Accounting policies
The principal accounting pol cies adoptea in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below

Reporting entity

Fulcrum Utihty Servces Lim tec (“the Company”) 1s Incorparated in the Cayman Islanas and co~uciled in the UK The ordinary shares are
traded o~ AIM on the _ondon Stoc< Excharge The consolidated financial staterments of the CTompany for the year ended 31 March 2020
comprige the Company and its subsiziar es together referred 1o as "the Group™

Statement of compliance

Under Cayman Islanc company law. the Compary is not required to prepare audited “inancial staterents, however, the Compzny 15
required under AIM Rule 19 to provide shareholders with audited consolidated finangial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
There is no reguiremert 1o provide sarent company information 50 this has not besn presented

The financial statemenss have baen prepared in accordance with International Financial Reportng Standards (IFRS) as endorsed by
the EU and Internatioral Fianceal Reporting Interpretations Comrmritiea (IFRIC) intergretations

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the histonical cost bas s exceot for the revaluat on of certa n non-currert assats

Histarical cost1s generally based on the far valug of the consideration given in exchange for assets. These policies have been
congistently applied 1o all the years presented unless otherwise stated The Groop bas applied IFRS 18 “Leases” for the first time,
the impact of which is shown on pages 59 and 60 and in note 32

Going concern

The Group's busingss activities, together with the factors likely t affect future development, performance and posizior, are set out in
the Strategic Reporton pages 2 to 33 The financial posit on of the Group, its cash flows. iquidity position and borrowing facilities are
described nthe Chief Execurive’s Statement on pages 15 and 18 In aadition, note 32 1o the financial statements inzluaas the Group's
processes for managing 'ts capital and its exposure 1¢ credit and liguidity risks

At 31 March 2020 the Group had net assets of £46 3 mithon (2019 restated: £45.3 millicn), including ret cash of £6 O million (2018 £3 8 mullion}
as set out IN the consclidated balance sheet on page 52 and note 28 In the year endad 31 March 2020, the Group generated a oroft
after tax of £1.5 million and had ret cash inflows of £31 million after investing £5 O rillion i external utility assets, £3 3 million paid in
dividends and receiving £7.0 million of barrowings

The Group’s forecasts and projsctions, after taking account of sensitivity analysis of changes in trading performance and
corresponding mitigating actions. show that the Group has adequate casr rescurces for the foreseeable future

COVID-19 was declared a global pandemic on 11 March 2020 by the World Health Organizaticn, and on 19 March 2020 the Corgnaviras
Act was introducec in the UK, with unprecedentad restrictive measures being put in place nationally to help prevent the spread of
COVID-19 ensure safety and wellbeing, protect health services and t:y and stabilise the econor-y

The Groug has played a key part iIn ensanng that kay utiity nfrastructure continues to operate during this difficult per.od, however, the
continuing spread of the virus and the associated restrict ons an public Iife are expected to impact trading performance in 2020/21 with
the tming of the return to normality and growth uncerrar

Therefore, considenrg the mpact of COVID-19 on the business, a range of potential dewnside olanning scenarnos have been developed,
including a significant reduction to 2020/27 revenues across the Group. reflecting a protracted penad of lockdown and a furthar severe
but plausible downside scenaric of a second lockdown later In the same financial year Reverse stress testing has been conducted to
identify the theoret cal loss of -evenue and igu-dity tnat the Graup could manage w thout impacting its viability which would in turn

I pact upon the Company.

The Directors have been very proactive in their -esponse to COVID-19 and have introduced significant measures (o preserve cash
and minimise casts, for example utlsing the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CIRS) wnilst still allowing the business to function.

This epproach provides the Directars with reasorable com®ert that the Group's gaing concern has been assessed 10 a severity lavel
which more than accommodaies the current assessment of the shape and scale of the economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic,
and, having underzake- this review, the Diractors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to fund its
operations for a period of 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements For this reason, they cortinue t2 adoot the
going conaern basis in preparing the accounts
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1. Accounting policies continued

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by tha Company The Group contrals an entity when it 15 exposaed to, or has rights <o, variable returrs
from its imvolvemant wth the ertity and when it has the sbility t= affect those returns threagh its power over the entity In assessing contral
the Gro.p takes into consideration potential voting r ghts that are currently exercisable “re acquisit.on date is tre date on whic~ control
is tra~sferred to the acguirer The finarcial statements of subsidianies are included i the consolidated financizl statements from the
date tnat control commences urtl the date that control ceases All intra-group tansactions, balances and expenses are el minated

on corsol datien

Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of finarcial statemerts in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect tre application of accourting policias and the reported amounts of assets, babilities, Income ana expenses Actual rasults
could differ from these estimates Estimstes ad uncerlying assumptions are revigwed on an oNgGing tasis Revisions to acco_nting
estimates are recognised N the penod in which the estimates are revised and 1n any future penods affected

Infarmaticn about sigruficant areas of estimation uncertainty In apclying accounting policies that have the most significant efsact on
the smounts recogrused N the consolidared financial statements 1s included in the “cllowing areas

« Note 4 Revenue recognition on contracts - For longer projects the stage of completon of the waorks 1s assessed when considaring
recognition of revenue. Use of this percentage completion method requires the Group to astimate the sarvices performed 1o date
as a2 proporton of the tal services 1o be parfarmed. See revanus recognitiaon gabcy “or further datails

+ Note 9 Deferred tax - The Group recognises a deferred tax asset for tax losses carrnied forward which reguires an estimation of the
forecast profitability of the relevant entities

+ Note 12: Utility asset valuation, ‘neluding assets under construction ~ Assets are revalued annually These calculations reguire the use
of estimates, as detaled nnote 12

= Note 14. Goodw Il and otner intang bies — The Group tests annually whether targible and intangitle fixec assats have suffered any
impairment, based on discounted future cash flows of the assets and the total business of the Group These calculations regu re the
use of est mates, as detailec nnote 14

= Note 15 Lezses - Management exercises judgement in determining wheather a contract meets the definition of a lease, as well as
considering the hkelihood of certain options being taken up such as break clauses Judgement is also requ red In the calculation
of the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

« Note 17: Recoverability of trade receivables - Trade and other recevables are recognised to the extent that they are cansidered to be
recoverabie Tre Group's calculation of expected cradit losses irvolves the use of judgements, as detalled in nate 17

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and eguioment exzlucing utility assets and assets under corstructon are stated st cost less sccumulated deprec ation
ard accumulated imparment l0sses.

Utihty asse:s and assets under construction are initially recogrised at cost The Group has elected to value utility assats (except meters)
and usility assets uncer construction at fair value at each reporting daze. Meters are carried at cost, an imparrment loss s recogrised If
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated far value Impairment losses are recogrised within cost of sales in the mcome
staterent A revaluaton upwards s recognised If the estimated farr value exceesds its carrying amount Revaluations unwards are
recognisca within other comprehensive income An mpairment loss 1s reversed if, and anly f, the reasons for the impairrent have
ceasec to apply. Ammpairmertioss or uphftin value is reversed only 1o the level that the asset’s carrying amaount net of depreciation,
would have been had it not been previously revalued Assets are revalued annually

Depreciation s recognised on a straight-ine basis from the date assets are available for use, over tre estimated useful ives of each par:
of an itern of property, olant and equipment. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Utility assess (excludirg meters) A0 years

Clzssic domestic meters Fully depreciatad by December 2024
Classic industrial and ccmmerc al Tetars 5 years

Fixtures and fittings 2-byears

Computer egquipment 3-5vyears

Depreciation metheds, useful lives ard residual values are reviewed at each balance sheet date
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

1. Accounting policies continued
Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately from third parties are recognised as assets and measured at cost.

Following intial recogniton, inta~gible assets are measured a7 cost at the date of acquisition lgss any amortisat on and any
impairment losses

Amortisation costs are included w thin the adm inistrative expenses disclosed in the consoldated statement of comprehensive ncome

Intanginle assets acquired as part of a business combi~ztion are recogrised cutside goodwill If the asset 1s separable or arises from
centractual or other legal nights

Inta~gible assets are armortised cver their useful lives as follows

Brand a~d customer relationsh ps 2-12 years
Software 3 years
Developmenr costs 5 years

Useful ves are exarmined on an arnual basis and adjustments, where applicatile, are made on g prosnpective Gasis

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cansiderauon transferred over the fair value of tre identifiakble assets and habilities of the
acquiree at the date of acquisiton. Goodwlll on acquisitions of sussidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortses
but is tested arnually for impairment and is carried &t cost less acocumulated imparmert losses See note 14 for detailed assumptions
and rmethodology Impairmert (osses are not subsaquently revarsed

Goodwill is allocared to cash-generat ng units {CGus) far the purpose of mpairment testing. The allocation is made to thoss cash-
gererating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expacted to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose The units or groups of units are identified at the lowast level at which goodwill is monitored for internal managemeant purposes,
being the operating segments

Adustments to provis onal fair values of identifiable assets and liabilties arising from additional information, obtained within the
measurement period {(no maore than one year from the acquisition date), abour facts and circumstances existing at the accuisition dae
are adjusted against goodwill. Other adjustments ta provisional fair values or changes n contingent consideration are recognised
th-ough profit or loss

Impairment

At eachreporting date, the Group reviews the carryirg amounts of its property, plant ard eguipment and intangibles, including goodwill,
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered animparment loss If any sucn indication exis's, the recoveranie
amount of the agset is estimated ir order to determine the extent of the iImpairrent loss (If any) Where the asset does not generate
cash flows that are independent fiom other assets. the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

The reccverable amount 1s the higher of farr value less costs tc sell and value in use In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to ther present value using a discount rate that reflects current marker assessments of the time value of maneay
and the nsgks specific 1o the asset for which the estimares of future cash flows have been adjusted

{* the recoverable amount o an asset (or CGU) 1s esumrated to ke less than its carryirg amount, the carrying amount of the asset
{or CGU) s reduced toits recoverakle amount At impairmens loss is recognised as an expense mmediately

Deta led assumptions usad in tha annual impairment test for goodwill, with regard to discount, growtn and inflation rates. are set out
in note 14 to the accounts.

Inventeries
Work in progress is valued at the lower of cost and retreal sable valus Net realisable vatue is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less applicable costs to comrplete and variable selling expenses

Employee benefits

Pension plans

The Group operates a defined contribution pension plan for the berefit of its employees under which the Company pays a fixed
cantricution INto a segarate entity and will have no legal or constructive abligation to pay further amounts. Canributions are
recognised in the income statement as they become pavable in accordance with the rules of the scheme

Snort-term henefits
Srort-term employee benefit obligations are rmeasured or an undiscounted kasis and are expensed as the related service is provided

A hiability is recognised for the amount expectad to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-shanng plars if the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligat on to pay this amaunt as a result of past service praovided by the emgloyees and the obligation
can be estimated raliably
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1. Accounting policies continued

Employee benefits continued

Share based payment transactions

Share based payment arrangements m which the Group receves goods o services as considerabon for s own equity instrurnents are
accountec for as equity-settled share based payment transactions, regardless of Fow the equity instrumens are obtained by the Group

The grant da‘e farr value of share based paymert awards grantad to employees is recognised as an e—ployse expense, with a
corresponding increase In equity, over the pancd that the employees become unceonditionally entitled t¢ the awards The fair value of
the zptions granted 1s measured using an cpticn valuation model, taking intc account the terms ana canditions usan which the astons
were grantad The amount recogn sed as an experse s adiusted to reflect the actual numker of awards for wh cb the relatez service
and non-Tarket vesting conaitions are expected to be met, sucn that the amount ultirmately recogrised ss an expense s based on the
number of awards that do meet the relatea service and non-market performance cond trons at the vesting date. For snare based
peyTent awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant cate fair value of the share based payment 1s measurea to reflect such
conditions and there 1s no true-up for d fferences between expected and actual outcomes

No cash-settled share based payment awards have been granted to empioyeas

Provisions
A provision s recogrused in the balance sheet when the Group has a present fegal or constructive obhgation as a result of a past avent
that can oe reliably measured and 1t 1s probable that an cutfiow of economic benefits will e required to setle the obligation

Segmental reporting
A business segment is a greup of assets and cperations engaged in provid ng products or services that are subject to nisks and returns
that ara different from those of other business segments

Operating segments are reported in a mannar consistent with tae internal reporting provided to the chief cperating decision-maker,
the 3oara, and useo to assess performance The Board considers there to be two operating segments - Infrastructure Design ard Build
and Utidity assets Own and Operate. Information is g ven for both innote 2

Revenue

Malti-utility nfrastructure activities are recognised as "Infrastructure design and build” revenue The majonty of projects are completed
In a short timeframe and, as sucn, revenus 1s "eCognISeC on project complenon. For revenue recognised on maintenance GONtracts,
revenue I1s recognised throughout the duration of the contract

For longer orojects, revenue is recognised over tme. Revenue 1s est mated based on the procortion that contract costs incurred for work
performed to date bear 1o the estimated total contract costs, except where this would not ibe representative of the stage of completion
Variations ncontract work, clams and incentive payments are recognised only to the extent that the amount can be measured reliably
and its receipt is considered probalkle Where the outcome of a contract cannot be estimased reliably, contract revenue 1s recogniseg

¢ the extent of contract costs incur-ed where 1t1s prehable they will be recoverable When itis probable taat total contract costs will
exceed total contract reverue, the total expected loss 1s recognised as an expense Immeadiately Infrastructure reveaue 1s recogrised
excluding VAT and ather indwect taxes An accrualis made far nfrastructure ravenue in respect of work campleted whare invoices are
ye: ta be generated When paymentisreceived n advarce of the provision of sevices, these receipts are recorded as deferred income

Utdity asset ownership revenue

Conveyance of gas and use of the elecineity network s recognised as “Utility asset own and operare” revenue from the date the meter
1s connected and made avallable for use anc s based on Ofgem regulated usage rates. The performance obligat onas the
transportation of gas and revenue 1s recognised over time

Contract costs
Costs to obtair a contract a-e expensad unless they are incremartal, 1 e they would net be meourred if the contract had not been
obtained. and tre contract 1s expected to be sufficiently profitable for them to be recovered

Excepticnal items

Exceptioral items are these that in management's judgemens need to be disclosed separarely by v rtue of their size or incide-ce
in order to crovide greater wisiility of the underly ng resulis of the business and which management oelieves provide additional
meaningful nformation in relation to ongoing operational performance

Taxation
Taxan the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax Tax 1s recognised n the ncome statement except tc the extent
that it relates to items recogrised directly in eguity, in which case it is recagnised in eqguity

Current tax is the expacied tax payable or recewvable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted ar substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, ard any adiustment 1o tax payatle in respect of previous years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOQOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

1. Accounting policies continued

Taxaticn continued

Deferred tax s provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets a~d liabilizies for financizl reporting purposes
and the amounts used for taxation pu'poses. The following temporary d fferences a-2 not provided for the initial recognition of goodwill;
the init al -acogn t'on of assets or liabilities that affect reither accounti~g nor taxable profit other than in a bus ness combination: and
differences relating to investments in subsiciaries to the extent that they will procably not reverse in the foresseable future The amount
of deferred tax orovided is based on the expected manner of realisatior or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and labilites,
using tax razes enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date A deferrad 1ax asset is recagnised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be svailable against which the temporzry differe~ce zan be ctilised

Financial assets
The Group's financial assets include ¢ash and cash ecuivalents and trade and other rece vables

The Group classifies its fina—cral assets in the following measurement categories

+ those to be mesasured subseguently atfair value (either through other comorehensive income (FYOCI) or through prafit or loss
(FVPLY. and

= those to be measured at amaortised cost.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade “inancial assets are derecognised when the rights ta receive
cash flows from the f nanciai assets have exprred or have neen transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the ris<s and
rewards of ownership

Measuremant

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at s far valueg plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVPL, transastion
costs that are d rectly attnbutable to the acquisit on of the Fnancizl asset Transacticn costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are
axpensed in profit or loss,

Cssh ana cash eguivalents

Cash ana cash equivalents comprise cash balarces and call deposits Bark overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of tve Group’s casn management are included as a compaonent of cash and cash equivale~ts for the purpose only of
the cash flow statement

Trade and other recevables

Traede and other recevables are recognises mitially at far value and subseguert to initial recognition they are measured at amaortises
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses They are generally due for settlement within 30 days and ara
therefore all classified as current Due o their short-term nature, carrying vzlue is considered to zapproximate far value

Financial liabilities
The Group's financial habilitres include trade and other payables, bank lcans and overchiafts

Upon adoptior of IFRS @ fromn 1 April 2018, there has been no change in the accounting polcies previously applied

Classif cation
Financial labilinies are class fizd as financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss or loans and borrowings as approprate
The Group determimes the classificanon of its financial labilities at mimal recogrinon

Recogntion
Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of bank loans, net of directly attributable transaction costs

Trade and other payables

Trace and other pavables are recognised nitially at farr value. Subseguent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cos:
using the effective interest method Trade and cther payables ars presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting ceriod. Due to their short-term nature, carrying value is considered to aporoximate fai- value

Interest-beanng borrowings
Interest-bearing borrowings are recogrised initially at fair value less attributable ransaction costs Subsequent to nitial recognition,
Interest-bearing borrowings are s-ated at amortised cost using the effective interest mathod, tess any impairrent losses

Transaction costs on revolving credit facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it 1s probable that some
or all the facility will be drawn down In this case. the fee is deferrad within other assets until the drawdowr occurs Upon drawdown of
the first loan, these costs are reclassified frem ctner assets to bank loans ard subseguently amortised over the term of the facility

Interest-bearing borrowings are removed from the balance steet when the obligation specified in the contract 1s discharged or
cancelled or has expired The difference between the carrying amoeunt of a “inancial lizbiity tat has been extinguished ar transferred
to arcther party and the consideration paid. ircluding any non-cash assets transferred, or llabilinies assumed, 1s recagnised in arof t or
loss as sther income or finance costs.
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1. Accounting policies continued

Financial liabilities continued

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative finrancial Instruments comprise Irvesimerts In equity and debt securities, trade a~d other receivables, cash snd cash
equvalerts, loans and borrewings and trade a~d other payables,

Impzairment

A financial agset not carried at fair value througr crof t or loss is assessed at each reporting date to deterrmine whether there 1s objective
evidence that 1It1s impaired. A financial asset is imparred if objective avidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset. and that the fcss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that zan be
estimated reliably.

Animparmertloss in respect of a financial asset measared at amortised cos:t s calculated as the difference between its carry-ng
amcunt and the present value of the estmated future cash Alows discounted at the asset’s original effectve Interest rase Interest on
the moared asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount When a subsequent event causes the amount
of imparrment loss to decrease, the decresse Inimparment loss is reversed through profit or loss

Lease accounting

Gioup as lessee

At inception of a centract the Group assesses whether the contract is or contains a lease A lease is present where the contract
conveys, over a period of time, the right 1o control the use of an identfied asset In exchange for consideration Where a lease 1s
iden: fizd the Group recognises a night-of-use asset and a corresponding lease hability, except for shart-term lzases {defined as
leases with a lease term of 12 months or lass) and leases of low value assets. The Group has taken the practical expedient allowed
undei [FRS 18 that permits a lesses NoL Lo separaie ron-lease components and instead accounts for any lease and assocrated
nen-lease components as a single arrangeament.

Lease hability - intial recognition

The lease liability is init ally measured at the present value of the lease payTents that are no” paid at the commencement date.
The lease payTents are discounted using the interestrate implicit in the lease if that rate s readily ava'lable or if not, at the Group's
incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise

- fixed lease payments (inclucing in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives,

+ wvanable lease payments sucn as those that depend on anindex or rate {such as RPI), initially measured using the index or rate
at the comrmancement date,

-« the amount expected to be payable by the lessee unde- residual velue guarantees:

+ the exerc.se price of purchase options where the Group s reascnably certain to exercise the aptions, and

« payments of penallies for terminzting the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease

The lease liability 15 presented as a separate line in the co~solidated balance sheet, split between current and non-currert habilities

Lease liability ~ subsequent measurerment
The lease hability 1s subsequently measured oy increasing the carrying amount to raflect interest on the lease hability (using the
effective interest method) ard by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made

Lease hability - remeasurement
The lease lrability 1s remeasured where

- thereis a changea in the assessmen: of the exercise of a nurckase option, n which case the lease lability 15 remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate; or

+ the lgase payments change due to cnanges in an index or -ate or 3 change 1In expected nayment under a gLaranteed resicual value,
in which cases the lease liabllity is remeasurad by d scounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the
lease payments change 1s due to a change in a floating interest rate, In which case a revised discount rate is used); or

» thelease contractis modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability is
remeas.rad by discounting the revised lease nayments using a revised discount rate

Whe~ the lease laoility is remeasured, an eguivalent agjustment is made to the nght-of-use asset unless its carrying amount is reduced
ta zerc, In which case any remaining amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Right-of-Lse asset - iritial recognition
The nght-of-use asset comprises the inibial measurement of the corresgonding lease liability, lease paymenrts made at or before the
commercemant dare. any mitial direct costs and an estimate of any costs ta dismantle 2nd remcve the asset ar the end of the lease
They are subsequently measured at cost less accurnulated depreciation and impairment losses The nght-of-use assetis presented
as a separate line in the balarce sheet

Right-of-Lse asset - subsequent measuremert
Right-cof-use assets are deorecisted over the sharter of the lease term and useful Iife of the underlying asset
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

1. Accounting policies continued

Lease accounting cortinues

Imparment

The Group applies 1AS 36 to determine wheather a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss
as an expense immediataly

Short-ierm leases and low value assels

The Group recognisas lease payments on short-term leases (those w th a lease tarm of "2 months or less) and low value assets
as an operatng expense on a stra.ght-ine basis over the term of the lease, unless ancthar systematic basis is available that 1s
mo-e representative of the time cattern in which economic benaits are consumed

The Group as lessor
The Group has not entered into any lease agreements where the Group acts as a lessar

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and IFRIC interpretations
In the vear ended 31 March 2020, *he Group adeopted IFRS 16 “Leases” for the first time, the impact of which 1s shown below

IFRS 16 "Leases”

IFRS16 s effective far all accounting periods beginning an or after 1 January 2019 "he Group appled IFRS 16 retraspectively, restating
prior year comearatives Practical expedicts were apolied to take the -ecogn-tion exemption for both short-term and low value leases,
as well as to account for any lease and associated ron-lease components as a single arrangemeart

Impact on financial statemen<s

Upon transition to IFRS 16 at 31 March 2018, the Group recogrised an opeaning right-cf-use asset of £2 9 milllon and a lease liab/lity
of £3.1 million. Including adjustments for related balances that existed under IAS 17, the retained earnings of the Group or transition
reduced by £C T millian

The Group's lease labilities relzte to properties and venicles Tne lease hability under IFRS 16 1s lower than tnat shown in the operating
lease commitment note previously presented (in accordance with 1AS 17} primarily due to the aiscounting of the futura payments

The opening rignt-cf-use asset 1s lower than the opening lease hizhility as it reflects the higher depreciation of the nght-of-use asset
cormpared to the ~ecuct on on the lease hability cver the same period of time Ugon transition to IFRS 16 the weighted average
imcremental borrowing rate appl.ed to the lease liabilities was 3.15%

The impac: on the consalidated statement of comprehensive incorne was a decrease in profit before taxation for the year end ng

3 March 2020 of £10,000 (2018 decrease of £15,000) Cperating profit increased by £109.000 n the year ended 31 March 2020
(2018 increase of £38,000) as the depreciation on nght-of-use assets was lower than the IAS 17 rental charge Interest costs charged to
the income stztement increased by £112,000 in the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019 increase of £113,000) with the addition of nigrer
finance costs on the newly recogmised lease lability

The Group's adjusted EBITDA from cortinuing opa-ations ncreased by £916,000 1in the yvear ended 31 March 2020 12013 increase of
£897.000) as a result of tne IAS 17 rental charges no longer being shown in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

There was ncaimpact on net cash flows, althoug~ the presentation of the conscligated cash flow statement changed, with en increase
in cash inflows from ooerating activities In the year ended 31 March 2020 of £916.000 (2018 £837000) being offset by a corresponding
morease in net cask outflows from financing activities

The adoption of IFRS 16 did not have a s gnificant impact on the Group's effective tax rate.
Full dezails of the transitional impact on adoption of IFRS 16 are preserted in note 32

Crher new amendments ang nterpretat ons that became mandatory for the first tme during the vear ended 31 March 2020 are listed
below, rone of which had a significant impact on the Group's results

= Amendmeants to IFXS 9 "Financial [~struments” - Prepayrment features with negative compensation
+ Annual improvements to IFRS standards 2015-2017 cycle

» |FRIC 23 "Ungeartamty over Income Tax”

2. Operating segments

The Board has been identified as the chief operatng decision-maker (CODM) as defined under IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” The
Directors consider there to be two cperating segments, Infrastructure: Design and Build and Utility assets Own and Operate Fulcrum's
infrastructure: Design and Build segment provides utility infrastructure and connectiors services, Utility assets: Own and Operate
comprises poth the cwnership of gas, electrical and meter assets and the sae and efficient conveyance of gas and elactric.ty through
izs transportation networ<s Gas trransportation services are orovided under the 1GT licence granted from Ofgem n June 2007 and
electricity services are provided under the iIDNO licence granted from Cfgem in November 2017

The information providea to the Board n¢ludes management accounts comonsing operating (lossl/prafit befare excepticnal iterms
for 2ach segment and othe- financial and non-fnancial information used to manage the business on z consolidatec basis
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2. Operating segments continued

Year ended 31 March 2020

Yoar endhed 21 Mare= 2013 ResTated

infrastructure: Utility assets:

Infrast-ucture

Utihty 2ssets

Design and Own and Desigr and Swr and
Build Operate  Total Group 2uild Operate  Tortal Groun
L £000 £000 £000 £000 €000 £000
Reportable segment revenus 41,848 4,253 46,101 4592 2984 48905
Adjusted EBITDA fram contnuing operations® 2,34 2,207 4,548 13 1,783 10,924
Share based payment charge 6 - 6 ms) - ms)
Depreciation ang amortisaticn (2.887) {1132) (4,019) (2687) {707) (3.388)
Reportable segment operating {loss)/profit before
exceptional items (540) 1,075 535 6,322 1,082 7421
Cos: of sales — exceptional ters - (1,7686) {1,766) - '883) (883)
Administrative expenses - exceptional items (832) (38) (87Q) (396) (s} 40
Reporting segment operating {loss)/profit 1,372) (729) {2.100) 5833 184 65127
Profit on sale of subsidiary - exceptional itams - 3,886 3,886 - -
Net finarce expense (219) {253) 472} - (173) (173)
(Loss)/profit before tax (1,551 2,904 1313 5933 21 5,854

" Adjusted EBITDA from continuing ocerations 1s operating (loss)/p ohit excluaing the impact of exceptonal tems depraciation, amerisation and equity-setiled
share based payment charges Full raconailiznion of Altarnanive Performance Meas.res (APMs) are provided in note 2

The Group derwves all of its revenue from the UK and all of the Group's customers are hased ir the UK The Group's revenue 1s derived

from contracts witn customers

Year ended 31 March 2020

Year endec 31 March 2019 Restated

Infrastructure: Utility assets: Infrastructure Uty assets

Design and Own and Design and Cwnand
Build Operate  Total Greup Buia Cperate  Total Gloup
o . _EOPD £000 €000 £000 000 £000

Assets reported by segment.

Property, plant and equipment 481 38,339 38,820 720 38,594 39,514
Goodwill and brand and customer relaticnships 23,940 - 23,940 25,293 - 25293
Other intangible assets 842 740 1,582 332 1244 "8
Right-of-use asset 2,720 - 2,720 259 - 2.59°
Deferred tax assets 1,364 420 1,784 1383 346 1729
Contract assets 11,906 373 12,279 8,827 305 9132
Inventories 448 - 446 807 - 607
Trade and other receivables 26,959 2,802 25,861 26496 1433 27928
Cash and cash equivalents 1,024 14,849 15,873 5,381 1,443 6,824
Total assets £9,682 57723 127,405 71630 43,565 115188

Year ended 31 March 2020

Year endled 31 March 2018 Restated

Infrastructure: Utility assets:

Infrastructure:

Utihry assets

Design and Own and Desigrs and Twr and
Build Qperate  Total Group Build Cperate  Total Group

_ £000 £000 £:000 £000 £0C0 €000
Liabllites reported by segrment
Trade and other payakles (7320) (27624) (34,944 (8458) {23827y (32.38L)
Contract liabilities (27,383) (522) (27.905) (26,43) (2000 (26.343)
Borrowings - (10,600) (10,000) - [3.000) (3.C00)
Current lease labibity (772) - (772) [754) - ‘754
Prov sions (58) - {58) (96) - {26)
Non-currerit lease habilivy (2,226) - (2,228) (2102) (2102
Deferrad tax haoility {2,299) {2,894) {5,193) - (5186} (5186)
Total lizbilities (40,058) (41,040) (81,098) (37254} (32.313) (82867}

The totals shown above for both trade and other receivables ard rade and other payables differ to the consclidated balance sheet
as aresuit of an ntercompany dalance of £23,035k (2019: £21,537k) owed by the Utility assets Own and Operate segment 1¢ the

Infrastructure Desigr and Bulld segment
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3. Alternative Performance Measures

As detziled n the Chuef Fimangial Officer's Statement, the Group uses Alternative Performarce Measuraes (APMs), as listed below,

10 present users of the accourts with 3 clear view of wrat the Group considers to be the results of its underlying, sustainzble business
operaricns, thereby erabling consistent pericd-on-cened compansons and making it easier for users of the accounts to dentify trends.

Alternaive Performance Measure Cefirnien )

Adjusted revenue Adjusted revenue is Group revenue after adding asse: value revenue previously credted to revenue,
now credited to cost of sales under (FRS 15

Adjusted EBITDA from Operating (loss)/orofit exciLaing except orat items, amorusation and depresiation and eguity-settlea

conunuINg operatcns share based payments.

Adjusted profit sefors taxation Profit before taxation excluding ar-arusation of acquired ntangibles and excectional itermns incluged

within cost of sales and administrative expenses
Net assets per share Net assets divided by the numkber of shares in issue at the financial repart ng date

Areconcihaton of tnese Alternative Performance Measures has been disclosed in the tables nelow:

(a)} Adjusted revenue

31 March 31 varcr
2020 2019
. o B . N - 7  £000 £000
Revenue 46,101 48,805
Adjusted for
Asset value revenue previously gredited to revenue grior to adoption of IFRS 15, now ¢radited
to cost of sales (see note 1) 6,707 8151
Like-for-like adjusted revenue 52,808 57056
(b} Reconciliation of operating (loss)/profit to "adiusted EBITDA from continuing operations”
31 March
31 March 2019
2020 Restated
) ) . ) E000 £000
Operating (loss)/profit (2,101} 8127
Adjusted for
Exceptional items within operating (loss)/profit (notc 5) 2,636 1,294
Amortisation and deprectauon 4,019 3388
Equity-settled share based payrrents {8) s
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations 4,548 10,924
{c] Recongiliation of profit before tax to "adjusted profit hefore tax”
31 Mgch
31 March 2019
2020 Restated
o L i L - £000 £000
Profiz before tax 1,313 5954
Adjusted for
Exceptional tems ncluded in cost of sales 1,766 B&3
Exceptional items included in adrriristrative expenses 870 41
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 1,356 354
Adjusted profit before tax 5,305 8602
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{d) Net assets per share
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31 March
31 March 209
2020 Restated
B £'000 20N
MNet assets a7 end of period 46,307 45328
Issued sharas at end of pencd 22218 221303
Net assets per share 20.8p 205p
4, Revenue
Year ended  Year endec
31 March 31 Maich
2020 2019
) £000 £000
Infrastructure revenue 41,848 4592
Utility asset ownership revenue 4,253 2,984
Total revenue 48,101 48,905
{a) Disaggregation of revenue
In the follawing table, revenue is disaggregated ty crimary geographic rmarket, service lines and timing of reven.e recognition
The table also includes arsconciliatior of the disaggregated revenue with the Group reportable segmants (see note 2)
Infrastructure services Utility assets
Inelels) 2020 2019 2020 2019
Primary geographic markets
United Kingdom 41,848 45821 4,253 2984
41,848 4582 4,253 2,984
Service line
Service reverue on long-term contracts 21,097 75125 - -
Service revenueg on short-term contracts 20,198 20,228 - -
Maintenance contracts 555 528 - -
Utiity asset ownershp - - 4,253 2,984
41,848 45921 4,253 2984
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred cver time 41,848 45,921 4,253 2,984
41,848 45921 4,253 2884

(b} Contracting balances

The fellowing table provides information about receivables, contract assets a~d contract habilities from contracts with customers:

vear ended  Year endex

31 March 31 darch

2020 20'9

o £000 000

Receivables, which are included in "trade and other receivables” 3744 3,972
Contract assers 12,279 9132
Contract labihties 27,905 76,343

The contract assets primarly relate to work in progress oninfrastructure crojects The contract labilines primarnily relate to deferred inco™e

Deferred income represents contracted sales for which services to customers will be provided in future pericas.
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5. Exceptional items

Year ended  vear ended

31 March 31 Maren

2020 2019

£000 £000

Exceptions! itermns included ir cost of sales 1,766 833
Exceptionsl items included ir administrative expenses 87C 1
Profi on sale of subsiciary - exceptional items (3,886) -

(1.250}) 1284

{a) Exceptional items included in cost of sales

Year ended  Year ended

31 March 31 Marg~

2020 2018

: £000  £000

Fixed asset imparrmert 1,766 883
1,766 883

Fixed asset impairment relates tc the impairmeanst of utiliny assets not previously revalued upwards

(b) Excepticnal items included in administrative expenses

Year ended  “vear ended

31 March 31 March
2020 2018

£000 EDOO
Restructuring costs 641 276
One-off legal and adviser costs 229 135
870 411

Restructuring costs relate to employee exit ard severance costs

(¢) Profit on sale of subsidiary

Year ended  Yoar ended

Profit on sale of subsidiary

31 March 31 harck
2020 019
£:000 £000
(3,886) -
(3.886) -

On 27 January 2020, utility assets belonging tc o-e of the Group’s subsidiaries, Fulerum Pipelires Limited, were transferred to a fellow
Group subsidiary, Gas Newco 1 Limitad Cn 31 March 2020, the Sroup disposed of its 100% equity interest in Gas Newco * Limied

The transaction gave rise o the following profit on disposal

Year ended

21 March

2020

_ } £000
Consideration - proceeds received (16,756)
Consideration - retention {receivable 1n Septencber 2027) {500)
Consiceration - deferred {receved 30 June 2020} (670)
Total consideration {17.926)
Net bock value of assets acquired 9,724
Revaluation in prior per ods 3,071
Legal costs relating to the transaction 1,245
(3.886)

Some of the disposed utility assets had previously been revalued in accordance with the Group policy
1S a transfer hetweer the revaluation reserve and reta.nec aarnings of £3,071,000

64 Fulerum Utility Services Limited Annual Report and Accounts 2020

Upen disposal, this gave rise



Strateqic report [/ Corporate governance [ Financial statements

6. Operating (loss)/profit
Included in operaiing (less)/profit are me following charges

Year endec
Year ended 31 Maich
31 March 209
2020 Hastated
— o £000 £6500
Amortisation of Intangible assets 1,79 1612
Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment 1,419 Q75
Depreciation of right-of-use asset 809 80"
Amounts receivable by the auditer ard its associates in -espact of:
Audit fees:
Audit of the Group financizl staterments 120 91
The audit of the Corrpany’s subsidianes pursuant to leg slation 80 73
Total fees for the audit of the Group ane 1ts subsidiaries 200 164
Nen-audit fees:
- Audit relatad services - 9

Fees paid to firms of sccountants other than the Group's sudhitor and its affiliated entities for non-audit services for the year ended

31 Mareh 2020 arounted 1o £30k (2019 £25k)

7. Staff numbers and costs

Year ended  vear ended

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

o £000 £000

Wages and salaries 13,098 13028
Social security ¢osts 1391 1405
Other pensicn costs 423 553
Share based paymenis {8) iiis}
14,508 15101

The average monthly ~umber of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) dur ng the period, analysed by category,

was as follows

Narreer of erployees _ _ ,, . I 2020 2019

Operational 145 ey

Support 149 125
284 246

Details of the remungration, share options and pens on entitlement of the Directors are ncluded in the Remuneration Report on page 44

8. Finance costs and finance income

Year ended
Year ended 31 March
31 March 2019
2020 Res-ated
o B £000 £000
Finance costs

Finarce costs or lease liability (119) ("3}
Finance costs paid In respect of revolving credit facility (319) {72}
Banking charges {37 (M
Total firance costs 475) (186}

Finance income
Bark interest recevable 3 13
Total finance income 3 i3
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9. Taxation
veoar ended
Year ended 31 vargn
31 March 2019
2020 Restatad
£000 £000
Current tax 128 620
Deferred tax (371 422
Toial rax charge (243) 1,042

A change to the mam UK corporation tax rate, anncunced in the 2udget on 11 March 2020, was substantvely enactad or 17 March 2020
The rate apphcable from 1 Apnl 2020 now remains at 18 0%. Ceferred tax balances have been adjusted accordingly and are calculated

on the basis that they will unwind at 19.0%.

The Group has £9.3 m lizn (2019 £70 G million) of tax losses for which deferred tax assets of £1 8 miliion (2012: £1 7 myllion) have been
recognised During the pericd £01 e llion of the deferred tax asset was utilised against taxable profits. The deferred tax asser 1s expected
to be recovered over 12 years The Group also has unrecogn sed tax losses of £1.8 million (2019: £1 4 mill en), for which no deferred tax

asset is recognised as there is insufficiert cerainty over whether the losses will reverse

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Year encled
Year ended 31 Marcn
31 March 2019
2020 Restatad
£000 €000
Profit before taxation 1,313 5,854
Tax using the UK corporation tax rate of 190% (2019 190%) {249) (1131)
Non-taxable itens 535 37
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation - -
Effect of change i rate of corporation tax (62) (M09}
Tax deductions for share aprions exarcised 16 788
Adjustment to ax charge in respect of previous year's corparation £ax (128) 122)
Adjustment to tax charge in respect of previcus vear s deferred tax 219 {431)
Release of previously recognised losses (88) -
Total tax charge 243 (1,042)
Mavement in deferred tax balances
31 March 2020 3 Marck 2019
B Deferred )
Daferred Deferred tax assetls Deferred
tax assets  taxliabilihes Restaled  tax habuliies
_E000 £'000 EQ00 £000
At beginring of period 1,729 (5.186) 2223 3411
Recognised in profit or loss
Adjdstrent in respect of previous years - 219 {2072) 1228)
Tax losses utilised (49} - (258) -
Effect of change in rate of corporation tax 200 (263) (25) (54)
Newly recognised deferred tax liability - - - 92
Onagnation/reversal of cther tming differences N 358 7 -
Released tax haoility - - - 257
Release of previously recognised losses (89) - - -
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Ravaluation of property, plant and equipment - (321 - 1.848)
At the end of the pericd 1,784 {5193} 1,729 (5186)
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10. Dividends
In the year e~dea 31 Marcn 2020, the following dividends were paid
Year ended  rear endec
31 March 31 March
2020 20y
£000 £000
Equity dividend
Paid during the year
Final anvidend inrescect of 2018 140 per share - 3,085
Inter m dividend in respect of 2019 075p per share - 1853
Firal cividend in respect of 2019 15p per share 3,331 -
Total dividends 3,33 A738

Nomenm dividends were declared and ro final dividends are proposed relating 1o the year ended 31 March 2020

11. Earnings per share (EPS)
(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic and d luted earnings per share has been based on the following profit attributatle to ordinary shareholders and

weighted average rumber of ordinary shares outstanding:

‘tear enclec
Year ended 3t March
31 March 2019
2020 Restater!
B - o £'000 000
Profit for the year used for calculation of basic EPS 1,556 4912
Except onal terrs included in cost of sales 1,766 883
Exceptio~al items included in administration expenses 870 a4
Remove tax relief on exceptional items (501) (246)
Amortisaticn of iIntangibles 1,356 1,354
Profit for the year used for calculation of adjusted EPS 5,047 7315
Number of stares {000}
31 March 31 Mareh
2020 201
Nurnber Nurnier
- . . of shares of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic EPS 221,807 217205
Effect of potentially dilutive crdirary shares 4,901 9,838
Waighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted EPS 226,808 227043
EPS
Basic 0.7p 23p
Dilutad basie QJp 22p
Ad usted basic 2.3p 34p
Ad;usted diluted basic 2.2p 3%p
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12. Property, plant and equipment
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

Utihty
assc°s

Utility under  Fixtures and Computer

assels  construchior fittings eguipment Toal

£000 £000 £ 000 £000 £000
Cost
At1 April 2018 25,042 G524 321 1077 36464
Addrions 3.566 17342 234 142 21,285
Assets completes .n periog 19,922 118,922) - - -
Asgset uplift to revaluation reserve - 1108 - - 1108
Revaluztion 11,382 - - - 11,380
At 31 March 2019 59910 8,045 1.055 1,218 70229
Additions 6019 17672 1C 88 23789
Assets completad in perica 18,338 (12,338} - - -
Asset uphft to revaluation reserve - 951 - - 951
Revaluztion 3036 ~ - - 3036
Disposals 13721 - - 31 13759
At 31 March 2020 73,582 8,330 1,065 1.276 84,253
Accumulated degreciation
At1 April 2018 (8.332) (6.938} 426) (847) (18,543}
Depreciation charge for the pencd (694) - {165) (118} (375)
Hickman Shearer impairrmeant (3.428) - - - (3.428}
impairment - (9,8963) - - (2.969)
Assets completed n penod (12.780) 12,7820 - - -
At 31 March 2019 25,234) (4127) {5971} (983) (3C915)
Depreciction charge for the period 1112) - {126} asn {1419)
Impairment from internal revaluation {2,852) - - - (2,852)
Irparment - a1gn B - 1197
Assets completec in pericd (11,749) 1,749 - - -
Disposals 927 - - 23 950
At 31 March 2020 (40,020) (3.575) 717 (1121} (45,433}
Net book value
At 31 March 2020 33.562 4,755 348 155 38,820
At 31 March 2019 34878 3918 464 256 39314
At 1 Apnl 2018 18710 2,688 395 230 14,921

Utilizy assets include £0.5 million (Z019. £1 2 million) of meter assets valued at cost less depreciation to date

Disposals include utility assets with a net bock value of £12.785.000 owned by one of the Group's former subsidianes, Gas hewco ™ Ltd.
The Greup's equity holding in the subsidiary was disposed of on 31 March 2020 See note 5

{b} Measurement of fair values

The fair value of utility assets (excluding meters) at 31 March 2020 was determined internally and was based upon the seme principles
as the external valuation, which was last performed by independent specialist valuers at 31 March 2019 When performing its valuation,
management has used |udgement in assessing the key assumptions used in the valuation model including asset Iife and cccupancy
rates The valuation technicue wsed is classified as a Level 3 farr value (based on uncbservable inputs) urder IFRS 13 The urility assets
and utility assets undear construction are the only financial assets that are held at fair value in the financial statements

(¢) Impairment loss

Following the valuation of the utility asset estate animparment charge of £2.9 milhon (2019, £3 4 midlion} was recorded £1.1 millen
(2018. £2 5 million) of the loss was offset against the revaluation resarve (see note 22) 25 1t related to amounts previously revalued
upwards The remaining £1 8 million (2019: £0 @ million) ~as been included in the consolidated statement of comprebensive income
as an exceptional item.
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13. Capital commitments
The Growp has entered 1tc contracts to purchase property. plant and equipment in the for— of utiity assets from external parties,
at 31 March 2020 the balance was £14 O million (2019 £18 7 milhon}

14, Intangible assets
Zrand ana Sutlware anc
sustomer  develuptnent

coouwll  celalionships costs ‘oial
Recorciliafion ol carryng arreunt i €000 £000 €000 000
Cost
At 31 March 2008 14,251 12607 3558 30414
Additions - - 884 834
At 31 March 2018 1£.25° 12,607 4,440 31,298
Adcit ons - - 326 328
Dispasals _ ) - - (91) (9"
At 31 March 2020 14,251 12,607 4,675 31,533
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 31 March 2018 - (208) (2,409} (2617)
Amortisation for t-e penod B - (1,354} 258) {(1.612)
At 21 March 2018 - (1,562 (2,667 (4.229)
Amortisation for the period - (1.356) {435) (1,791
Drsposals - - g ]
At 37 March 2020 - (2,918) (3,093) (8,011}
Net book value
At 31 March 2020 14,251 9,688 1,582 25,522
At 31 March 2019 14,251 11.045 1773 27069
At 31 March 2018 14,251 12,399 1147 27797

(a) Amortisation
The amaortisation of brand, customer relationships and software (including development costs) is included in administrative expensas

{b} Impairment testing

The Group tests goadwill annually for impairment or mo-e frequently f there are indicaricns that intargibles might be impared.
Goodwill 1s tested for impairment by comparing the carrying amount of each CGU with the recoverable amount Goodwill brought
forward at the start of the year relates 1o the acquisition of Fulcrurm Group Hoidings Limited on 8 July 2010, the acquisition of The Dunamis
Group Limited on & February 2018 and the acguisition of CDS PSL Holdings Limited on 27 March 2018 The carryirg amount of the
intang ble asset is allocated across zash-generating units (CGUs) The goodw [l held by the Group relates to either the infrastructure
services CGU. Dunaris. which has two CGUs, or the CDS CGU

A segment-level summary o the goadwill allocation is presentad below

Fulcrum Dupa~is CDs Total
As at 31 Mareh 2013 and 31 March 2020 . ] £000 2000 £000 2000
Goodwill 2275 Nn331 595 14,251

The recoverable armounts are determined based on value 1n use calculations which reguire assumptions The annual iImpairment test
was perforned for the four CGUs identf ed above that have goodwill allccated to them The fair velue measurement was categonsed
as a Level 3 farr value based on the irputs in the valuation tecanique used

The recoverable amounts of the above ZGUs have been determined from value ir use calculations wh ch have been predicated on

d scountad cash flow projections from financ-al budgets epproved by the Board covering a one year period, -ogether with management
forecasts for a further four year penod The values assigned to the key assumptions represent managernant’s assessment of future
trends m the relevant industries and have been hased on fustorical data from both external and nternal sources, rogether with the
Group’s views on tae future achievable growth and the iImpact of committed cash “lows Cash flows beyond this are extrapolated
using the estimated long-term: growth rates as surmmansed in the following parsgraph

Tre pre-tax cash flows that these projections produced were discountad at pre-tax discount rates based on the Group's beta sdjusted cost
of capital reflecting management's assessment of specific risks related o each cash-generatng unit. Pre-tax discount rates of betwaen
7.2% and 8 0% (2019 between 8 2% and 13 3%) have been used in the impairment calculations which the Directors beleve farrly reflect
the -isks irherent in each of the CGUs. The terminal cash flows are extrapolated in perpetuity usmg 2 growth rate of 2 0% (2019 2 0%)
Thig is prudently aligned with the inflaticn rate and 1s not considered 1o be higher than the long-term industry growth rate
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14, Intangible assets continued
(b) Impairment testing continued

The value in use assessment is sensitive ta changes in the key assurrprions used. Sensitivity analysis has been performed on the
indwdual CGUs w th @ 1.0% increase in the discount rate and a1 0% reducticn ir the long-term growth rate Based on this analysis
no reasonably possible changes to these assumptions resulted in animpairment charge being requ red

15. Leases

The Graup has leases for fanc and bulddings and plant and machinery Leases for land and builaings relate mainly to office properties
and depots, whilst the plant and machinery leases are predominantly motar vehicles With the excertion of snort-term teases and

leases of low-value unaerlying sssets. each lease 15 reflected on the balance shee: as a right-of-use asset and g lease lability

Leases of property range from a period of three 1o ten years, and leases of motor veh-cles are for three or four years Lease payments
are generally “ixed The use of extensior and termirztion cpticns within leases gives the Group flexibility and sush options are exercised
when they algn wth the Group's strategy and woerg econornic benefits of exercising suc options exceed the expected overall costs

31 March 3 Mack
2020 2019
R._gh[—h.f—use as5eTs £'000 £000
Land ard buldings 1,234 1,481
Plan: and machinery 1,486 e
Total 2720 2,591
31 March 31 Marcn
2020 2019
o £000 £ 000
Additions tg righs-of-use assets 938 508
Additicns to nght-of-use assets Inciude new leases arnd axtensions to existng lease agreements

31 March 31 Mare~
2020 2014

Bt-:reuat wnan r\ghl—of:L.se assels . 2000 i—.U&
Land and buildings 247 236
Plant and machinery 582 565
Total 808 B0O1

land and bulldings

Flart and machinery

31 March 31 parch 31 March 31 March

2020 2012 2020 29

tatunty of lease habilities £1000 £700 £'000 £000
Less than ore year 212 236 560 08
Between one and f ve years 943 914 971 534
In more than five years N2 554 - -
Total 1,467 1,704 1,531 1152
31 March 31 March

2020 FIVIE]

Other impasct on profit arj_d loss . £000 £000
Finance costs on leases ne 13
Expense or short-term and low value leases 97 127
Total 216 240
31 March 31 Marck

2020 2018

ash flows in resoect of leases £000 £000
[FRS 16 - principal payments 797 784
IFRS 1€ - intérast payments 18 13
Cash cutflows reiating to short-term and low value leases g7 127
Total 1013 1024
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16, Contract assets

31 March 31 March

2020 2013

. £000 £000
Werk noprogress 4,204 3227
Contract receivanles 8,075 5,905
12,279 9132

Toral

The work In pragress balances reflect direct work cosis including direct labour and otner attriburable vatisble costs relating to jobs
classed as incomualete There have been no wrize-downs ir the year (2019 nil) - contract recevakles relate to infrastructure revesue

completed but not invoiced

17. Trade and other receivables

31 March 31 March
2020 207G

. o £000 £000
Trade receivables 3,744 3572
Other receivables and prepayments 3,082 2,420
6,825 5,392

Trade and cther receivaicles are nor-irterest bearing Due to the activit es eand dwersified customer structure of the Group, thera s no

significant concentration of cradit risk

The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating expectad cradit losses The cred t risk associated with this recevable 1s
rmg~aged through the Group's standard credit processes The Diractors consider that the carrying amaount of trade recevables

approximates to ther fair vaide

31 March 2020 A hlarch PNg

Gross  imparrment Gross  Frpairment
Ageny of tade recelvatles = £000 E’OOOVL £000 £000
MNat past due 1.020 - 1122 -
Past due less than one menth 1,223 - 213" -
Past due one to two months 755 - 456 -
More than two months past due 759 {13} 270 13}
3,757 (13) 3,985 (13)
The carrying value of trade ard cother recevablas is stated afte- the followirg allowance for doubtful debts
31 March JF wrarch
2020 209
) ~ _ £000 £000
At the beg nning of the penica 13 140
Irmpairment losses charged 87 -
Impairmnent losses raversed (67} (127
13 13

At the end of the period

Information about the Group's exoosure to credit and market sk is included i~ note 30

18. Pension benefits

The Group operates a defined contnibution censicn olan, the total expense relating tc this plan 1IN the current year was £423,000

(2019 £553.000)
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19. Share based payments
Deta s of the existing schemes and schemes granted in the year and the inputs that were entered into the Monte Carlo valuation model
are provided celow:

G55 2013 option plan SAVZ 2076 opucn olas SAYE 2017 option plan SAYE 2075 option plan SAYE 2019 opt on plar

Status Exist'ng plan Existing plan Existing clan Existing plan Existing plan
Grant date 3 August 2018 3 February 2006 3 Februsary 2017 5 February 2018 5 February 2019
Nurmiber of opt ¢ns 3,944,064 2678416 513.000 749,520 3982755
Exarcise prics £nil 2210 500p 300p 3510
Vesting critena Hurdie ore: Maturity date of Matunty date of Marturty date of Maturity date of

Average gshare orice 1 March 2019 “ Margn 2020 1T March 2021 T March 2022

of 100.2p over
20 consecutive
working days

Hurdle two-
Average share orice
of 130 0p over

20 consecutive
wii<ing days

Volatity 236 8% 566% T968% 2301% 2813%
Dividend yield 317% 249% 1.92% 320% £30%
Qption life 3 years 3 years 3 yeas 3 years 3 years
Annual risk free iate 0.82% C.45% onz% Q74% 161%
Outstanding at the beginning of 32728987 1725772 513,000 188120 3962783
the year

Exercised during the year - (930,778) (10,800} (4,600) -
Lapsed during the year® {660.840) (775.447) (434,780} (43,330) (1.826,138)
Qutstanaing at the end of the year 2568047 19547 67,220 123,240 20652534
Exercisable at the end of the vear - 19,547 67320 - -

* Lapsed shares relate to indwduals forfeiting therr opuons by leaving the scneme or by deciding not to exarcise their options
No cash-settled share based payment awards have been granted to employees.

The volat:lity was determined by calculating the historical volatlity of the Groun's share price since the Group's listing on AlM in
December 2009

The weighted average share price durning the vear ended 31 March 2020 was 25 8p

The expected useful fe used in the model has been adjusted, based on best estimates, to refloct exarcise restrictions and behavoural
considerations

In the yezr, the Group recognised a £6,00C credit before tax (2019 £115,000 cna-ge) In relation to equity-settled share beased payment
transactions in the statemen: of comprehensive ncome with the oppos te entry being to the retained earnings reserve The credit for
the year 1s a result of a significant increase in the number of cptions lapsing i1 the vear, reducing the armount of options expectsed to
aventually vest

20. Share capital

31 March 3 Marcr
2020 2018
o B £1000 £000
Authorised
500,000,000 ordina-y shares of EC0C1 cach 500 500
Allotted, issued and fully paid
222117945 (2019 221,303108; crdinary shares of E00071 each 222 221

Ordinary sharehzlders are entizled to div dends as declared During the year 814,839 ordirary shares (2019 10 6 million ordinary shares)
ware 1ssued with @ ~ominal value of £815 (2019 £10,647) tc employees exercising vested share cptiors The shares issued in the year
had a nominal valug of £0 001 eacr and were 1ssued at £0 227 each
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21. Share premium

31 March 31 March
2020 20°G
- o L £000 £000
At the begnning of the pericd 210 2°042
Civ dencs paid - (4.738)
Caprtal transfer to retaned earnings - (16,605}
Shares issued 179 &N
At the end of the period 389 210
In February 2019, a capital transfer was performed of £16.6 milf on from the share premium account to retained earnings Unde-
Cayman law, distributions can be made sut of share premium snlike in the UK As such, the transfer was performed to provide
better ¢lanty to the reader of the accounts
22, Revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve relates to the revaluat on of the Group’s Jtility asset estate
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
£000 £000
At the beginning of the penczd 12.737 4649
Revaluation i the period {note 12) 3,038 11,380
Sapius arising on utllity assets internally adoptad in the year (note 12) 951 1100
Disposal of previously revalued assets (note 5} {3.071} -
Asset impa rmant (1,086} 2,544)
Depreciation on previously revalued assets (307} -
Recognition of deferred tax liahility (note 9) (321} (1.848)
At the end of the pericd 1,939 12737

23. Merger reserve

The merger reserve ~elates to the premium arising on theissue of shares as part of the acquisition of Tre Dunamis Group Lirited
on 5 February 2018 and CDS P5L Holdings Limited on 27 March 2018

31 March 31 March

2020 2079

e o _ £ooo - £000

At the beginning and end of the pericd 11,347 11,347
24. Retained earnings

31 March

31 March 2079

2020 Restared

o £000 £000

At the beginning of the pericd 20,813 {819)

Retained profit in the period 1,556 4912

Divdencs paid {3,331} -

Capital transfer* - 16,608

Equity-settled share based payment transactions {6) 15

Depreciation on previously revalued assets 307 -

Disposal of previcusly revalued assers 3,071 -

At the end of the period 22,410 20.813

T Seenate 71 share precwum for details
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25. Trade and other payables

31 Maren

31 March 2019
2020 Rostated

B o . £000 £050
Trace payables 5,593 5881
Other payables 8,316 4,266
1,909 10,847

26. Contract liabilities

31 March 31 March
2020 2019

e o £000 EOOO_
Centract habilities 27905 26,343
27,905 26,343

Of the £27 9 million contract i abilities balanze, €18 & million (2019 £20 9 million; relates to deferred income Deferred income

represents contracted sales for which services to customers will be croviced In future pericds

Informat on about the Group's exposure to | quidity risks is included in note 30

27. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

On 4 June 2018, the Group enterad inta a three yaar revalving credit fac lity agreement with Lloyds Ban<ng Grour for up to £20 million
The facil ty supported the forecast grow:h in utility asset cwnership of gas and electricity assets by the Group, with drawdowns secured
against the acquired utility assets The facility was structured as an “accerdion” facility, with £10 C millior committed at 31 March 2C20.

The facil ty was subsequently settled in fult on 1 Acnl 2020

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

31 March 31 Marcn
2020 2019
- I £000 £ 000
At the beginning of the period 3,000
MNew borrowings 7000 3000
At the end of the pericd 10,000 3000
{b) Terms and repayment schedule
31 March 31 March
Nominal Year of 2020 2019
Currency b raicrcst rate ~—aturty £000 £000
Borrowings GBP LIBOR + 20% 2021 10,000 2000
The Grzup has complied with the financial covenants [interest cover and leverage covenants) relating to the above facilities
28, Recongiliation to net funds
31 March 21 Marchk
2020 2018
o £000 £000
Cash ard cash ecuivalents 15.973 6,824
Borrowings (10,000) (3,007)
Net funds 5973 3824
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29. Provisions

31 March 3T sarch
2020 20°g
. o £000 £000
At the beginning of the pericd 96 98
Utilised duning the period (38) 2
Frovision created during the period - -
At the end of the period 58 96

The provision relates to warranty provisions held in Dunamus Infrastructure Serv ces Limited. The provis on has been estimated based
on historical warranty data asscciated wits similar products and services and s expected to be usilised over two years.

30. Financial risk management
The Group has exposure to the following rsks ‘rom its use of financial instruments:

« market nsk;

» liguidity risk;

« caoial risk, and

« credit risk,

This note presents basic informat on regardirg the Grouo's exposure to these nisks and the Group's cbjectives srategy and processes
The Board has overall raspensibihity for risk management of the Group and agrees policies for managing the risks asscciatad

Market risk

Market risk represents the potential for changesir interest rates and foreign exchange prices to affect the Group's profit and the vslue
of its financial instruments It also incorporates the affect of the overall UK construction/utilities irdustry an the Group The Groun's
objective in market nisk management 1s t& minmise its exposures to fluctuations within such variables whilst optimsing retumns

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk genearally anses from its barrowing facility. The Group agreed a debt fac ity of up to £20.0 miliicn
with Lloyds Banking Sroup ole, on 2 June 2018, to suoport the forecast growth 1n utility asset ownership of gas and electnicity assets
Ar 31 March 2020 £10.0 mullion was drawn at an interest rate of 2.0% plus LIBOR and the fac Ity was subsequently settied in full on

1 Apnl 2020 Trerefore, the Group 1s not exposed to significant Interes: rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in forsign excnange 1s low as the Group operates within the UK

Liguidity risk

Liquigity risk 15 the risk that the Group will not be able to meetts firancial obligaticns as they fall due The Board is respaonsible for
ens.ring that t~e Group has sufficient hguidity to meet its financial lisbilities as they fall due wathout incurnng unacceptable losses or

riskirg damage to the Group and does so by manitering cash flow forecasts and budgets. The Group's exposure to hgu dity risk reflects
1ts ability to readily access the funds to suoport 1ts operations

Liguidity forecasts are produced on a regular bas s and include the expected cash flows that will occur an a weekly, monthly and
quarterly basis This mfarmaticn s used it conjunctior with the weekly reporting of astual cash balances at bark in order teo czloulate
the level of funding that will be required In the shart and medium term

To suppert the forecast growth in utility asset ownrership of gas and electricity assets, the Group agreed a debt facility of up ic £20 0 million
N June 2018 At 31 March 2020 the Grouo had drawn down £10.0 milhon from the facility to fund the acquisition of utility assets, with
the loan being secured against the acguired assets As outlirec in the interest rate risk section above, the facility was repaid in full

on 1 April 2020

The Group’s close working capital management is deemed to be sufficient to meet projected hiquichty reguiremants

Cash deposits
The Group has a policy of ensuring cash denosits are made with the primary chjective of secunty of principal Accordingly deposits are mads
only with approved, respected, high credit raung financial institutions Depaosits are made on a short-term asis only to preserve hquid ty

Capital risk

The capital structure of the Group consists of the ne: cash/deb: (borrowings as detalled in note 26 offset by cash balances) and
equity of the Group. The Group's abjective In managing caprtal 1s primarly to ensure the continued ability of the Groug o meet its
habilities as they fall due whilst also mamtaining an approprate balance of equity and borrowings and minimising costs of capital In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structurs, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, retarn capital to
shareholders or issue new snares Decisions regarding the balance of aquity and barrowings, dividend polcy and all major borrowing
facilities are reserved for the Boara
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30. Financial risk management continued

Credit risk

Creditrisk arises fror cash and cash eguivalents and credit exposure 1o the Group's customers A high propertion of the Sroup’s
custorrers pay In advarce of works commencing, with the raraning przfile consisting of estaclisned 2r listed busnesses when
typiczlly pay on stage paymen: terms with cash received in zdvance of works commencirg The creditworthiress of new customers is
assesse by taking into account their financial positon, past expe-ience and other factors Itis considered that the failure of any single
counterparty would nct meatenially impact the financial wellbeing of -he Groug

31. Related parties
The Group has related oarty relationships with izs s_bsiaianies, Drectars and key managerent cersonnel Deta ls of the remuneration
share options and pensicn entitlement of the Directors are includad in the Remunaration Resort on page 44

I the year, purchases totalling £80,817 were made by the Group to companies in which key management personnel held significant

i~terests The purchasas were for equipment hire and sub-contracting services Lsed in the ordinary ccurse of business

32. Impact of transition to IFRS 16

Year ended
31 March
2020 Year ended
Excluding IFRS 16 31 March
IFRS 16 adjustments 2020
Impact on profit for the year ended 31 March 2020 Notes £000 £'000 €000
Revenue 46,101 - 48,101
Cost of sales - underlying {0 (32,020) 65 (31,855)
Cost of sales - exceptional iterms (1,766) - (1,7686)
Total cost of sales (33,786) 65 (33,721)
Gross profit 12,315 85 12,380
Administrative exoenses - urderlying () (13.855) 44 (13,611)
Admin strative exoenses - exceptional iterms {870) - {870)
Total administrative expenses (14,525) a4 (14,481}
QOperating loss (2,210) 109 {2,101
Profit on sale of subsidiary - exceptional items 3,886 - 3,888
Net finanse expense ) (353} (119) (472)
Profic he‘ore taxation 1,323 {10) 1,313
Taxation 250 (7} 243
Profit for the period attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,573 (17) 1,556
Year ended
31 March Vear ended
20312 31 March
Exclucing IFRS 16 2019
IFRS16  adwstments Restated
Impact on prof tfor the year ended 31_[@@_2019 Mates £'C00 £000 £000
Revenue 48,905 - 45905
Cust of sales — underlying {y {29708) 55 {29653)
Cost of sales - exceptional items (883) - (R83)
Total cost of sales (30.581) 85 (30536}
Gross profit 18,374 55 18,369
Administrative exoenses - urderlying 0 (11,874} 43 (11,831
Administrative exoenses - axcepticnal items A1) - (any
Total adinistrative expenses (12,288) 43 {12,242)
Qperating profit 5,023 98 6,127
Net finance expense 10} (80) 1113) 173
Profit before taxation 5,868 {15} 5854
Taxation (1,035) {7 1,042}
Profit for the period attributable to equity holders of the parent 4,934 (22) L3412
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32. Impact of transition to IFRS 16 continued

31 March
2G20
Excluding IFRS 18 31 March
IFRS 16 adjustments 2020
Balance shest impact at 31 March 2020 Plotes £000 £000 £'000
Non-current assets
Property. plant and sguipmeant 38,820 - 38,820
Intangible assets 25,522 - 25,522
Righ--of-use asset {ii) - 2,720 2,720
Deferred tax assets 1,769 15 1,784
66,111 2,735 68,846
Current assets
Contract assets 12,279 - 12,279
Inventories 4486 - 446
Trade and cther recevables 6,826 - 6,826
Cash and cash equivalents 15,973 - 15,973
35,524 - 35,524
Total assets 101,635 2,735 104,370
Current liabifities
Trade and other payabtles vy (12,009) 100 (11,909)
Contract habilities (27,905) - (27,905)
Borrowings {10,000) - (10,000)
Current lease liability {ni} - (772) (772)
Provigions (58) - {58)
(49,972) (672) (50,644)
Non-current liabilities
Nan-currert lease liability HI)] - {2,226) (2,226)
Deferred tax lakilities (5,193) - {5,193)
(5193) {2,226) {7.419)
Total liabilities {55,165) (2,898) (58,063)
Net assets 46,470 (163) 48,307
Equity
Share capital 222 - 222
Share preTiunm 389 - 389
Revaluation reserve 1,939 - 1,838
Merger reserve 11,347 - 11,347
Retaned earnings 22,573 (163) 22,410
Total equity 46,470 (163) 48,307
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32. Impact of transition to IFRS 16 continued

31 Marcr
2019 51 Marck
Excluding IFRS 15 2019
IFRS "8  adustments Aestatad

Balance sheel irpact at 31 March 2019 MNotes £000 £000 EQ00
Nen-current assets
Praperty, pla~t and aquipmens 39314 - 3834
Intangible assets 27069 - 27068
Right-of-use asset (B - 259 2581
Deferred tax assets 1707 22 1729

88080 2513 70703
Current assets
Contract assets 9132 - 5132
Inventores 607 - 507
Trade and other receivables 6,392 - 6392
Cash and cash eguvalents 68,824 - 5,824

22,955 - 22955
Total assets 51,045 2813 33,658
Current liabilities
Tracde and other pavables vy {(10,948) 98 (10,848)
Contract habilities {26,343) - (26.343)
Borrowings (3,000) - (3.000)
Current lease | ability {1 - (754) (754)
Provisions (96) - (96)

(40.325) (€57) (£1.042)
Non-current liabilities
Nan-current lease liability {in) - (2102} {2102)
Deferred tax habilities 51588) - {5186)

5186) (2102) (7,288)

Total liabilities {45571) (27549}  (48.330)
Net assets 45 474 (148} 45,328
Equity
S~are capital 221 - 221
Srare premium 210 -~ 210
Revaluation reserve 12737 - 12,737
Merger reserve 11,347 - 1,347
Retained earmings 20,958 {146) 70,813
Total equity 45,474 {1486) 42,328
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32. iImpact of transition to IFRS 16 continued

31 March
2018 3 March
Excluding IFRS 15 2018
IFRS 16 adjustiments Res ateg
Balance sheet impact at 31 March 2013 R Motes 2000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Property. plant anc eguipment 19,02" - 18892
Inangible assets 27797 - 27797
Rignt-of-use asser ) - 2,883 2,383
Deferred tax assets 2194 29 2223
48912 2912 52,824
Current assets
Contract assets 10,377 - 10,377
Inven-ories 209 - 209
Trade and other receivables 8777 - 8777
Cash and cash equivalents 9,431 - 9,431
26,794 - 26,794
Total assets 76708 2912 79,618
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables ) "0,743) 98 (106247)
Contract liabiities (25.800) - {25800)
Borrowings - - -
Curren: lease liabiliny (i} - (716) (716)
Prov sions 198) - {98)
(38.,741) (820} (37.361)
Non-current liabilities
Non-current lease hability ! - 12.418) (2,418)
Deferred tax | abilities (3.411) - (3.411)
(3.411) (2416} {5,827)
Total lizbilities (40152) (3,036} {4388)
Net assets 36,254 1124} 36,430
Equity
Share cacital 2 - 21
Share pramiam 21,042 - 21,242
Revaluation reserve 4549 - 4649
Merger reserve 1,347 - 1n.347
Retained earnings (695} 124) (B19)
Total equity 36554 124) 36,430
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Financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

32 Impact of transition to IFRS 16 continued

(i) Statement of comprehensive income

Under the previous account ng standard for leases, 1AS 17, lease costs were recognised on a stra ght-line basis over the tarm of the
lease The Group recognised these costs within cost of sales ard adri~istrative expenses On adopticn of IFRS 18 these lease costs
have been removed and replaced with depreciaucn and finance charges

The impact of removing the lezse costs in the year ended 31 March 2020 was a credit to cost of sales of £632,000 {2019 £628,0C20)
and a cradit to admiristrative experses of £284,000 (2019 £263,000; Under IFRS 18 the right-of-use asset 1s depreciated cver the
lease term, and consequently a deprec ation charge of £567,0C0 was incurred within cost of sales in the year ended 31 March 2020
(2019- £573,200) alongsice a furtner depreciation charge of £242,000 in administrative expenses (2018 £228,600;

In azdition, debits that had previously been taken through the statement of comprehensive incore relating to lease ncentives were
reversed, lead ng to a £2,000 decrease to administrative axpenses in the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019 £2.000 decrease)

Under IFRS 18, finance costs are charged on the lease azbility, which resulted n a finance charge in the year ended 31 March 2820
of EN9,000 (2019, £113,000)

The net impact of the above ad ustments 1o orofit before tax “or the year eraed 31 March 2020 was a charge of £10,000 12019, £15,C00).

(i} Right-of-use asset

IFRS 16 ~as rasultec in the recagrition of a night-of-use asset. This asset represents the Group’s contractual nght to access an identified
asset under the terms of the lease contract

(i) Lease liability

IFRS 16 has resulted 'n the recognition of a lease liabilizy. This liability represents tne Group's contractual obligation o minimum lease
payments durirg the lease term. The element of the lability payatle in the next 12 montrs is recognised as a current hiability with the
balance recognised i~ non-current liabilities

(iv} Working capital

Under I1AS 17 the Group held a balance within working capital that related to certain lease incentives. The balance of £100.0C0 at

31 March 2020 (2018 £88,000) is nz langer recoagnised under IFRS 18 as all payments, lease ncentives and related costs are reflected
i~ either the rnight-cf-use asset or the fease hability.

(v) Taxation
A deferred tax asset of £29,000C was recognised on transiticn to IFR3 16 representirg the timing dfferance on the amounts taken
to reserves The deferred tax asset createa at the point of transition will urwind over the average Iife of the leases held at the date
of trans.tion

(vi) Cash flow statement

The impact of transition to IFRS 18 had rc impact on net cash flows However, the presentation of the consolidated cash flow statement
changed, with an ncrease in cash inflows frorm operaung activities in the vear anded 31 March 2020 of £316. 000 (2019 £887.000)
being of‘set by a correspondirg InGrease 11 net cash outflows from financing activizies
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